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    REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED 
    CIN: L01111WB1997PLC085164 

Regd. Office Address: Arihant Enclave, Ground Floor, 493B/57A, G.T Road (South), 
Shibpur, Howrah, West Bengal - 711102, India 

Email: cs@realtouchfinance.com Website: realtouchfinance.com 
 

Notice to Members 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Fortieth Annual General Meeting (“40th AGM”) of the members of M/s. 
Real Touch Finance Limited will be held on Thursday, 25th September 2025, at 3.00 P.M through video 
conferencing (VC) / other audio-visual means (“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

1. To consider, approve and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2025, together with the reports of the Board of Directors’ and Auditors' thereon 

2. To re-appoint Mrs. Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth (DIN:10495231) as Non-Executive Director, who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment 

3. To appoint M/s. G.S. Chugh & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 
008884C), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:  

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139, and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under and RBI guidelines on appointment of 
statutory auditors of banks and NBFCs (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force), the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for the appointment 
of M/s. G.S. Chugh & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 008884C), as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 (Three) consecutive years and to hold the office from the 
conclusion of this Fortieth Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of Forty third Annual General 
Meeting of the Company and on a remuneration as mutually agreed and reimbursement of actual 
expenses that may be incurred by the auditors in the performance of their duty as auditors of the 
company in conducting audit . 

”RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Audit Committee be and are hereby 
authorised to fix, revise, alter or vary the terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, 
and to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution." 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

 
4. To appoint of M/s. S Satheesh Kumar & Associates., Practicing Company Secretaries as 
Secretarial Auditor of the company: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:  
  
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) 
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or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and basis the recommendation of the Board 
of Directors of the Company, M/s. S Satheesh Kumar & Associates., Practicing Company Secretaries, 
(Peer Review Certificate no- 3335/2023), be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company, for a term of five (5) consecutive financial years, commencing from the financial year 
2025-26 to the financial year 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its duly authorised 
committee or official) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as 
may be necessary, desirable, or expedient to give effect to this resolution including filing of 
necessary forms with regulatory authorities.” 
 
5.  To approve the material related party transactions with Khivraj Automobile and Infrastructure 
Private Limited: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with 
the rules framed thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the 
time being in force, if any), and in terms of Regulation 23, 2(1) (zc) and other applicable Regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, the Members of the Company do hereby 
accord approval to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board”, which term 
shall be deemed to include any duly authorized Committee constituted / empowered by the Board, from 
time to time, to exercise its powers conferred by this resolution), for entering into and / or carrying out 
and / or continuing with existing contracts / arrangements/ transactions (whether individual transaction or 
transaction(s) taken together or series of transaction(s) or otherwise), with Khivraj Automobiles and 
Infrastructure Private Limited, being a related party of the Company, whether by way of continuation(s) 
or renewal(s) or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier/ arrangements/transactions or as fresh and 
independent transaction(s) or otherwise for an aggregate value not exceeding Rs.10 crore during the 
Financial Year 2026-27 , on such material terms and conditions as detailed in the explanatory statement to 
this Resolution and as may be mutually agreed between the related party and the Company, provided 
that the said Transaction(s)/ Contract(s)/Arrangement(s)/Agreement(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary 
course of business and at arm’s length basis. 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which includes any Committee of 
the Board) be and are hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds, things and execute all such 
documents, undertaking as may be necessary in this regard from time to time to give effect to the above 
resolution.” 

6. To consider and approve the material related party transactions with KhivrajKamal Motors 
Private Limited: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an 
ordinary Resolution; 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with 
the rules framed thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the 
time being in force, if any), and in terms of Regulation 23, 2(1) (zc) and other applicable Regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, the Members of the Company do hereby 
accord approval to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board”, which term 
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shall be deemed to include any duly authorized Committee constituted / empowered by the Board, from 
time to time, to exercise its powers conferred by this resolution), for entering into and / or carrying out 
and / or continuing with existing contracts / arrangements/ transactions (whether individual transaction or 
transaction(s) taken together or series of transaction(s) or otherwise), with KhivrajKamal Motors Private 
Limited,  being a related party of the Company, whether by way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or 
extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier/ arrangements/transactions or as fresh and independent 
transaction(s) or otherwise for an aggregate value not exceeding  Rs.10 crore during the Financial year 
2026-27, on such material terms and conditions as detailed in the explanatory statement to this 
Resolution and as may be mutually agreed between the related party and the Company, provided that the 
said Transaction(s)/ Contract(s)/Arrangement(s)/Agreement(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary course 
of business and at arm’s length basis.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which includes any Committee of 
the Board) be and are hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds, things and execute all such 
documents, undertaking as may be necessary in this regard from time to time to give effect to the above 
resolution.” 

7. To consider and approve the material related party transactions with Khivraj Motors Private 
Limited: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an 
ordinary Resolution; 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with 
the rules framed thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the 
time being in force, if any), and in terms of Regulation 23, 2(1) (zc) and other applicable Regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, the Members of the Company do hereby 
accord approval to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board”, which term 
shall be deemed to include any duly authorized Committee constituted / empowered by the Board, from 
time to time, to exercise its powers conferred by this resolution), for entering into and / or carrying out 
and / or continuing with existing contracts / arrangements/ transactions (whether individual transaction or 
transaction(s) taken together or series of transaction(s) or otherwise), with Khivraj Motors Private 
Limited, being a related party of the Company, whether by way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or 
extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier/ arrangements/transactions or as fresh and independent 
transaction(s) or otherwise, for an aggregate value not exceeding  Rs.100 crore during the Financial Year 
2026-27, on such material terms and conditions as detailed in the explanatory statement to this 
Resolution and as may be mutually agreed between the related party and the Company, provided that the 
said Transaction(s)/ Contract(s)/Arrangement(s)/Agreement(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary course 
of business and at arm’s length basis.  
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which includes any Committee of 
the Board) be and are hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds, things and execute all such 
documents, undertaking as may be necessary in this regard from time to time to give effect to the above 
resolution.” 

8. Revision of Remuneration of Mr. Gopal Sridharan (DIN: 09460423), Whole-time Director of the 
Company:  
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as Special 
Resolution; 
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V to the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration to Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and pursuant to the 
recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, approval of members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded for upward revision in payment of remuneration to Mr. Gopal Sridharan, Whole- 
Time Director (DIN: 09460423) of the Company for his remaining tenure, on the such terms and 
conditions of revision of remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice 
convening this meeting. 
  
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of 
the Company may revise the remuneration payable to the Whole-Time Director, in any financial year 
during the tenure of office, in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and the 
Whole Time Director subject to the condition that the total remuneration by way of salary, perquisites, 
other allowances and other benefits, shall be within the aforesaid limits as determined under the 
provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board of Directors 
(which includes the Nomination & Remuneration Committee thereof) be and is hereby authorized to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and settle any/or all questions/ 
matters arising with respect to the above matter, and to execute all such deeds, documents, agreements 
and writings as may be necessary for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, take such further 
steps in this regard, as may be considered desirable or expedient by the Board in the best interest of the 
Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or 
contemplated in any of the foregoing resolutions are hereby approved ratified and confirmed in all 
respects. 
 

                                                                                                        By order of the Board 
                                                                                           For REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED  

Place: Chennai 
Date: 4th August, 2025                                                                                              SD/- 
                                                                                                                         Varsha Gupta 
Registered Office: Arihant Enclave,                                                                Company Secretary 
Ground Floor, 493B/57A, G.T Road (South),  
Shibpur, Howrah, West Bengal, India, 711102 
 
Corporate Branch Office: Khivraj Complex 1 3rd Floor,  
No 480 Anna Salai, Nandanam, Chennai,   
Tamil Nadu, India, 600035 
 
E-mail: cs@realtouchfinance.com 
CIN: L01111WB1997PLC085164 
Website: https://realtouchfinance.com 
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NOTES: 
 
1. Pursuant to the General Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, 
10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, 20/2021 dated December 8, 2021, 3/2022 dated May 5, 2022, 11/2022 
dated December 28, 2022 and 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, No. 09 / 2024 dated September 19, 
2024 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India and the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India’s Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CFD-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 
2024 (“Circulars”) in compliance with this Circulars, the 40th AGM of the Company is being held through 
VC. 

2. Pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with and there is 
no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the 
Members will not be available for the Annual General Meeting and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance 
Slip are not annexed to this Notice. As per the MCA Circulars, Members attending the AGM through VC / 
OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. Since the 
AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map does not form part of the Notice. 

3. Corporate / institutional shareholders who are intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend 
the e-AGM are requested to upload in the e-voting portal, the scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of 
the board resolution / authority letter etc., together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly 
authorised representative(s) or alternatively to e-mail, to the scrutinizer at 
chandramouli@bpcorpadvisors.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first 
come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of 
the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come 
first served basis. 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)  the Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect 
of the business to be transacted at the 40th AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic 
means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system 
as well as e-voting on the date of the 40th AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

6. As an eco-friendly measure intending to benefit the environment and society at large, we request 
you to be a part of the e-initiative and register your e-mail address to receive all communication and 
documents including annual reports from time to time in electronic form. In line with the MCA Circulars, 
Notice of 40th AGM along with the Annual Report is being sent through electronic mode to those 
members whose email address is registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s).  

7. Those Shareholders whose email IDs are not registered, are requested to register their email ID by 
submitting form ISR-1 to the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd, 3A 
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Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata 700 017 Phone: (033) 2280 6616 / 17 / 18 and by 
using the website https://www.nichetechpl.com. 

8. In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at https://realtouchfinance.com The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of 
NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

9. As per Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company is 
pleased to provide its members the facility to cast their vote by electronic means (i.e. voting electronically 
from a place other than the venue of the general meeting) on all resolutions set forth in the Notice.  

10. Members are eligible to cast vote electronically only if they are holding shares as on cut-off date. 
Members who have acquired shares after the dispatch of the Annual Report and before the cut-off date 
18th September 2025 may approach the RTA by e-mail nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com for issuance of the 
User ID and Password for exercising their right to vote by electronic means. 

11. Information as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) in respect of re-appointment of directors is furnished and forms 
part of the notice. 

12. All correspondence relating to change of address, e-mail ID, transfer / transmission of shares, issue of 
duplicate share certificates, bank mandates and all other matters relating to the shareholding in the 
company may be made to the registrar and share transfer agent (RTA). The members holding shares in 
dematerialized form may send such communication to their respective depository participant/s (DPs). 

13. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Regulation 36 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) relating 
to the Special Businesses to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto. 

14. Members may please note that SEBI vide its circular dated 25 January, 2022 has mandated listed 
companies to issue securities in demat mode only while processing service requests viz., transfer, 
transmissions, issue of duplicate securities certificate, claim from unclaimed suspense account, 
renewal/exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/ splitting of securities certificate, 
consolidation of securities certificates/ folios and transposition. Further SEBI vide its circular dated 18 May, 
2022 has simplified the procedure and standardized the format of documents for transmission of 
securities. Accordingly, members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and 
signed Form ISR-4 & ISR-5, as the case maybe. 

15. As per the SEBI circular dated 3 November, 2021, facility for registering nomination is available for 
members in respect of the shares held by them. Shareholders who have not yet registered their 
nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13 which can be obtained 
from depository participants or downloaded from https://nichetechpl.com. Members holding shares in 
electronic form may approach their respective DPs for completing the nomination formalities. 

16. In terms of the requirements of Regulation 36 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations and the Secretarial 
Standards- 2 on “General Meetings” issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India and 
approved & notified by the Central Government, brief resume and statement as required by paragraph 
no. 1.2.5 of SS2 – Secretarial Standards on General Meetings is enclosed as Annexure A. 

17. The Registers as required to be maintained under Section 170 and Section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and other requisite documents mandated under applicable statutory regulations will be available for 
inspection by the members during the AGM. Further, the documents referred to in the resolutions set out 
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in the Notice of the AGM shall be available for electronic inspection by the shareholders/members up to 
the date of AGM, i.e. September 25, 2025. Shareholders/Members seeking to inspect such documents can 
send an email to cs@realtouchfinance.com. 

18. The remote e-voting period starts on Monday, September 22, 2025 at 9.00 am (IST) and ends on 
Wednesday, September 24, 2025 at 5.00 pm (IST). During this period, Members of the Company holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of September 18, 2025 
may cast their votes electronically. 

19. Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December 2020 on “e-
Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-Voting process has been enabled to all the individual 
demat account holders, by way of single login credential, through their demat accounts / websites of 
Depositories / DPs in order to increase the efficiency of the voting process. Shareholders are advised to 
update their mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs to access e-Voting facility. 

20. The Board has appointed M/s. BP & Associates (FRN: P2015TN040200), Company Secretaries, 
Chennai (E-mail: chandramouli@bpcorpadvisors.com) Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and e-
voting process during the AGM in a fair and transparent manner in terms of the requirements of the Act 
and the rules made there under, and he has communicated his eligibility and willingness to be appointed 
as Scrutinizer and given his consent for the same and will be available for the said purpose. The scrutinizer 
shall immediately after the conclusion of the voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the meeting, 
thereafter unblock the votes in the presence of atleast two witnesses not in the employment of the 
company and make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report to the chairman of the company or person 
authorised by him in writing who shall countersign the same. The voting results along with scrutinizers 
report shall be posted on the company’s website viz. https://realtouchfinance.com and will also be posted 
on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com after the result is declared by the chairman / authorised 
person and simultaneously communicated to BSE Limited. 
 
                                                                                                            By order of the Board 
                                                                                              For REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED  
Place: Chennai 
Date: 4th August, 2025                                                                                       SD/- 
                                                                                                                    Varsha Gupta 
Registered Office: Arihant Enclave,                                                            Company Secretary 
Ground Floor, 493B/57A, G.T Road (South),  
Shibpur, Howrah, West Bengal, India, 711102 
 
Corporate Branch Office: Khivraj Complex 1 3rd Floor,  
No 480 Anna Salai, Nandanam, Chennai,   
Tamil Nadu, India, 600035 
 
E-mail: cs@realtouchfinance.com 
CIN: L01111WB1997PLC085164 
Website: https://realtouchfinance.com 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE 
AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on 22nd September 2025 at 9.00 A.M. and ends on 24th 
September 2025 at 5.00P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as 
on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 18th September 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The 
voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 18th September 2025. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You 
will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 
Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 
registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt 
you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value 
added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
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available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience. 

 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to 
login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab 
and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 
website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 
at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 
Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
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Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 
and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 
no. 1800-21-09911 
 

 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 
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Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need 
to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  
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6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature 
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
chandramouli@bpcorpadvisors.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders 
(i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 
Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-
Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 
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attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call 
on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Pritam Dutta, Assistant Manager at pritamd@nsdl.com / 
evoting@nsdl.com  

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 
 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@realtouchfinance.com 
 
2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
cs@realtouchfinance.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are 
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and 
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 
3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
 
4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update 
their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS 
UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above 
for remote e-voting. 
 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility 
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

 
3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 
4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 
1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-
Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” 
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menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting 
menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company 
will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting 
or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting 
instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
  
2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. 
 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective 
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches. 
 
5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
cs@realtouchfinance.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 
 
6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ ask questions during the meeting may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@realtouchfinance.com. 
The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in 
advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at cs@realtouchfinance.com. These queries will be replied by the company suitably by 
email. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, 
depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

 
7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask questions during the meeting. 
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                                               EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting out all 
material facts relating to the special businesses to be transacted at the AGM is detailed hereunder: 

Item No. 3: The following information sets out all material facts relating to item relating to 
Appointment of Statutory Auditors as mentioned in the accompanying Notice of the 40th Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) of the Company pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of the Listing Regulations:. 
 
The members of the Company at the 37th Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2022 has re-
appointed M/s. P.D Randar & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN NO.319295E), as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for the term of next five years till the conclusion 42nd Annual General Meeting. 
 
M/s. P.D Randar & co , Chartered Accountants (FRN NO.319295E), has tender their resignation as the 
statutory Auditor of the company, stating the reason of resignation that the majority of transaction of 
company being conducted in Southern part of India basically from Chennai and all related documents are 
maintained at Chennai office. Hence, it has become operationally difficult to effectively carry out audit and 
quarterly review of financial statement from our current office which is located in Kolkata. Hence they 
resign from the post of statutory auditor resulting in a casual vacancy in the office of the Auditors of the 
company w.e.f 31st July, 2025 as per section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
In accordance with the aforesaid provision of the act, the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of the 
statutory Auditors shall be filed by the Board within a period of thirty days and such appointment shall 
also be approved by the members of the company within three months of the recommendations of the 
Board. 
 
Accordingly based on the recommendations of Audit Committee and confirmation received from M/s. 
G.S. Chugh & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 008884C) on their eligibility, the 
Board recommends to the members for the appointment of M/s. G.S. Chugh & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 008884C) as the statutory Auditors of the company to fill the casual 
vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. PD Randar & Co, Chartered Accountants from July 31st, 2025 
until the conclusion of this 40th Annual General Meeting and  for a period of three years, from the 
conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 43rd Annual General Meeting. 
 
The details required to be disclosed under provisions of Regulation 36(5) of the Listing Regulations are as 
under: 

 A. Proposed fees payable to the Statutory Auditors: The remuneration proposed to be paid to the 
Statutory Auditors shall be commensurate with the services to be rendered by them during the said 
Tenure. Presently, the annual fee is proposed at   Rs.3,00,000 per Annum (Rupees) excluding taxes and 
out of pocket expenses. However, the Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee may 
alter and vary the terms and conditions of the appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and 
to such extent as may be mutually agreed between the Auditors and the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 

 B. Terms of appointment: Appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 3 years 
from the conclusion of the 40th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 43rd Annual General 
Meeting of the Company. 
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C. In case of a new auditor, any material changes in the fees payable to such auditor from that paid 
to the outgoing auditor along with the rationale for such change:  The proposed audit fees payable 
to the incoming Statutory Auditor M/s .G.S Chugh & Associates Chartered Accountants is Rs. 3,00,000 per 
annum compared with the remuneration of outgoing auditor, M/s. P D Randar & Co. 

Rationale for Change: The increase is primarily due to expanded operations of the Company, enhanced 
audit coverage, and the appointment of a larger firm with broader industry experience. 

D. Basis of recommendation for appointment: The Audit Committee & the Board considered various 
parameters like Market standing of the firm, clientele served, technical knowledge, governance & 
competitiveness, capability to serve complex business landscape as that of the Company, requisite 
expertise, experience, and professionalism and recommended M/s. G.S. Chugh & Associates to be best 
suited to be appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company.  

E. Credentials of the Statutory Auditors proposed to be appointed: M/s. G.S. Chugh & Associates, 
established in 1998, is a Chartered Accountancy firm comprising experienced Chartered Accountants, 
Company Secretaries, Exbankers, and Tax Consultants. The firm operates across 13 locations in India with 
its Head Office at Saharanpur and branches in major cities including Chennai, Gurugram, Hyderabad, 
Vishakhapatnam, Ernakulam, Mumbai, Kolkata, Udaipur, Pune, Bengaluru, Gorakhpur, Nagpur, and 
Ahmedabad. The firm offers a wide range of professional services including Audit and Assurance, Taxation 
(Direct & Indirect), Financial Reporting, Management Consultancy, Accounting, Bookkeeping, Company 
Law Advisory, and regulatory compliance support. It has extensive experience in handling statutory audits 
for corporate clients. 

The Firm has given their consent to act as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and have confirmed 
that the said appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the conditions prescribed under Sections 
139 and 141 of the Act. It has a valid peer review certificate and audits various companies listed on stock 
exchanges in India.  

The Board recommends passing of this Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of this Notice for 
your approval.  

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives of the Company are concerned or 
interested in the said resolution. 

Item No. 4 Appointment of M/s. S Satheesh Kumar & Associates., Practicing Company 
Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the company 
 
Your Company is required to obtain a Secretarial Audit Report from a Practising Company Secretary in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. Based on recommendation of Audit Committee the Board of Directors at its 
meeting held on August 04, 2025 has approved the appointment of M/s. S satheesh Kumar & Associates, 
Practising Company Secretaries, having  Peer Review Certificate No-3335/2023 and Firm Registration 
Number-S2021TN786700, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for five financial years from 2025-
26 to 2029-30 on such remuneration including out of pocket expenses and other expenses as may be 
mutually agreed by and between the Board of Directors including its duly authorised committee or 
official) and the Secretarial Auditor. Accordingly, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
the Board of Directors has approved the appointment of M/s. S Satheesh Kumar & Associates., 
Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor of the company for the period of Five years. The 
appointment is subject to shareholders’ approval at this Annual General Meeting. 
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Brief Profile of the firm: 
 
M/s. S Satheesh Kumar & Associates., Practicing Company Secretaries, is a peer reviewed having (Peer 
Review Certificate No-3335/2023), and a well-established firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, 
registered with the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. M/s. S Satheesh Kumar & Associates have 
over 15 years of rich experience in various industries and have handled several assignments related to 
Secretarial Audit, Restructuring, Valuation, Takeover, Mergers & Amalgamations. They also have good 
exposure to Compliance Audit and Compliance Management System, Legal Due Diligence, drafting and 
vetting of various legal agreements. The terms and conditions of the appointment include a tenure of five 
consecutive years, from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of AGM of the company to be held 
in the year 2030.  
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER REGULATION 36(5) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015  
 
Proposed statutory audit fee payable to 
Auditors 

1,20,000 

Terms of appointment 5 Years 
Material change in the fee payable to such 
auditor from that paid to the outgoing auditor 
along with the rationale for such change 

Material change in audit fees: 
The proposed audit fees payable to the incoming 
Statutory Auditor of M/s. S Satheesh Kumar & 
Associates, is ₹1,20,000 per annum as compared to 
Rs 1,00,000 paid to the Outgoing Auditor S 
Sandeep & Associates, Company Secretary. 
 
Rationale for change: The increase is primarily due 
to expanded operations of the Company, enhanced 
audit coverage, and the appointment of a larger 
firm with broader industry expertise 

Basis of recommendation and auditor 
Credentials 

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, proposes to appoint M/s. S Satheesh 
Kumar & Associates., Practicing Company 
Secretaries of the Company for the financial year 
2025–26, based on their strong domain expertise in 
company law and SEBI regulations, prior 
performance in conducting secretarial audits, and 
their experience with listed entities. 

 
Accordingly, the consent of the shareholders is sought for the appointment of M/s. S Satheesh Kumar & 
Associates., Practicing Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company.  
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their relatives have any financial or other 
interest in the proposed resolution. 
 
The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by 
the Members as an Ordinary Resolution. 
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Item No 5: To consider and approve the material related party transaction with Khivraj 
Automobiles and Infrastructure Private Limited  
 
As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties 
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the 
obligation of obtaining prior approval of shareholders. However, Regulation 23 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI 
Listing Regulations’), as amended, any transactions with a related party shall be considered material, if the 
transaction(s) entered into/to be entered into individually or taken together with the previous transactions 
during a financial year exceeds ₹1,000 Crores or 10% of annual consolidated turnover of the Company as 
per the last audited financial statements of the Company, whichever is lower, and shall require prior 
approval of shareholders by means of an ordinary resolution. 
The said limits are applicable, even if the transactions are in the ordinary course of business of the 
concerned company and at an arm’s length basis. Further, Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations defines a Related Party Transaction (‘RPT’) to include a transaction involving a transfer of 
resources, services or obligations between listed entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price 
is charged or not. 

Given the nature of the industry, the Company works closely with its related parties to achieve its business 
objectives and enters into various operational transactions with its related parties, from time to time, in 
the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. 

It is in the above context that, Resolution No(s). 5 is placed for the approval of the Members of the 
Company.  

The Company proposes to enter into transactions with its related parties, during financial year 2026-27 
which are likely to be material transactions as per Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The 
company will be involved in transactions with its related parties, including receiving loans, giving 
loans, receiving interest, paying interest and Maintenance fees paid etc. Therefore, the Board is of 
the opinion that the proposed transactions with such related parties are in the best interest of the 
Company and the members. These transactions are in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length 
basis. 

The particulars of proposed material related party transactions for the financial year 2026-27 are as below: 

Sl 
no 

Name of the 
Related Party 

Nature of Transaction Nature of 
relationship 

Amount of Transaction 
Proposed during the 
financial year 2026-27 
(Rs in Crores) 

1. Khivraj Automobile 
and Infrastructure 
Private Limited  
 

Loan received/ Loan 
repaid/ Interest paid/ 
Maintenance fees paid or 
any other transactions. 
 

Enterprise over 
which promoters 
have significant 
influence 
 

Rs. 10 Crores 

Details w.r.t Material Related Party Transaction as required under SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 2024: 
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Serial 
No 

Particulars Details 

a. Name of the Related Party and its relationship with the 
listed entity or its subsidiary, including nature of its 
concern or interest (financial or otherwise) 
 

Khivraj Automobiles and 
Infrastructure Private Limited- 
Enterprise over which promoters 
have significant influence 

b. Type of Transactions and particulars of the proposed 
transactions 
 

Loan received/ Loan repaid/ Interest 
paid/ Maintenance fees paid or any 
other transactions 

c. Material terms 
 

A). Unsecured Loans  
1. Rate of interest on Loan - Not 
exceeding 10% 
2. Tenure: Short Term / Long Term  
3. Purpose of Utilization of funds: 
Onward Lending of Funds 
4. Repayment Schedule: upto 3 years 
with prepayment permitted without 
penalty. 

d. Tenure of the proposed transactions 
 

Financial Year 2026-27 

e. Value of the proposed transactions 
 

Rs. 10 Crore 

f. Value of RPT as % of Company’s annual standalone 
turnover 
 

34.64% 

g. If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made 
or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary: 
 

Sr No Particular  

a. Details of the source of funds in connection 
with the proposed transaction 
 

The requirement of disclosing 
source of funds and cost of 
funds shall not be applicable 
to Non-Banking Financial 
Company (NBFC). Hence, the 
details are not applicable to 
your company. 

 

b. Details of financial indebtedness incurred to 
make loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances 
or investments made or given by the Company 
or its subsidiary 
 

c. Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, 
interest rate, repayment schedule, whether 
secured (nature of security) or unsecured 
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d. Purpose for which funds will be utilised by the 
ultimate beneficiary of such funds pursuant to 
the related party transaction 
 

 

h. Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the 
Company. 
 

The company takes support from 
the Group company for the growth 
and expansion of the business. 

 

i. Copy of the valuation or other external party report, if 
any such report has been relied upon 
 

Not Applicable 

j. Value of RPT as % of counter-party’s annual 
consolidated turnover that is represented by the value of 
the proposed RPT, on a voluntary basis. 
 

9.05 % 

K. Any other information relevant or important for the 
members to take a decision on the proposed 
transaction. 
 

All important information forms part 
of explanatory statement setting out 
the material facts pursuant to 
Section 102 and 110 of the Act 
which have been mentioned in 
foregoing paragraphs. 
 

 

The above transactions are approved by the Audit Committee as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The above proposed transactions are not unfavorable to the 
Company, compared to the terms and conditions, had similar transactions been entered into between two 
unrelated parties.  

In view of the above, it is proposed to seek approval of the members of the Company through an 
Ordinary Resolution for the above transactions and the related parties are abstained from voting on the 
resolution proposed at item no. 5. 

 None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their relatives is directly or indirectly 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, except as mentioned above to the extent of his/her 
respective shareholding, if any, in the Company, in the proposed resolution.. 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by 
the Members as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
Item No 6: To consider and approve the material related party transaction with KhivrajKamal 
Motors Private Limited 
 
As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties 
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the 
obligation of obtaining prior approval of shareholders. However, Regulation 23 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI 
Listing Regulations’), as amended, any transactions with a related party shall be considered material, if the 
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transaction(s) entered into/to be entered into individually or taken together with the previous transactions 
during a financial year exceeds ₹1,000 Crores or 10% of annual consolidated turnover of the Company as 
per the last audited financial statements of the Company, whichever is lower, and shall require prior 
approval of shareholders by means of an ordinary resolution. 

The said limits are applicable, even if the transactions are in the ordinary course of business of the 
concerned company and at an arm’s length basis. Further, Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations defines a Related Party Transaction (‘RPT’) to include a transaction involving a transfer of 
resources, services or obligations between listed entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price 
is charged or not. 

Given the nature of the industry, the Company works closely with its related parties to achieve its business 
objectives and enters into various operational transactions with its related parties, from time to time, in 
the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. 

It is in the above context that, Resolution No(s). 6 is placed for the approval of the Members of the 
Company. 

The Company proposes to enter into transactions with its related parties, during financial year 2026-27 
which are likely to be material transactions as per Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The 
company will be involved in transactions with its related parties, including loan granted/ Interest 
received etc. Therefore, the Board is of the opinion that the proposed transactions with such related 
parties are in the best interest of the Company and the members. These transactions are in ordinary 
course of business and at arm’s length basis. 

The particulars of proposed material related party transactions for the financial year 2026-27 are as below: 

Sl no Name of the 
Related Party 

Nature of 
Transaction 

Nature of relationship Amount of 
Transaction 
Proposed during 
the financial year 
2026-27 (Rs in 
Crores) 

1. Khivrajkamal 
Motors Private 
Limited  
 

Loan Granted/ 
Interest 
received or 
any other 
transactions.  
 

Enterprise over which 
promoters have significant 
influence.  
 

Rs 10 Cr 

Details w.r.t Material Related Party Transaction as required under SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 2024: 

Serial 
No 

Particulars Details 

a. Name of the Related Party and its relationship with the 
listed entity or its subsidiary, including nature of its 
concern or interest (financial or otherwise) 

KhivrajKamal Motors Private 
Limited- Enterprise over which 
promoters have significant 
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 influence 

b. Type of Transactions and particulars of the proposed 
transactions 
 

Loan Granted/ Interest received or 
any other transactions.  
 

c. Material terms 
 

A). Unsecured Loans  
1. Rate of interest on granted Loan 
- Not exceeding 12% 
2. Tenure: Short Term / Long Term  
3. Purpose of Utilization of funds: 
lended for their Working capital 
purpose 
4. Repayment Schedule: upto 5 
years with repayment permitted 
without penalty. 

d. Tenure of the proposed transactions 
 

Financial Year 2026-27 

e. Value of the proposed transactions 
 

Rs. 10 Crore 

f. Value of RPT as % of Company’s annual standalone 
turnover 
 

34.64% 

g. If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made 
or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary: 
 

Sr No Particular  

a. Details of the source of funds in connection 
with the proposed transaction 
 

The requirement of disclosing 
source of funds and cost of 
funds shall not be applicable 
to Non-Banking Financial 
Company (NBFC). Hence, the 
details are not applicable to 
your company 

b. Details of financial indebtedness incurred to 
make loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances 
or investments made or given by the Company 
or its subsidiary 
 

c. Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, 
interest rate, repayment schedule, whether 
secured (nature of security) or unsecured 
 

d. Purpose for which funds will be utilised by the 
ultimate beneficiary of such funds pursuant to 
the related party transaction 
 

 

h. Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the 
Company. 

The company has granted loan as 
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 part of its onward lending activities. 

 

i. Copy of the valuation or other external party report, if 
any such report has been relied upon 
 

Not Applicable 

j. Value of RPT as % of counter-party’s annual 
consolidated turnover that is represented by the value of 
the proposed RPT, on a voluntary basis; 
 

3.14 % 

K. Any other information relevant or important for the 
members to take a decision on the proposed 
transaction. 
 

All important information forms 
part of explanatory statement 
setting out the material facts 
pursuant to Section 102 and 110 of 
the Act which have been 
mentioned in foregoing 
paragraphs. 
 

 

The above transactions are approved by the Audit Committee as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The above proposed transactions are not unfavorable to the 
Company, compared to the terms and conditions, had similar transactions been entered into between two 
unrelated parties.  

In view of the above, it is proposed to seek approval of the members of the Company through an 
Ordinary Resolution for the above transactions and the related parties are abstained from voting on the 
resolution proposed at item no. 6. 

 None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their relatives is directly or indirectly 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, except as mentioned above to the extent of his/her 
respective shareholding, if any, in the Company, in the proposed resolution.. 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval by 
the Members as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
Item No 7: To consider and approve the material related party transaction with Khivraj Motors 
Private Limited  
 
As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties 
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the 
obligation of obtaining prior approval of shareholders. However, Regulation 23 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI 
Listing Regulations’), as amended, any transactions with a related party shall be considered material, if the 
transaction(s) entered into/to be entered into individually or taken together with the previous transactions 
during a financial year exceeds ₹1,000 Crores or 10% of annual consolidated turnover of the Company as 
per the last audited financial statements of the Company, whichever is lower, and shall require prior 
approval of shareholders by means of an ordinary resolution. 
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The said limits are applicable, even if the transactions are in the ordinary course of business of the 
concerned company and at an arm’s length basis. Further, Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations defines a Related Party Transaction (‘RPT’) to include a transaction involving a transfer of 
resources, services or obligations between listed entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price 
is charged or not. 

Given the nature of the industry, the Company works closely with its related parties to achieve its business 
objectives and enters into various operational transactions with its related parties, from time to time, in 
the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. 

It is in the above context that, Resolution No(s).7 is placed for the approval of the Members of the 
Company. 

The Company proposes to enter into transactions with its related parties, during financial year 2026-27 
which are likely to be material transactions as per Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The 
company will be involved in transactions with its related parties, including receiving loans, giving 
loans, receiving interest, and paying interest, Corporate Guarantee Commission, Rent paid etc. 
Therefore, the Board is of the opinion that the proposed transactions with such related parties are in the 
best interest of the Company. These transactions are in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length 
basis. 

The particulars of proposed material related party transactions for the financial year 2026-27 are as below: 

Sl no Name of the 
Related Party 

Nature of 
Transaction 

Nature of relationship Amount of 
Transaction Proposed 
during the financial 
year 2026-27 (Rs in 
Crores) 

1. Khivraj Motors 
Private Limited  
 

Loan received/ 
Loan repaid/ 
Interest paid / 
Corporate 
Guarantee 
Commission/ 
Rent paid or 
any other 
transcations. 
 

Enterprise over which 
promoters have significant 
influence.  
 

Rs.100 Cr 

Details w.r.t Material Related Party Transaction as required under SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 2024. 

Serial 
No 

Particulars Details 

a. Name of the Related Party and its relationship with 
the listed entity or its subsidiary, including nature of 
its concern or interest (financial or otherwise) 
 

Khivraj Motors Private Limited- 
Enterprise over which promoters have 
significant influence 
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b. Type of Transactions and particulars of the proposed 
transactions 
 

Loan received/ Loan repaid/ Interest 
paid / Corporate Guarantee 
Commission/ Rent paid or any other 
transactions. 
 

c. Material terms 
 

A). Unsecured Loans  

1. Rate of interest on Loan - Not 
exceeding 11 % p.a.  

2. Tenure: Short Term / Long Term  

3. Purpose of Utilization of funds: 
Working Capital / Onward Lending 
activities 
4. Repayment Schedule: upto 3 
years with prepayment permitted 
without penalty. Facility 

5. Guarantee commission paid/ to 
be paid within the limit mentioned 
above towards the loan availed by 
the company from banks for the 
corporate guarantee extended by 
Khivraj Motors Pvt Ltd 

 
 

d. Tenure of the proposed transactions 
 

Financial Year 2026-27 

e. Value of the proposed transactions 
 

Rs. 100 Crore 

f. Value of RPT as % of Company’s standalone 
consolidated turnover 
 

346.38% 

g. If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or 
investments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary: 
 

Sr No Particular  

a. Details of the source of funds in connection 
with the proposed transaction 
 

The requirement of 
disclosing source of funds 
and cost of funds shall not 
be applicable to Non-
Banking Financial Company 
(NBFC). Hence, the details are 

b. Details of financial indebtedness incurred to 
make loans, inter-corporate deposits, 
advances or investments made or given by 
the Company or its subsidiary 
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 not applicable to your 
company. 

c. Applicable terms, including covenants, 
tenure, interest rate, repayment schedule, 
whether secured (nature of security) or 
unsecured 
 

d. Purpose for which funds will be utilised by 
the ultimate beneficiary of such funds 
pursuant to the related party transaction 
 

 

h. Justification as to why the RPT is in the 
interest of the Company. 
 

The company takes support 
from the Group company for 
the growth and expansion of 
the business. 

 

i. Copy of the valuation or other external party report, if 
any such report has been relied upon 
 

Not Applicable 

j. Value of RPT as % of counter-party’s annual 
consolidated turnover that is represented by the value 
of the proposed RPT, on a voluntary basis; 
 

21.02 % 

K. Any other information relevant or important for the 
members to take a decision on the proposed 
transaction. 
 

All important information 
forms part of explanatory 
statement setting out the 
material facts pursuant to 
Section 102 and 110 of the Act 
which have been mentioned in 
foregoing paragraphs. 
 

 

The above transactions are approved by the Audit Committee as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The above proposed transactions are not unfavorable to the 
Company, compared to the terms and conditions, had similar transactions been entered into between two 
unrelated parties.  

In view of the above, it is proposed to seek approval of the members of the Company through an 
Ordinary Resolution for the above transactions and the related parties are abstained from voting on the 
resolution proposed at item no. 7. 

 None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their relatives is directly or indirectly 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, except as mentioned above to the extent of his/her 
respective shareholding, if any, in the Company, in the proposed resolution.. 
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The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice for approval by 
the Members as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
Item No. 8: Revision of Remuneration of Mr. Gopal Sridharan (DIN: 09460423), Whole-time 
Director of the Company:  
 
In accordance with the provisions Sections 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V, etc. of the Companies Act, 
2013, the terms of remuneration of Mr. Gopal Sridharan, Whole Time Director as given in the table below 
was approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors at its 
meetings held on May 30, 2025.  
 
 

Particulars (Rs.) 

A. Fixed Salary In the range of Rs. 50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty lakhs only) to 
Rs,1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One crore only) per annum as may be 
approved and/ or revised from time to time by the Board of 
Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. 

B. Perquisites and expenses 
reimbursed 

1. Medical Insurance for self and family as per the scheme of the 
Company. 

2. Earned/Privilege Leave with right to accumulate/encash as per the 
rules of the Company 

3. Personal accident insurance is as per the rules of the Company 

4. Provident Fund: Company’s contribution to Provident Fund shall 
be as per the scheme of the Company. 

5. Gratuity: As per the rules of the Company, not exceeding half a 
month’s salary for each completed years of service. 

 6. Performance linked bonus as per the policies of the Company 

 
Other Perquisites- Perquisites not specified in this above Table, subject to a limit of 50% of Salary and 
Allowances set out above. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have taken cognizance of the following 
while approving the remuneration:- 
 

 Mr. Gopal Sridharan, Whole- Time Director (DIN: 09460423),  vast multi-functional experience  
 Robust growth in the Turnover and Profitability of the Company 

 
Mr. Gopal Sridharan will not be entitled to any sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or of any 
committee thereof. Further, revisions to the above to be decided by the Board of Directors based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
 
In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, the approval of the remuneration of Mr. Gopal 
Sridharan proposed under Item No.4 of the Notice for the Members for approval. 
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The disclosures as required under Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Act and the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in Annexure - B. 
Further, details of Mr. Gopal Sridharan, as required by paragraph no. 1.2.5 of SS2 – Secretarial Standards 
on General Meetings are provided in Annexure – A. 
 
Except for Mr. Gopal Sridharan, no other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their relatives 
have any financial or other interest in the proposed resolution. 
 
The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice for approval by 
the Members as a Special Resolution. 
                                                                      
                                                                  Annexure – B 
 
Disclosures as required under Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Act and the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 
 
I. General Information:  
  
(1) Nature of industry – The Company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial Company 
 
(2) Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production – Commenced operations on 
December 27, 1984 
 
(3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by 
financial institutions appearing in the prospectus – Not applicable 
 
(4) Financial performance based on given indicators:  
                                                    (Figures are in Lakhs) 
Particulars Financial 

Year ended 
March 31, 
2025 

Financial Year 
ended March 
31, 2024 

Financial Year 
ended March 
30 2023 

Financial Year 
ended March 
31, 2022 

Financial Year 
ended March 
31, 2021 

Operating 
Income 

2866.69 1,873.61 927.62 236.07 226.90 

Other Income 20.58 14.66 100.45 5.13 0.00 

Less: 
Expenditure 
including 
Depreciation 

2320.79 1,495.53 655.02 46.52 32.79 

Profit before 
taxation 

566.48 392.74 373.05 194.68 194.11 

Profit after 
taxation 

461.02 263.30 261.96 145.18 144.11 

  
(5) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any – Nil  
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II. Information about the appointee: Mr. Gopal Sridharan, Whole- Time Director 
 
(1) Background details: Mr. Gopal Sridharan is a Science Graduate from Madras University and PGDM 
(Applied Finance) from IIM, Calcutta having over 25 years of rich experience in the finance industry with 
the leading institutions like ICICI bank, Reliance capital and InCred Financial Service Limited. He has sound 
knowledge about Retail and SME loan products. In his last assignment as Director Sales (SME), he played a 
significant role in setting up the complete Secured business loan vertical for InCred. Later, he was elevated 
to handle unsecured business loans and Loan against property. He has managed an AUM 880 Cr., and it 
was one of the most profitable businesses for InCred. He won many accolades in his professional carrier, 
including the Best People Manager award from Reliance Capital. 
 
(2) Past Remuneration:  
 
Particulars For the Financial Year 2024-25 

Salary and 
Allowances 

Rs.2,36,642/- per month 

Commission, if any Nil  

Perquisites/Expenses 
reimbursed 

1. Medical Insurance for self and family as per the 
scheme of the Company. 

2. Earned/Privilege Leave with right to 
accumulate/encash as per the rules of the Company 

3. Personal accident insurance is as per the rules of 
the Company 

4. Provident Fund: Company’s contribution to 
Provident Fund shall be as per the scheme of the 
Company. 

5. Gratuity: As per the rules of the Company, not 
exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed 
years of service. 

 6. Performance linked bonus as per the policies of 
the Company 

Total Rs.2,36,642/- per Month 

 
(3) Recognition or awards: Nil 
 
(4) Job profile and his suitability: Mr. Gopal Sridharan is a Science Graduate from Madras University and 
PGDM (Applied Finance) from IIM, Calcutta having over 25 years of rich experience in the finance industry 
with the leading institutions like ICICI bank, Reliance capital and InCred Financial Service Limited. He has 
sound knowledge about Retail and SME loan products. In his last assignment as Director Sales (SME), he 
played a significant role in setting up the complete Secured business loan vertical for InCred. Later, he was 
elevated to handle unsecured business loans and Loan against property. He has managed an AUM 880 
Cr., and it was one of the most profitable businesses for InCred. He won many accolades in his 
professional carrier, including the Best People Manager award from Reliance Capital. Further, under the 
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leadership of Mr. Gopal Sridharan the Company has achieved new heights in terms of getting business 
and generating revenue.   
 
(5) Remuneration proposed: Gross Annual Remuneration up to Rs.1 Crores 
 
(6) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position 
and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be with respect to the country of his origin): 
The remuneration proposed is at par with the Industry standards 
 
(7) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relation with the managerial 
personnel, if any: Nil  
 
III. Other information: 
 
(1) Reasons for loss or inadequate profits: The Company was not able to achieve the desired level of profit 
since the Company is in its growth phase. 
 
(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The Company is in the growth phase and is in 
the process of raising capital and debt funds to support its growth. The management is confident of 
achieving the desired profit levels in the forthcoming years.  
 
(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms – The productivity matches those of 
similar large companies. 
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                                                                        Annexure-A 
 
Details under Regulation 36(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and in terms of                                                                                              
secretarial Standard – 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in 
respect of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment: 
 
Directors seeking re-appointment and revision of remuneration at the 40th AGM under Item Nos. 2 & 8, 
in terms of SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 are as follows 
 

Name of Director Mrs. Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth Mr. Gopal Sridharan 
DIN 10495231 09460423 
Date of Birth / (Age) 04-06-1965 06-03-1974 
Date of Appointment February 14, 2024 January 1, 2022 

Qualifications M. Com. and Intermediate CA 

Science Graduate from Madras 
University and PGDM (Applied 
Finance) from IIM, Calcutta  
 

Brief resume & Experience  Mrs. Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth, 
aged about 60 years is a Master of 
Commerce from Madurai Kamaraj 
University and an Intermediate 
qualified Chartered Accountant 
from the Institute of Chartered 
Accountant India. She is a seasoned 
professional with more than three 
decades of rich experience in the 
field of finance, accounts, indirect 
taxation and statutory compliance. 
 
Mrs. Padmini has led various teams 
across multiple industries and was 
associated with dynamic businesses 
and held various leadership 
positions. 

Mr. Gopal Sridharan, 50 years 
old is a Science Graduate from 
Madras University and PGDM 
(Applied Finance) from IIM, 
Calcutta. Mr. Sridharan has 
over 22 years of rich 
experience in the finance 
industry with the leading 
institutions like ICICI bank, 
Reliance capital and InCred 
Financial Service Limited. He 
has sound knowledge about 
Retail and SME loan products. 
In his last assignment as 
Director Sales (SME), he played 
a significant role in setting up 
the complete Secured business 
loan vertical for InCred. Later, 
he was elevated to handle 
unsecured business loans and 
Loan against property.  He has 
managed an AUM 880 Cr., and 
it was one of the most 
profitable businesses for 
InCred. He won many 
accolades in his professional 
carrier, including the Best 
People Manager award from 
Reliance Capital. 

Expertise in specific 
Functional areas 

Finance, Accounts, Indirect Taxation 
and Statutory Compliance 

Finance and Accounts 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment or re-

Sitting Fees for attending the Board 
Meeting to be paid 

Mentioned above in the 
explanatory statement 
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appointment along with 
details of remuneration 
sought to be paid and the 
remuneration last drawn by 
such person 
Directorship held in other 
Companies 

NIL 
NIL 

Listed entities from which 
he/she resigned in the past 
three years 

NIL 
NIL 

Other Directorships, 
Membership/Chairmanship 
of Committees of other 
Boards 

NIL 

NIL 

Number of Board Meetings 
attended during FY 2024-
25 

7 (Seven) 
 
7 (Seven)  

Relationship with other 
Directors, Manager and 
KMP of the Company 

Mrs. Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth is 
not related to any Directors, 
Manager and KMP of the Company  

Mr. Gopal Sridharan is not 
related to any Directors, 
Manager and KMP of the 
Company  

No of shares held NIL NIL 
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BOARD’S REPORT 
 To the Members, 
 
1.  BACKGROUND 
 
Real Touch Finance Limited (“Company” or “RTFL”) is a subsidiary of Ultraplus Housing Private Limited 
and is a Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”), holding a Certificate of Registration dated 
September 5, 1999 from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). 
  
The Company is having its registered office in Howrah (West Bengal) and has various branch offices in 
the state of Tamil Nadu, viz., Chennai, Kancheepuram, Thiruvallur, Villupuram, Arani, Vandavasi, 
Chengalpattu, Thiruvannamalai and Tindivanam. 
 
2. FINANCIAL RESULTS 
 
2.1   Standalone Results 
 
The performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2025, on a Standalone basis 
is, summarized below: 

                                                                                                                                            (Rs. In lakhs) 
Particulars 2024-25  2023-24  

Revenue from Operations 2887.27 1888.27 
Other Income 

20.58              14.66 

Total Income 2866.69 1873.61 
Total Expenses 2320.79 1495.53 

Profit Before Tax 566.48 392.74 
Tax Expense 105.46 129.44 
Profit After tax 461.02 263.30 
Other Comprehensive Income  
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently 
to profit or loss 

1.15 0.07 

Transfer to Statutory Reserve as per RBI 
Guidelines 92.43 52.67 

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares NIL NIL 
 
2.1.1 Company’s Performance 
 
Gross Income increased by 53.89% and stood at Rs. (in lakhs) 2887.27 as compared to previous year (FY 
2023-24 (in lakhs) 1888.27. The Company’s Profit before Tax was Rs. (in lakhs) 566.48 as compared to 
previous FY 2023-24 Rs. (in lakhs) 392.74 and the Profit after Tax increased by about 75.09% to Rs. (in 
lakhs) 461.02 as against of previous year.  
 
3. SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES 
 
The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025 was Rs. 
12,69,26,900 consisting of 1,26,92,690 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. During the Financial Year 2024-25, 
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the company has issued 2200, unlisted 11% optionally-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,00,000/- each  
under private placement basis. 
There were no changes in the Authorized, issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital of the Company 
during the year. Further it is hereby confirmed that, the Company has not: 
 
i) Apart from the issuance of 2,200 unlisted 11% Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs) of ₹1,00,000 
each on a private placement basis, the Company has not issued any other shares, warrants, debentures, 
bonds, or any other convertible or non-convertible securities. 
ii)  issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise 
iii)  issued any sweat equity shares to its directors or employees 
iv)  made any change in voting rights 
v)  reduced its share capital or bought back shares 
vi)  changed the capital structure resulting from restructuring 
v)  failed to implement any corporate action 
 
The Company’s securities were not suspended for trading during the year. 
 
4. DIVIDEND 
 
In order to conserve resources, the Board does not recommend payment of any Dividend on the Equity 
Shares for FY 2024-25. 
 
5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 
As required under Section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, 20% of the profits are required to 
be transferred to a Special Reserve Account. Accordingly, an amount of Rs. 92, 43,000 (FY 2023-24 Rs. 
52, 67,000), has been transferred to the said Reserve. 
 
6. CAPITAL ADEQUACY 
 
The company’s capital adequacy ratio was at 20.74% as on 31st March, 2025 as against the statutory 
minimum capital adequacy ratio of 15% prescribed by RBI.  
 
7. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 
 
Your Company has Real touch Finance Limited- Employees Stock Plan 2024 (ESOP 2024) as ESOP 
scheme in accordance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021. 
 
The principal objectives of this plan are to: 
 
• Rewarding the employees for their performance and contribution to the success and growth of Real 
Touch. 
 
• Providing outsized rewards for outsized performance and create long-term wealth for Real Touch and 
employees. 
 
• Providing an opportunity for the professional partners to become financial partners in the Equity of 
Real Touch. 



                
                

35 
 

 
• Attracting and retaining top talent. 
 
The details of stock options form part of the Notes to Accounts of the Standalone Financial Statements. 
The Secretarial Auditor’s certificate on the implementation of share-based schemes in accordance with 
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, will be placed at the 40th 
AGM for inspection by the members. 
 
Further, pursuant to SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, the 
applicable disclosure as on March 31, 2025 is uploaded on the website of your Company 
https:/realtuchfinance.com. 
 
8. DISCLOSURES RELATED TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE 
 
The Company has no Subsidiary or Joint venture or associate as on 31st March 2025.The Company is a 
Subsidiary of M/s. Ultraplus Housing Estate Private Limited (“Ultraplus”), who holds 54.12% in the 
Company.  
 
9. INFORMATION ON MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 
have occurred during the financial year and from the end of the financial year till the date of this Report. 
 
 
10. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH 
THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:  NIL  
 
11. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF 
ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS 
OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF:  NIL 
 
12. CHANGE IN THE NATURE BUSINESS 
 
 During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the Company’s business. 
 
13.  DIRECTORS AND KMP 
 
The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Director under Section 149 
(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that he meets the criteria of Independence laid down in 
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
requirements) Regulation 2015. 
 
Mr. Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar was appointed as Non-Executive additional director (Independent 
Category) of the company with effect from August 1, 2024 and subsequent his appointment was 
regularized in the 39th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 2024. 
 
Mr. Uttam Kumar Bothra, Non-Executive Director (Independent Category), vacated his office with effect 
from 7th August 2024 upon completion of his tenure as an Independent Director of the Company. 
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Mr. Manoj Kumar Jena, Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the company has resigned from 
the company due to personal reasons with effect from 17th August, 2024. 
 
Mrs. Varsha Gupta has been appointed as a company secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company 
with effect from 12th November, 2024. 
 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company are Mr. Gopal Sridharan, Whole Time Director, Mr. Angalappan Anandakumar Chief Financial 
Officer and Mrs. Varsha Gupta, Company Secretary and Compliance officer. 
 
14. DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
All Independent Directors have given declarations under section 149 (7) that they meet the criteria of 
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). In the opinion of the 
board, the IDs fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made there under for appointment 
as IDs including integrity, expertise and experience and confirm that they are independent of the 
management. All the IDs of the company have registered their names with the data bank of IDs. 
 
15. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an 
annual evaluation of its own performance and of the individual Directors as well as an evaluation of the 
working of all the Committees of the Board. The Board of Directors was assisted by the NRC. The 
performance evaluation was carried out by seeking inputs from all the Directors / Members of the 
Committees, as the case may be. 
 
The Board of the Company followed the criteria as specified in the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) for evaluating the performance of the 
Board as a whole, Committees of the Board, Individual Directors and the Chairman. The criteria for 
evaluation of the Board as a whole, inter alia, covered parameters such as Structure of the Board, 
Meetings of the Board, Functions of the Board and Board & Management. The criteria for evaluation of 
Individual Directors covered parameters such as knowledge and competency, fulfillment of functions, 
ability to function as a team, etc. The criteria for evaluation of the Board Committees covered areas 
related to mandate and composition, effectiveness of the Committee, structure of the Committee and 
meetings, etc.  
 
The feedback of the Independent Directors on their review of the performance of Non-Independent 
Directors and the Board as a whole, the performance of the Chairman of the Company and the 
assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company, the 
Management and the Board which was taken into consideration by the Board in carrying out the 
performance evaluation. 
 
16. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
Independent Directors of the Company met separately on 25th February, 2025 without the presence of 
Non-Independent Directors and members of Management. In accordance with the provisions under 
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Section 149 and Schedule-IV of the Act, following matters were, inter alia, reviewed and discussed in the 
meeting:  
 
i) Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole;  
ii) Performance of the Chairman of the Company taking into consideration the views of Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors;  
iii) Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their 
duties 
 
All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting. 
 
17. POLICY ON APPOIN0TMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) develops the competency requirements of the 
Board based on the industry and the strategy of the Company, conducts a gap analysis and 
recommends the reconstitution of the Board, as and when required. It also recommends to the Board, 
the appointment of Directors having good personal and professional reputation and conducts reference 
checks and due diligence of all Directors before recommending them to the Board. Besides the above, 
the NRC ensures that the new Directors are familiarized with the operations of the Company and 
endeavors to provide relevant training to the Directors. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board 
of Directors has adopted a Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes and a Remuneration Policy. 
The Remuneration policy is also available in the website of the company https://realtouchfiannce.com 
 
The Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes has been framed to encourage diversity of 
thought, experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender in the Board and to have in place, a 
transparent Board nomination process.  
 
The Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMPs and all other employees is aligned to the philosophy on 
the commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust.  
 
The Remuneration Policy aims to ensure that the level and composition of the remuneration of the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is reasonable and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate them to successfully run the Company. 
 
Salient features of the Remuneration Policy, inter alia, include: 
 
   Remuneration in the form of Sitting Fees and Commission to be paid to Independent Directors and 
Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors, in accordance with the provisions of the Act and as 
recommended by the NRC; 
 
     Remuneration to Managing Director / Executive Directors / Key Managerial Personnel and all other 
employees is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them to run the Company 
successfully and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for their roles, in accordance with the 
defined terms of remuneration mix or composition; and 
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     No remuneration would be payable to Directors for services rendered in any other capacity unless 
the services are of a professional nature and the NRC is of the opinion that the Director possesses 
requisite qualification for the practice of the profession and approval of the Central Government has 
been received, if required, for paying the same. 
 
18. DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  
 
In compliance with section 134(5) of the companies Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 
knowledge and ability, confirm that: 
 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as per the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"), 
other relevant provisions of the Act, guidelines issued by Regulators as applicable to an NBFC and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India have been followed and that there are no material 
departures there from. 
 
b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and cash flows of the Company for the year; 
 
c) they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 
d) they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
 
e) they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls were adequate and operating effectively; and 
 
f) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Act. 
 
19. REPORTING OF FRAUDS 
 
Directors of your Company hereby state and confirm that there were ‘nil’ frauds reported by the 
Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
20. REMUNERATION TO THE DIRECTORS/KMP 
 
S.No. Names 

 
 

Designation Remuneration 
/sitting fees 
in 2024-2025 
(Amount in 
lakhs) 

Remuneration
/sitting fees 
in 2023-
24(Amount in 
lakhs) 

1.  Mr.  Gopal Sridharan Whole Time  Director 29.48 47.70 
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2.  Mr. Somnath Sarkar Independent Director  0.60 0.29 
3.  Mr. Sundaresan 

Sampathkumar  
Non-executive Director 0.45 0.18 

4.  Mr. Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal Independent Director 1.05 0.05 
5.  Ms. Padmini Ceruseri 

Srikanth 
Non-executive Director  0.35 0.05 

6.  Mr. Muthusamy 
Ganeshkumar 

Independent Director 
(appointed w.e.f 01-08-2024) 

0.50 - 

7.  Ms. Sweta Ghorawat Non-executive Director 
(resigned w.e.f 14-02-2024) 

- 0.08 

8.  Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Independent Director (Tenure 
Completion on 07-08-2024) 
 

0.55 0.43 

9.  Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sethia Independent Director (Tenure 
Completion w.e.f 31-12-
2024) 

- 0.43 

10.  Mr. Angalappan 
Anandakumar 

Chief Financial officer  10.25 2.25 

11.  Mr. Arindam Laha Chief Financial officer 
(resigned w.e.f  23-12-2023) 

- 0.72 

12.  Ms. Varsha Gupta Company Secretary 
(appointed w.e.f 12-11-2024) 

3.80 - 

13.  Mr. Manoj Kumar Jena Company Secretary (resigned 
W.e.f. 17-08-2024 

7.81 2.98 

14.  Ms. Priyanka Singh Company Secretary (resigned 
w.e.f. 23-12-2023) 

- 1.8 

 
21. DEPOSITS 
 
The Company did not hold any deposits at the beginning of the year, nor has it accepted any deposits 
during the year under review. 
 
22. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

In terms of Regulations 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
requirements) Regulation 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is presented separately 
in the Annual Report under the section titled “Management Discussion and Analysis.” 

 
23. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

In compliance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), a report on Corporate Governance 
forms part of this Annual Report. The Corporate Governance Report includes, inter alia, details on the 
composition and category of Directors, number of Board meetings held during the year, composition of 
various committees of the Board, annual evaluation of the Board and its committees, nomination and 
remuneration policy, criteria for appointment of Directors and senior management, vigil 
mechanism/whistle blower policy, and disclosures on relationships between Directors inter-se and other 
statutory disclosures. 
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In accordance with Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Executive Director(s) have submitted 
a compliance certificate to the Board in respect of the financial statements and other matters, which is 
also included in the Corporate Governance section of this Annual Report. 

 
24. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Board periodically reviews the risks which are associated with business objectives, growth, talent, 
aspects etc., and actions are being taken to mitigate those risks then and there. 
 
25. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES 
 
The Equity shares of the Company have been listed on the BSE Limited. The Company has paid 
applicable listing fees to the Stock Exchange and Depositories within stipulated time. 
  
26. DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES 
 
Out of 1,26,92,690 equity shares 1,21,17,740 shares constituting 95.47% of the Company’s paid up 
Equity share Capital is in dematerialized form as on 31/03/2025 and the balance are in physical form. 
The Company’s registrar is M/s Niche Technologies Private Limited having their registered office at 3A, 
Auckland Road, 7th Floor, Kolkata – 700017. 
 
27. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 
 
The Board of Directors duly met Seven times during the Financial Year under review. The gap between 
any two meetings did not exceed 120 days as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Particulars of the Directors’ attendance to the Meetings during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, 
are given below: 
 
Name of the 
Director 

No. of Board Meeting held, and attended, during tenure 
 

Attendance 
at the Last 
AGM Held 

on  
30/09/2025 

 29th 
April 
2024 

22nd 
May 
2024 

 1st 
August 
2024 

 12th 
Novembe
r 2024 

 4th 
January 
2025 

30th 
January 
2025 

25th 
February 
2025 

 

Mr. Gopal 
Sridharan 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mrs. Padmini 
Ceruseri 
Srikanth 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. 
Sundaresan 
Sampathkuma
r 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Somnath 
Sarkar 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
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Mr. Ratnesh 
Kumar 
Agrawal 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

*Mr. 
Muthusamy 
Ganeshkumar 

NA NA Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

**Mr Ujjawal 
Kumar Bothra 

Yes Yes Yes NA NA NA NA NA 

* Mr. Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar was appointed on 1st August 2024 
* * Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Tenure was completed as Independent Director on 7th August 2024 
 
28. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
 
During the period under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by any regulator or 
court or tribunal impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 
 
29. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY 
 
The detail in respect of Internal Financial Control and their adequacy are included in the Management 
and Discussion Analysis report which forms part of the financial Statements.  
 
30. COMMITTEES 
 
The details of composition of the Board and its Committees, terms of reference of the Committees and 
the details of meetings held during the financial year are furnished in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
31. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 
In accordance with the provision of section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder, M/s. P.D Randar & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN NO.319295E),, Chartered Accountants, 
was re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 37th Annual General meeting of the 
Company held 28th September 2022 for a term of five years till the conclusion of Annual General 
Meeting to be held on year 2027. However, M/s. P.D Randar & co, Chartered Accountants (FRN 
NO.319295E), has tender their resignation as the statutory Auditor of the company, stating the reason of 
resignation that the majority of transaction of company being conducted in Southern part of India 
basically from Chennai and all related documents are maintained at Chennai office. Hence, it has become 
operationally difficult to effectively carry out audit and quarterly review of financial statement from our 
current office which is located in Kolkata. Hence they resign from the post of statutory auditor resulting 
in a casual vacancy in the office of the Auditors of the company w.e.f 31st July, 2025 as per section 139(8) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.  
  
Accordingly based on the recommendations of Audit Committee and confirmation received from M/s. 
G.S. Chugh & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 008884C) on their eligibility, the 
Board recommends to the members for the appointment of M/s. G.S. Chugh & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 008884C) as the statutory Auditors of the company for a period of 
three years, from the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 43rd Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. 
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The Report of the Statutory Auditors received from of M/s. P.D Randar & co, Chartered Accountants 
(FRN NO.319295E) with an unmodified opinion to the members is annexed and forms part of the 
financial statements and the same does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or 
disclaimer. There were no frauds detected or reported by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
Secretarial Auditor: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and regulation 24A of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, the Company has appointed M/s. S 
Sandeep & Associates, Company Secretary in practice to undertake the secretarial audit of the 
Company. The Report of secretarial audit is annexed Annexure - B to this Report. 
 
Internal Auditor 
 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the  Act, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s. PKC & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditors of the Company to undertake the Internal 
Audit of the Company for FY 2024-25.  
 
Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance:- 
 
As required by SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 the auditors’ 
certificate on corporate governance forms part of the corporate governance Report enclosed there. 
 
32. EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 
As per Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the annual return of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025 is available at the web address: 
https://realtouchfinance.com/investor-info.html 
 
33. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT  
 
Maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of 
section 148(1) of the Act is not applicable for the business activities carried out by your Company. 
 
34. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY 
 
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, as notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Act. 
Further, the Company follows the Master Directions issued by RBI for NBFCs. 
 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention. 
The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statement. 
 
35. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE    EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO 
 A.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
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Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy The operations of the Company are not 
energy intensive. However, wherever possible, 
the Company strives to curtail the 
consumption of energy on a continuing basis. 

Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of 
energy 
Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
Efforts made towards technology absorption  

 
 

                    Not Applicable 

Benefits derived like product improvement 
Expenditure on Research & Development if any 
Details of technology imported if any 
Whether imported Absorbed 
Areas where absorption of imported technology 
has not taken place, if any 
 
B. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO: 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, there were no foreign currency outgo and no foreign 
currency earnings. 
 
36. DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE 
ACT READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
 
A Statement giving the details required under Section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, for the year ended 
March 31, 2025, is annexed as Annexure-A.)  
 
The details required under Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, for the year ended March 31, 2025, are provided in a separate 
Annexure forming part of this Report. In terms of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the 
Report and the Accounts, excluding the aforesaid Annexure, are being sent only through electronic 
mode to all the Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company. Any shareholder 
interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary through email-
cs@realtouchfinance.com. None of the employees listed in the said Annexure is related to any Director 
of the Company. 
 
37. RECEIPT OF REMUNERATION OR COMMISSION BY THE MANAGING / WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 
FROM ITS HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY  
 
During the year under reporting, the Directors of the company were not paid any remuneration by its 
holding Company Ultraplus Housing Private Limited. 
 
38. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT (BRSR):  
 
The Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the Company for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2025. 
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39. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 on CSR do not apply to the company  
 
40. VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for its Directors and employees to report their 
concerns or grievances. The said mechanism, inter alia, encompasses the Whistle Blower Policy, the 
Fraud Risk Management Process, the mechanism for reporting of ethical concerns. The Company has a 
whistle blower policy to report genuine concerns or grievances. Your company hereby affirms that 
no complaint was received during the year. 
 
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Company has adopted a Policy and a Framework on Related Party Transactions (“RPTs”) for the 
purpose of identification, monitoring and approving such transactions in line with the requirements of 
the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. During the year under review, the RPT Policy had been 
amended to, inter alia; include the amendments of the SEBI Listing Regulations.  
 
All the RPTs that were entered into during FY 2024-25, were in ordinary course of business and on an 
arm’s length basis. There were material transactions requiring disclosure under Section 134(3)(h) of the 
Act. The disclosures in prescribed Form AOC–2 forms a part of this Annual Report as Annexure-C. 
 
The details of RPTs as required to be disclosed by Indian Accounting Standard – 24 on “Related Party 
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Rules 
Standards) Rules, 2015, are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
42. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
The board has laid down a “Code of Conduct” for all the Board Members and the senior management of 
the Company and the same has been posted on the website of the Company.  
 
All Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Company’s 
code of conduct for the financial year 2024-25. A declaration to this effect is included in Corporate 
Governance report forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
43. CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 
 
The Company has adopted a Company’s Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI) to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders in 
securities of the Company. The board has further approved policy governing the procedure of inquiry in 
case of actual or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive information. The code has also been 
hosted on the website of the Company. 
 
44. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
The Company is in compliance with SS – 1 i.e. Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors 
and SS – 2 i.e. Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India. 
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45. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
Your company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual and 
endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment 
including sexual harassment. 
During the year under review, your company has not received any complaints pertaining to sexual 
harassment. 

  

Particulars 

 

Number of Complaints Received during the 
Financial year 2024-2025 

The number of sexual harassment 
complaints received during the year 

0 

The number of such complaints disposed 
of during the year 

0 

The number of cases pending for a period 
exceeding ninety days. 

0 

 

The company has adopted the revised POSH policies at the board meeting held on 1st July, 2022. The 
Internal Committee was reconstituted and restructured in line with that of the group companies and is 
as following: 
 

S. No. Name of IC Member Designation within IC Designation within Organisation 

    1. Mahaboobi B Chairperson Junior Deputy Operational Manager 

    2. Kamatchi H Member Associate Customer Manager 

    3. Purushottaman R Member State Operations Manager 

 
 
46. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 
The details of Loans, Investments, Guarantees and Securities provided in connection with any loan falling 
under the purview of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is furnished under notes to financial 
statements. 
 
47. COMPLIANCE WITH RBI GUIDELINES: 

 
   The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) as a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking 

Financial Company (“NBFC”) and is classified as a Base Layer NBFC under the Master Direction – Reserve 
Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023. Company 
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has duly complied with the applicable regulations from time to time and there are no material non-
compliances with respect to aforesaid regulations. 
 
48. COMPLIANCE WITH MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961 
 
The Company is fully committed to supporting its women employees and ensuring their well-being 
during maternity. In compliance with the provisions of The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, the Company 
provides comprehensive maternity benefits as mandated by law. These benefits include, but are not 
limited to, paid maternity leave, medical bonus, and other facilities designed to ensure a supportive 
environment for expectant and new mothers. Our commitment extends to fostering an inclusive 
workplace that respects and accommodates the needs of our women employees. 
 
49. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
Directors deeply acknowledge the trust and confidence you have placed in the company. Director would 
also like to thank all its Banker, Customer, Vendors and Shareholders for their continued support to the 
Company. In specific, the Board would also record its sincere appreciation of the Commitment and 
Contribution made by all employees of the Company. 
 
50. CAUTIONARY NOTE 
 
The statement forming part of Director’s report may contain certain forward looking remarks within the 
meaning of applicable Securities Law and regulations. Many factors could cause the actual results, 
performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results, 
performances or achievements that may be expressed or implied by such forward looking statements.  
 
 
Place: Chennai 
Date:  04/08/2025                                                                      BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD  
                                                                                                     REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED 
 
 

                                               
                         SD/-                                                                SD/- 

 
                                            Sundaresan Sampathkumar                             Gopal Sridharan 
                                            Director                                                           Whole Time Director                                                     
                                            DIN: 08832266                                                DIN: 09460423 
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                                                                                                                                          ANNEXURE-A  
 
Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rules 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of the Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 
 
A. Ratio of remuneration to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for 
the FY 2024-2025 as well as the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief 
Financial Officer and Company Secretary is as under:- 
 
Name of the KMP Ratio to Median Remuneration 

Whole time Director 
Mr. Gopal Sridharan  22.99 
Company Secretary 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Jena (Resigned w.e.f. 17th August 
2024) 

 6.26 

Mrs. Varsha Gupta (Appointed w.e.f. 12th November 
2024) 

                                         3.06 

Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Angalappan Anandakumar   8.17 
 
B. Number of Permanent Employees (Including KMP) - 54 
 
C. Explanation on the relationship between average Increase in remuneration and Company 
Performance 
The Compensation and Benefits philosophy of the Company defines that employee remuneration is to 
be aligned with performance of the Company and individual’s contribution in achieving company’s 
goal for the Year. It does mean that Post annual performance process, individual employee’s 
remuneration is revised, taking into account performance of the Company and of the individual 
employee. At the beginning of the Year, Business goals are decided and cascaded down to various 
businesses and functions. While effecting revision in remuneration, factors like internal and external 
parity, market competitiveness, company’s overall business strategy are also taken into account. 
 
D. Comparison of the remuneration of the KMP against Performance of the Company 
 

Aggregate Remuneration of Key Managerial Person KMP in FY 2024-2025 (In Lakhs)  51.90 
 

Revenue (In Lakhs)  2887.27 

Remuneration of KMP (as % of Revenue) 1.80% 

Profit Before Tax (In Lakhs )  566.48 

Remuneration of KMP (as % of PBT) 9.16% 
 
E. Comparison of average Percentage increase in salary of Employees other than Managerial 
Personnel :- 9.60% 

 
F. Comparison of Remuneration of Each of the KMP against performance of the Company 
 
Particulars Mr. Gopal 

Sridharan 
Mr. Angalappan 
Anandakumar 

Mr. Manoj Kumar 
          Jena 

Mrs. Varsha 
Gupta 

 Whole Time 
   Director 

Chief Financial 
            Officer  

Company 
Secretary 

Company 
Secretary 
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resigned  
w.e.f. 17/08/2024 
 

appointed  
w.e.f. 
12/11/2024 

Remuneration in FY 
2024-25 (In Lakhs) 

               29.48             10.47 8.03 3.93 

Revenue (In Lakhs) 2887.27 
Remuneration of   
KMP   (as   %  of 
Revenue) 

1.02 0.36         0.28  0.14 

Profit Before Tax (In 
Lakhs) 

  566.48 

Remuneration of KMP 
(as % of PBT) 

5.20 1.85        1.42  0.69 

 

G. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of employee who are 
not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the Highest paid director during the Year: NIL 
 

Name Position Total 
Remuneration 
(In Lakhs) 

% of remuneration 
in excess of highest 
paid Director 

Mr. Gopal Sridharan Whole Time Director 29.48 N.A. 
Mr. Angalappan 
Anandakumar 

Chief Financial Officer  10.47 - 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Jena Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f 
17/08/2024) 

8.03                 - 

Mrs. Varsha Gupta Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f 
12/11/2024) 

3.93                 - 

Mr. Gopal Sridharan is the highest paid Director at a Remuneration of Rs. 29.48 lakhs during the 
Year 2024-25. 
 
H. Affirmation 
 
It is affirmed that remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees is 
as per the Remuneration policy of the Company.  
                                                                                                    By order of the Board 
                                                                                             For Real Touch Finance Limited 
Place: Chennai 
Date:  04/08/2025                                                                                                                      

                                                            SD/-                                                                SD/- 
                                                        Sundaresan Sampathkumar                             Gopal Sridharan 
                                                                         Director                                                 Whole Time Director                                                     
                                                                     DIN: 08832266                                                DIN: 09460423 
                                                                                     
Registered Office: Arihant Enclave,                                                                
Ground Floor, 493B/57A, G.T Road (South),  
Shibpur, Howrah, West Bengal, India, 711102 
 
Corporate Branch Office: Khivraj Complex 1 3rd Floor,  
No 480 Anna Salai, Nandanam, Chennai,   
Tamil Nadu, India, 600035 
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                                                                                                                                   ANNEXURE-B 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Real Touch Finance Limited 
CIN: L01111WB1997PLC085164 
Arihant Enclave, Ground Floor, 
493B/57A, G.T Road (South),  
Shibpur, Howrah,  
West Bengal -711102  
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED (CIN: 
L01111WB1997PLC085164) (hereinafter called “the Company”).  The Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of M/s. REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED’s books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial Audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the 
Management, and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended March 31, 2025, generally, has complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions 
of : 
 
a. Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  
 
b. Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
c. Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder. 
 
d. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. The Company does not have 
any Overseas Direct Investment: 
 
e. The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’), and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as amended from time to time: 
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 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, 
regarding Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015; 
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015; 
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021;  
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011; Not Applicable for the year under review. 
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable for 
the year under review. 
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 
2021; Not Applicable for the year under review. 
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements), 2018;  
 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; Not applicable 
for the year under review. 
 
f. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, RBI Directions and Guidelines as applicable to the NBFCs , The 
Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 as amended from time to time. 
 
g. Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based 
Regulations) Directions, 2023, as amended from time to time. 
 
2. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 
a. Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings 
(SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India  
 
b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited as per the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for listing 
of its Equity Shares; 
 
3. We further report that, during the period under review, the Company has, in our opinion, complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, subject 
to the Company obtaining requisite approvals for material related party transactions under applicable 
laws and regulations.  
 
4. We further report that: 
 
a. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were changes in the composition 
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review except the completion of 
tenure of Independent Director- Mr Ujjawal Kumar Bothra (08528545) on 7th August, 2024, appointment 
of Independent Non-Executive Director – Mr Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar (10727209) on 30th September 
2024, Appointment of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer Mrs. Varsha Gupta on 12th November 
2024, Reappointment of Whole Time Director- Mr Gopal Sridharan (09460423), Reappointment of Non-
Executive Director- Mr Sunderashan Sampathkumar (08832266) 
 
b. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent in advance and a proper system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation 
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at the meeting; 
 
c. As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the 
Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 
 
5. We further report that based on the information received, records maintained and representation 
received, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines. 
 
6. We further report that during the period under review, no events / actions having a major bearing on 
the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, 
etc. referred to above have been taken place. except the following: 
 
 The Company has passed a special resolution under section 149, 150 and 152 of the Act at the annual 
general meeting held on 30th September 2024 to consider and approve the appointment of Mr. 
Muthusamy Ganeshkumar (DIN:10727209) as an Independent Non-executive Director. 
 
 The Company has passed an ordinary resolution under section 152(6) of the Act at the annual 
general meeting held on 30th September 2024 to consider and approve the reappointment of Mr. 
Sundaresan Sampathkumar (DIN: 08832266) as Non-executive director 
 
 The Company has passed a special resolution under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 for formulation and implementation of 
Employee Stock Option. Plan, viz., "Real Touch Finance Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2024" 
  
 The Company has passed a special resolution under section 71 of the Act for issuance upto 2,200 
number of 11% Unlisted Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs) at a face value INR 
1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakhs only) aggregating up to INR 22,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twenty 
Two Crores only) for a on private placement basis. 
 
 The Company has passed a special resolution under section 42, 71 of the Act for Offer or invitation to 
subscribe to Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on private placement basis 
 
  

For S Sandeep & Associates 
 

SD/- 
  S Sandeep 

Managing Partner 
Place: Chennai                                                                                             FCS No.: 5853 
Date: 5th June 2025                                                                                            CoP No.: 5987 

           PR No: 6526/2025 
UDIN: F005853F000547427 

 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as Annexure I and forms an 
integral part of this report.  
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                                                                                                                                             ‘Annexure I’ 

To, 
The Members, 
Real Touch Finance Limited 
CIN: L01111WB1997PLC085164 
Arihant Enclave, Ground Floor, 
493B/57A, G.T Road (South),  
Shibpur, Howrah,  
West Bengal - 711102 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of accounts 
of the company. 
 
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 
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Annexure - C 
FORM NO. AOC.2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transactions under third proviso thereto: 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 

NIL 

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 
c. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions 
d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: 
e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 
f. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 
g. Amount paid as advances, if any: 

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first 
proviso to section 188 

  
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis 

a. 
Name(s) of the related 
party 

M/s. Khivraj 
Automobile and 

Infrastructure Private 
Limited 

M/s. Khivrajkamal 
Motors Private Limited 

M/s. Khivraj Motors 
Private Limited 

b. Nature of relationship 
Enterprise over which 
Promoters have 
significant influence 

Enterprise over which 
Promoters have 
significant influence 

Enterprise over which 
Promoters have 
significant influence 

c. 
Nature of 
contracts/arrangemen
ts/transactions 

All such transactions are 
in ordinary course of 
business and on Arm’s 
length basis 

All such transactions are 
in ordinary course of 
business and on Arm’s 
length basis 

All such transactions are 
in ordinary course of 
business and on Arm’s 
length basis 

d. 
Duration of the 
contracts/arrangemen
ts/transactions 

 
3 years 3 years 

 
3 years 

e. 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions including 
the value, if any: 

 
Inter Corporate Loans 

(For details of amount of 
transactions during the 
year refer, Note no. 34.2  

of Audited Financial 
Statements.) 

Term Loan Given (For 
details of amount of 

transactions during the 
year refer, Note no. 34.2  

of Audited Financial 
Statements.) 

 
Inter Corporate Loan, 
Optionally Convertible 
Debentures (For details 

of amount of 
transactions during the 
year refer, Note no. 34.2  

of Audited Financial 
Statements.) 

f. 
Date(s) of approval by 
the Board, if any: 29th April 2024 29th April 2024 29th April 2024 

g. 
Amount paid as 
advances, if any: Nil Nil Nil 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Real Touch Finance Limited is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve 
Bank of India (RBI). The company offers a wide range of financial services, including Loan against 
Property (LAP), Personal Loans, and Structured Loans to Micro and Small Enterprises, along with 
financing in the Real Estate sector and funding to other NBFCs into impact lending Space. 

Headquartered in Kolkata, Real Touch Finance operates across West Bengal and Tamil Nadu. In line with 
its growth strategy and expansion plans, the company has established several branch offices across 
Tamil Nadu, including locations such as Chennai, Kancheepuram, Thiruvallur, Villupuram, Areni, 
Vandavasi, Chengalpattu, Thiruvannamalai, and Tindivanam. 

India’s economy has experienced robust growth in recent years, driven by several key factors such as 
structural reforms, increased public and private investment, a thriving digital economy, and a focus on 
financial inclusion. These developments have contributed significantly to the growth of the NBFC sector, 
providing new opportunities to expand their footprint and serve a broader customer base. 

Business Environment 
 
1. Global Economic Overview 

The global economy has continued its recovery through 2024 into 2025, with the IMF projecting a stable 
GDP growth of around 3.0%, supported by easing inflation, recovering global trade, and improving 
investor and consumer confidence. Advanced economies are expected to grow at a modest pace of 
1.4%–1.5%, while emerging markets, particularly India, are forecast to expand at a stronger rate of 3.7%–
3.9%, driven by domestic consumption, digital innovation, and structural reforms. These macroeconomic 
trends present significant growth opportunities for NBFCs, especially in core lending products such as 
Loan Against Property (LAP), real estate loans, and personal loans, where credit demand remains strong 
across self-employed, MSME, and retail segments. The rapid acceleration of digital payments and fintech 
adoption—led by India’s UPI ecosystem processing over 18 billion monthly transactions—is 
transforming credit delivery, enabling NBFCs to expand reach through data-driven underwriting and 
digital platforms. Simultaneously, rising urbanization and stable real estate demand are supporting LAP 
and mortgage-backed financing, while evolving consumer behavior continues to drive demand for 
unsecured personal loans. However, global risks such as elevated debt levels, interest rate volatility, 
geopolitical tensions, and regulatory oversight remain key challenges. Despite this, the strong 
fundamentals of the Indian economy, combined with increasing financial inclusion and technology-
driven lending models, position NBFCs for sustained growth and deeper market penetration in the years 
ahead. 

2. Indian Economic Overview 

India’s economy continues to demonstrate strong momentum, emerging as one of the fastest-growing 
major economies globally. For FY 2025, GDP growth is projected in the range of 6.5%–6.8%, supported 
by robust domestic demand, rising private consumption, and sustained government initiatives focused 
on infrastructure development and manufacturing. This favorable macroeconomic environment, along 
with improved credit offtake and increasing financial inclusion through digital channels, offers a strong 
platform for Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) to expand their lending portfolios across both 
secured and unsecured segments. 

Demand for Loan Against Property (LAP) has remained resilient, driven by increasing property valuations 
and the financing needs of self-employed individuals and Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
(MSMEs). Similarly, the Personal Loan segment has witnessed substantial growth, propelled by rising 
consumer aspirations, higher discretionary spending, and the proliferation of digitally enabled lending 
platforms. 
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Structured financing to Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) is also gaining traction, supported by policy 
frameworks such as the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) and the Credit Guarantee 
Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE). These developments have underscored the critical 
role NBFCs play in addressing the credit gap often left by traditional banking institutions. 

The real estate sector has shown signs of sustained recovery, especially in residential and affordable 
housing segments, with increasing demand from Tier II and Tier III cities. This has created a steady 
pipeline for NBFCs engaged in project financing, developer funding, and construction-linked lending. 

An emerging and strategically important segment is product funding to other NBFCs operating in the 
impact lending space. These are institutions focused on socially responsible financing—supporting 
sectors such as education, healthcare, clean energy, and microfinance. By extending capital to these 
impact-focused NBFCs, larger institutions like Real Touch Finance Limited enable deeper financial 
penetration into underserved communities and promote inclusive economic development. 

Despite these opportunities, the sector must remain vigilant to challenges such as elevated interest 
rates, inflationary pressures, and asset quality risks. Prudent underwriting practices, strong risk 
management frameworks, and regulatory compliance will be key to sustaining growth. Nonetheless, the 
increasing formalization of the economy, expansion of digital infrastructure, and the sector’s ability to 
deliver agile, customized financial solutions position NBFCs as pivotal enablers in India’s next phase of 
economic growth. 

3. Non-Banking Financial Sector – Overview 

The Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) sector in India continues to play a pivotal role in bridging 
the credit gap, particularly in segments underserved by traditional banks, such as self-employed 
individuals, micro and small enterprises (MSEs), and semi-urban and rural borrowers. During FY 2024–25, 
the sector has entered a phase of renewed growth and structural strengthening, building on the 
consolidation efforts and regulatory recalibrations of the previous year. The industry benefited from 
robust credit demand across personal loans, loan against property (LAP), MSME financing, and real 
estate lending, driven by rising consumer confidence, improved formalization of small businesses, and 
increased urban housing demand. 

Asset quality has continued to improve, with Gross Non-Performing Assets (GNPA) ratios declining 
steadily, supported by enhanced underwriting standards, digitized risk assessment tools, and portfolio 
diversification strategies. Capital adequacy and liquidity positions remain strong, enabling NBFCs to 
maintain lending momentum despite elevated borrowing costs and tighter financial conditions. 
Regulatory measures introduced by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)—such as strengthened norms on 
asset classification, capital provisioning, and liquidity coverage—have significantly improved 
transparency, governance, and operational discipline across the sector. 

However, NBFCs continue to face headwinds, including rising cost of funds, competitive pressure from 
both banks and fintechs, and the need for continuous investment in digital transformation to meet 
evolving customer expectations. The growing adoption of digital lending platforms, API-based 
integrations, and data-driven credit models has become a strategic imperative to enhance customer 
reach, reduce turnaround time, and improve operating efficiency. Overall, the NBFC sector in FY 2024–25 
is well-positioned to grow sustainably, driven by a resilient domestic economy, favorable credit demand, 
and a more robust regulatory foundation, while also navigating the challenges of an increasingly 
competitive and tech-driven financial ecosystem. 

Company’s Financial Performance –FY 2024-25 
 
S. No. Particulars 2024-2025 (In lakhs ) 2023-2024(In 

lakhs ) 
1. Gross Income 2887.27 1888.27 
2. Profit Before Interest and Depreciation 658.50 466.64 
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and Provisions and Contingencies 
3. Finance Cost 1420.08 936.02 
4. Depreciation and Amortisation 29.48 26.13 

5. Provisions and Contingencies 
 

62.54 47.77 

6. Profit Before Tax 566.48 392.74 
7. Tax Expense 105.46 129.44 
8. Profit After tax 461.02 263.30 
9. Other Comprehensive Income  

Items that will not  be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss 

1.15 0.07 

10. Transfer to Statutory Reserve as per RBI 
Guidelines 

92.43 52.67 

11. Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares - - 

12. Balance Brought forward from Balance 
Sheet 

1299.92 1089.22 

13. Balance carried forward to Balance 
Sheet 

1669.69 1299.92 

 
Other Functions – A Brief Overview 
 
4. Risk management 
 
The Company has built a robust risk management framework with strong risk fundamentals and 
continues to monitor the internal and external risks arising out of macro-economic factors, regulatory 
changes and geo-political scenario. The Board of Directors has set the tone at the top by laying down 
and approving the strategic plans and objectives for Risk Management and Risk Philosophy.  
 
A comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Framework has been adopted by the Company 
which uses defined Key Risk Indicators based on quantitative and qualitative factors. A two-dimensional 
quantitative data management tool - Heat Map – has been implemented, which enables the 
Management to have a comprehensive view of various identified risk areas based on their probability 
and impact.  
 
Changes in internal and external operating environment, digitalization, technological advancements and 
agile way of working have increased the significance of Fraud, Information Cyber Security and 
Operational Risks. The Company continues to focus on increasing operational resilience and mitigation 
of these risks.  
 
5. Internal Audit 
 
Your Company’s internal audit department independently evaluates the adequacy of control measures 
on a periodic basis and recommends improvements, wherever appropriate to suit the changes in 
business and control environment. The effectiveness and efficiency of the controls, and the design are 
regularly measured through process reviews and risk assessment. The internal audit department is 
staffed by qualified and experienced personnel and reports directly to the Audit Committee of the 
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Board.  The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings as well as the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the internal control measures.   
 
Additionally, an Information Security Assurance Service is also provided by independent external 
professionals. Based on their recommendations, the Company has implemented a number of control 
measures both in operational and IT-related areas, apart from information security related measures.  
 
Your Company has rolled out Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA) Policy with effect from 1st April 2022 as 
required by the RBI.  The primary focus of Risk Based Internal Audit is to provide reasonable assurance 
to the Board and the Senior Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk 
management and control framework of the Company.  The internal audit function assesses and 
contributes to the overall improvement of the organization’s governance, risk management, and control 
processes using a systematic and disciplined approach. Audits are conducted encompassing all the 
functional areas of the branch network and Head office in such a manner that it serves as an important 
tool of internal control. 
 
6. Human Resources 
 
The group’s people mission to nurture and empower employees who demonstrate both honesty and 
high performance in a fair and transparent environment. 
 
Cautionary Statement 
 
Statement made in this MD&A describing the group’s objectives, projections, estimates, general market 
trends, expectations etc., may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the ambit of applicable 
laws and regulations. These ‘forward looking statements’ involve a number of risks, uncertainties and 
other factors that could cause actual results differ materially from those suggested by the ‘forward 
looking statement’.                                               
 

 
                                                                                                      By order of the Board 
                                                                                                FOR Real Touch Finance Limited 
Place: Chennai 
Date:  04/08/2025                                                                                                                      

                                                            SD/-                                                                SD/- 
 

                                                        Sundaresan Sampathkumar                             Gopal Sridharan 
                                                              Director                                                 Whole Time Director                                                     
                                                          DIN: 08832266                                                DIN: 09460423 
                                                                                     
Registered Office: Arihant Enclave,                                                                
Ground Floor, 493B/57A, G.T Road (South),  
Shibpur, Howrah, West Bengal, India, 711102 
 
Corporate Branch Office: Khivraj Complex 1 3rd Floor,  
No 480 Anna Salai, Nandanam, Chennai,   
Tamil Nadu, India, 600035 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
(1) Company’s Philosophy 
 
The Company’s policies, practices and philosophy adopted since inception are in line with Corporate 
Governance. These policies, practices are required periodically to ensure its effective compliance. The 
Composition of Board of Directors is well balanced with a view to manage the affairs of the Company 
efficiently and professionally.  
 
(2) Board of Directors 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors who have in depth knowledge of the business. The Board of Director consists of 
Six Directors. 
 
The corporate governance practices of the Company ensure that the board of directors remains 
informed, independent and involved in the Company and that there are ongoing efforts towards better 
governance to mitigate risks.  
  
Mr. Gopal Sridharan 
 
Mr. Gopal Sridharan, 50 years old is a Science Graduate from Madras University and PGDM (Applied 
Finance) from IIM, Calcutta. Mr. Sridharan has over 22 years of rich experience in the finance industry 
with the leading institutions like ICICI bank, Reliance capital and InCred Financial Service Limited. He has 
sound knowledge about Retail and SME loan products. In his last assignment as Director Sales (SME), he 
played a significant role in setting up the complete Secured business loan vertical for InCred. Later, he 
was elevated to handle unsecured business loans and Loan against property.  He has managed an AUM 
880 Cr., and it was one of the most profitable businesses for InCred. He won many accolades in his 
professional carrier, including the Best People Manager award from Reliance Capital. 
 
The Board and shareholders have approved his appointment as Whole Time Director in the Company 
with effect from 6th January 2022. Mr. Gopal Sridharan is very energetic, experienced and competent 
personnel to hold the position of Executive Director of the Company. He shall not be paid any sitting 
fees for attending the Board Meeting and Committees thereof. He does not hold by himself or for any 
other person on a beneficial basis any shares in the Company.  
 
Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. Gopal Sridharan is a Director – NIL 
 
No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 – 2 Committees 
 
Mr. Somnath Sarkar 
 
Mr. Somnath Sarkar has experience of over 18 years in the field of Accounts and also he is a reputed 
businessman in the field of finance and marketing having a clear business vision and practicing hands-
off approach. 
 
He does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 
 
Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. Somnath Sarkar is a Director – NIL 
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No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 – 1 Committees 
 
Mr. Sundaresan Sampathkumar 
 
Mr. Sundaresan Sampathkumar is Master in Science and post graduate in Diploma Management. He has 
over 40 years of rich experience in middle and senior Management in Automobile, Retail and Real Estate 
sector and also has an experience of over 12 Years in the field of Accounts and Marketing. His 
Knowledge will be valuable to the company. 
 
He does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 
 
Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. Sundaresan Sampathkumar is a Director – Castle 
Traders Limited 
 
No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 – NIL 
 
Smt. Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth 
 
Smt. Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth has been appointed as Women Non-Executive Director. She is aged 
about 60 years is a Master of Commerce from Madurai Kamaraj University and an Intermediate Qualified 
Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountant India. She is a seasoned professional 
with more than three decades of rich experience in the field of finance, accounts, indirect taxation and 
statutory compliance.  
 
She does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 
 
Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Smt. Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth is a Director - NIL 
 
No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 – NIL 
 
Mr.  Muthusamy Ganeshkumar 
 
Mr. Muthusamy Ganeshkumar, aged about 51 years has been appointed as Non- executive Independent 
director with effect from 01st August 2024.  He is a Master of Business Administration from the 
University of Madras, Chennai and having over 25 years rich experience in the field of Sales, Marketing 
and retail finances. He has held various leadership positions in various companies. 
 
The Board thinks that Mr. Muthusamy Ganeshkumar shall be competent professional to continue as 
Independent Director of the Company. 
 
He does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 
 
Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. Muthusamy Ganeshkumar is a Director-NIL 
 
No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 – 3 Committees 
 
Mr. Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal 
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Mr. Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal aged about 67 years has been appointed as a Non-executive Independent  
director. He holds Master Degree in Commerce from the University of Rajasthan, Jaipur. He has 39 years 
of rich work experience in Senior Management level in various Companies in Automobiles, Retail and 
Real Estate sector. 
 
He does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 
 
Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal is a Director-  Castle 
Traders Limited 
 
No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 – 3 Committees 
 
(3) Meetings and Attendance 
 
The Meeting of the Board is generally held at the registered office of the Company at “Arihant Enclave” 
493B/57A G.T. Road (South), Shibpur, Howrah - 711102. During the financial year under review, Seven (7) 
Board meetings were held on 29.04.2024, 22.05.2024, 01.08.2024, 12.11.2024, 04.01.2025, 30.01.2025, 
25.02.2025 and not more than 120 days elapsed between any two meetings. 
 
Particulars of the Directors’ attendance to the Meetings during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, 
are given below: 
Name of the 
Director 

No. of Board Meeting held, and attended, during tenure 
 

Attendance 
at the Last 
AGM Held 

on  
30/09/2025 

 29th 
April 
2024 

22nd 
May 
2024 

 1st 
August 
2024 

 12th 
Novembe
r 2024 

 4th 
January 
2025 

30th 
January 
2025 

25th 
February 
2025 

 

Mr. Gopal 
Sridharan 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mrs. Padmini 
Ceruseri 
Srikanth 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. 
Sundaresan 
Sampathkuma
r 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Somnath 
Sarkar 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Ratnesh 
Kumar 
Agrawal 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

*Mr. 
Muthusamy 
Ganeshkumar 

NA NA Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

**Mr Ujjawal 
Kumar Bothra 

Yes Yes Yes NA NA NA NA NA 

 
* Mr. Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar was appointed on 1st August 2024 
* * Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Tenure was completed as Independent Director on 7th August 2024 
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(4) Board Agenda 
 
The Board meetings are scheduled well in time and Board members are given a notice of Seven days 
before the meeting date except in case of emergent meeting. The Board members are provided with 
well-structured and comprehensive agenda papers. 
 
(5) Independent Directors 
 
Company has received necessary declarations/ disclosures from each of the Independent Director of the 
Company stating that he/she meets the criteria of independence as required under Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with Rule 6 of 
the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, and that he/she has a valid certificate of 
registration for his/her enrollment into the data bank for Independent Directors.  
 
None of the Independent Directors are Promoters or are related to Promoters. They do not have 
pecuniary relationship with the Company and further do not hold two percent or more of the total 
voting power of the Company. 
 
Independent Directors Meetings 
 
During the Year under review, the Independent Director met on 25th Feburary 2025 inter alia to Discuss:- 
 Evaluation of the Performance of the Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a 
Whole; 
 Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors 
 Evaluation of the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management 
and the Board that is necessary for the board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties effectively. 
 
Familiarization Programme  
 
The company has an ongoing familiarization programme for all directors with regard to their roles, 
duties, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, the 
business model of the company, etc. The details of the familiarization programme attended by directors 
are available on the website of the company at https://realtouchfinance.com/investor-info.html 
 
(6) Competencies of the Board 
 
The following is the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as 
required in the context of Company’s business for effective functioning. It is also confirmed that the 
directors possess these skills and competencies in order to ensure effective functioning of the company. 
 

Core skills / Expertise / Competencies 
Financial Services 
Strategy & Planning 
Corporate Governance 
Technology 
Management & Leadership 

The director-wise skills and competencies are laid out in the table below: 
Gopal Sridharan He has done his Bachelors in Science from Madras University and 

PGDM (Applied Finance) from IIM, Calcutta. He has over 22 years of rich 
experience in the finance industry with the leading institutions like ICICI 
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bank, Reliance capital and InCred Financial Services etc. 
 

Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth She is a Master of Commerce from Madurai Kamaraj University and an 
Intermediate Qualified Chartered Accountant from the Institute of 
Chartered Accountant India. She is a seasoned professional with more 
than three decades of rich experience in the field of finance, accounts, 
indirect taxation and statutory compliance.  
 

Sundaresan Sampathkumar He is a Master in Science and Post Graduate in Diploma Management. 
Mr. Sunderashan Sampathkumar has over 40 years of rich experience in 
Middle and Senior management in Automobiles, short-term or long-
term loan products, Retail and Real Estate Sector. 
 

Somnath Sarkar He is a qualified BSC and has experience of over 16 years in the field of 
Accounts and Finance. His Knowledge will be valuable to the Company. 
 

Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal He holds Master Degree in Commerce from the University of Rajasthan, 
Jaipur and having 39 years of rich work experience in Senior 
Management level in various Companies in Automobiles, Retail and 
Real Estate sector. 
 

Muthusamy Ganeshkumar He is a Master of Business Administration from the University of 
Madras, Chennai and having over 25 years rich experience in the field of 
Sales, Marketing and retail finances. He has held various leadership 
positions. 
 

 
Remuneration to Directors 
The Company has in place a remuneration policy which is guided by the principles and objectives as 
enumerated in section 178 of the Companies Act 2013. 
 
Remuneration to Whole time Director  
 
The details of remuneration as approved by the Board and shareholders based on the recommendations of 
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and paid to Mr. Gopal Sridharan, Whole-time Director for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025, is as follows: 

 
Particulars Amount (in lakhs)
Gross Salary 28.40
    Salary as per provisions of Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0
    Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of Income Tax Act, 1961 0
    Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 0
    Commission, Bonus etc 0
     Stock Options 0
     Pension 0

Total 28.40
 
Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors: 
 
Sitting Fees 
 
All directors except the Wholetime Director are paid a sitting fee of INR. 1,90,000 /- for attending every 
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meeting of the Board and INR 1,60,000 /- for attending every meeting of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting. 
 
The details of sitting fees paid to Directors during the financial year are as follows: 
 

Name of Director Designation Sitting Fees (INR.) 
Board Committee 

Sundaresan Sampathkumar Non- Executive Director 45,000  - 
Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth Non-Executive Director 35,000 - 
Somnath Sarkar Independent Director 35,000 25,000 
Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal Independent Director 35,000 70000 
Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar Independent Director 25000 25000 
Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Independent Director 15000 40000 

Total 1,90,000 1,60,000 
 
Commission to Non-Executive Directors 
 
The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors of the Company are paid remuneration by way 
of annual commission based on the recommendation by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and approval by the Board within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The details of commission paid to Non-Executive Directors during the financial year ended March 31, 
2025, are as follows: 
 

Name of Director Designation Commission (INR) 
Sundaresan Sampathkumar Non- Executive Director Nil 
Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth Non-Executive Director Nil 
Somnath Sarkar Independent Director Nil 
Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal Independent Director Nil 
*Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar Independent Director Nil 
**Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Independent Director Nil 

Total Nil 
* Mr. Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar was appointed as additional Independent Director on 1st August 2024 
* * Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Tenure was completed as Independent Director on 7th August 2024 
 
(7) Shareholding of Directors 
 

Name of Director Designation No of Shares Held 
Gopal Sridharan Executive Director Nil 
Sundaresan Sampathkumar Non- Executive Director Nil 
Padmini Ceruseri Srikanth Non-Executive Director Nil 
Somnath Sarkar Independent Director Nil 
Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal Independent Director Nil 
*Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar Independent Director Nil 
**Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Independent Director Nil 

Total Nil 
* Mr. Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar was appointed as additional Independent Director on 1st August 2024 
* * Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Tenure was completed as Independent Director on 7th August 2024 
 
(8)  General Body Meetings 
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The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under: 
 
Financial Year       Date           Location 
 
2022-2023            28/09/2022               Video Conferencing 
2023-2024         27/09/2023           Video Conferencing 
2024-2025                30/09/2024                Video Conferencing 
  
 (9)  Disclosures 
 
Related Party Transactions disclosures 
 
The company has in place a policy on related party transactions as approved by the board and the same 
is available on the website of the company at https://realtouchfinance.com/investor-info.html 
 
The Company main object is to provide and avail loan for its working capital purpose. All such 
transactions were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with 
Regulation 27(2) (b) of SEBI Regulation 2015 all material transactions with related parties have been 
disclosed quarterly along with the compliance report on Corporate Governance. For the details of all 
related party transactions as required by the Accounting Standard 18 on “Related Party Disclosures” 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, please refer Note No 34 of notes to the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 
All related party transactions or arrangements entered into by the company during the financial year 
were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. In Compliance with the 
provisions of the Act and Regulation 23(2) of the SEBI Regulations, 2015, all related party transactions 
had been placed before the Audit Committee for prior approval. Pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Act 
read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 information pertaining to related parties 
are given in Form AOC-2 as Annexure- C of the Boards report. 
 
(10) Means of Communication 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company approve and take on record the Financial Results as per the 
Proforma prescribed by the Stock Exchange within the statutory period and announce forthwith the said 
results to the Stock Exchange, where the Shares of the Company are listed.  
 
The Quarterly and Annual Financial Results are published in English and Regional language newspaper. 
These results are promptly submitted to the Stock Exchanges to enable them display the same on their 
Websites.  
 
The Company’s web site https://realtouchfinance.com in contains a separate dedicated section 
“Investor’s Corner” as required in terms of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 where shareholders information is available. The quarterly and annual 
results of the Company and shareholding pattern and other details are posted on the Company’s 
website. The Company also posts on its website all its official news releases (if any), important 
announcements and presentations. 
 
Annual Report is also displayed on the Company’s website https://realtouchfinance.com. The 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report are appended separately to this report. 
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(11) Code of Conduct 
 
The Company has laid down the code of conduct for its directors. The object of the code is to conduct 
the company’s business ethically and with responsibility, integrity, fairness, transparency and honesty. 
 
(12) Registrar and Transfer Agents and Share Transfer System 
 
M/s. Niche Technologies Pvt Ltd is your Company’s Share Transfer Agent. Share transfer in physical form 
and other communications regarding shares, Change of Address etc may be addressed to 
 
M/s Niche Technologies Pvt Ltd 
3A Auckland Place,  
7th Floor, Room No. 7A and 7B, 
Kolkata - 700017 
Phone: 033-22806616 
E mail Id: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com 
 
Trading in Equity shares of the Company is permitted as demat as well as physical form. Shares sent for 
transfer in physical form are registered and returned with in a period of 30 Days from the date of receipt 
of the documents, provided the documents are valid and complete in all respects. With a view to 
expediting the process of share transfers Mrs Varsha Gupta, Company Secretary of the Company, 
severally authorized to approve transfer of equity shares and the same shall be ratified in the next 
meeting of shareholders/ Investors Grievance Committee. The shareholders/ Investors Grievance 
Committee meets as and when required to consider the other transfer, transmission of shares etc and to 
attend shareholder Grievance. 
 
(13) Distribution of Shareholding 
 
The Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2025 was as follows: 
 
Sl 
No.
   

No. of Equity 
Shares held  

No. of Share 
Holders 

% of total
 Shareholders 

No. of Shares 
held  

% of total 
Shares 

1. 1  - 500 1181 86.7744   1,50,188    1.1833 
2. 501 - 1,000 65 4.7759 50,992    0.4017 
3. 1,001 - 5,000 49 3.6003 98,896    0.7792 
4. 5,001 - 10,000 9 0.6613      65,527    0.5163 
5. 10,001 - 50,000 27 1.9838       6,68,292    5.2652 
6. 50,001 - 1,00,000 9 0.6613   6,32,211    4.9809 
7. 1,00,001- and above 21 1.5430  1,10,26,584   86.8735 
 Total 1361 100.00      1,26,92,690

  
   100.00  

 
(14) Details of Shareholding as on March 31, 2025 was as under:- 
 
SHAREHOLDING PATTERN  
Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Chan
ge 
durin
g the 
year 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physic
al 

Total % of 
Total 
Shares 
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A. PROMOTERS                   

(1) Indian                   

  a) Individual / 
HUF 

                  

  b) Centran 
Government 

                  

  c) State 
Government 

                  

  d) Bodies 
Corporate 

6869620 0 6869620 54.123 6869620 0 6869620 54.123 0 

  e) Banks / 
Financial 
Institutions 

                  

  f) Any Other                   

  Sub-total 
(A)(1) 

6869620 0 6869620 54.123 6869620 0 6869620 54.123 0 

                      

(2) Foreign                   

  a) NRIs - 
Individuals 

                  

  b) Other - 
Individuals 

                  

  c) Bodies 
Corporate 

                  

  d) Banks / 
Financial 
Institutions 

                  

  e) Any Other                   

  Sub-total 
(A)(2) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

                      

  Total 
Shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

6869620 0 6869620 54.123 6869620 0 6869620 54.123 0 

                      

                      

B. PUBLIC 
SHAREHOLDI
NG 

                  

(1) Institutions                   

  a) Mutual 
Funds 

                  

  b) Banks / 
Financial 
Institutions 

                  

  c) Central 
Governments 

                  

  d) State 
Governments 

                  

  e) Venture 
Capital Funds 
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  f) Insurance 
Companies 

                  

  g) Foreign 
Institutional 
Investors (FII) 

                  

  h) Foreign 
Venture 
Capital Funds 

                  

  i) Others 
(Specify) 

                  

  Sub-total 
(B)(1) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

                      

(2) Non-
Institutions 

                  

  a) Bodies 
Corporate 

                  

     i)  Indian 3991503 407450 4398953 34.657 3995626 407450 4403076 34.69 0.033 

     ii) Overseas                   

  b) Individuals                   

     i)  Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital upto 
Rs 1 lakh 

183695 167500 351195 2.767 143911 167500 311411 2.453 -
0.314 

     ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
l 

1069126 0 1069126 8.423 1104542 0 1104542 8.702 0.279 

  c) Others 
Specify 

                  

     1. NRI 3796 0 3796 0.03 4041 0 4041 0.032 0.002 

     2. Overseas 
Corporate 
Bodies 

                  

     3. Foreign 
Nationals 

                  

     4. Clearing 
Members 

                  

     5. Trusts                   

     6. Foreign 
Bodies - D.R. 

                  

     7. IEPF 
Authority 

                  

     8. Unclaimed 
Shares A/C 

                  

     9. Unclaimed 
Demat Escrow 
A/c 

                  

     10. FPI - 
INDIVIDUAL - 
CAT-II 
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     11. FPI - 
INDIVIDUAL - 
CAT-III 

                  

  Sub-total 
(B)(2) 

5248120 574950 5823070 45.877 5248120 574950 5823070 45.877 0 

                      

  Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B) = 
(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

5248120 574950 5823070 45.877 5248120 574950 5823070 45.877 0 

                      

                      

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 

                  

                      

                      

  GRAND 
TOTAL 
(A+B+C) 

12117740 574950 12692690 100 12117740 574950 12692690 100 0 

 
(15) Listing with Stock Exchange 
 
The Equity shares of the Company are currently listed for trading of the BSE Limited. Company confirms 
that it has paid listing Fees to BSE for the Year 2024-25. 
 
Market Price data for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025: 
Sr. No.                                 Month 

 
                                       Price 
                High                  Low 

1. April 2024 52.96 46.05 
2. May 2024 50.4 38.28 
3. June 2024 58.9 45.98 
4. July 2024 92.1 56.05 
5. August 2024 78.27 61.00 
6. September 2024 70.22 56.7 
7. October 2024 82.45 71.6 
8. November 2024 75.01 60.33 
9. December 2024 85.00 66.12 
10. January 2025 87.46 75.05 
11. February 2025 83.75 60.33 
12. March 2025 67.28 37.45 
 
(16) General Shareholder Information 
 
Annual General Meeting: 
 
Date                  25.09.2025 
Time                 03.00 P.M. 
Venue                           Through Video Conferencing/audio visual means                                                
Financial Year              2024-2025 
Book Closure Date           19.09.2025 TO 25.09.2025 (both days inclusive) 
Listing on Stock Exchange     BSE LTD         
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Scrip Code              538611 
ISIN No.               INE840I01014 
 
The Company’s Securities are listed with BSE Ltd. The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual 
Listing Fees to the said stock exchange for the financial year 2024-25 and there are no arrears. . 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
(17) Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle blower Policy 
 
In accordance with the requirements of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of 
the Listing Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated a “Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy” 
which provides an avenue to the Directors and employees of the Company to directly report, their 
genuine concerns including unethical behavior and violation of code of conduct, to the chairman of the 
Audit Committee. 
 
No person has been denied access to the chairman of the Audit committee of the Board of Directors of 
the Company.      
 
(18) Shareholder’/Investors’ Grievance Committee 
 
The shareholder’/Investors’ Grievance Committee of the Board has been constituted to look into 
complaints like transfer of shares, Non-receipt of Dividend etc. The committee is headed by Mr. Ratnesh 
Kumar Agarwal, as Chairman, Mr. Gopal Sridharan, Whole-time Director as Committee Member and Mr. 
Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar, Non-Executive Independent Director as Committee Member. No compliant 
had been received during the year.  
 
(19) Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of 
accounting, auditing and reporting practice of the company and its compliance with legal and 
regulatory requirements. The Committee’s purpose is to oversee the accounting and financial reporting 
process of the company, the audit of the Company’s Financial Statements, the appointments of Auditor, 
Independent Performance and remuneration of the Statutory Auditors. 
 
During the year under review, six meetings of the committee were held during the year ended: 
 
29.04.2024, 22.05.2024, 01.08.2024, 12.11.2024, 30.01.2025 & 25.02.2025   
The composition of the committee and attendance at its meeting is given below: 
  

Name of Director Category No. of Meetings 
Held 

No. of Meetings 
Attented 

Mr. Ratnesh Kumar 
Agarwal 

Non- Executive Independent 
Director 6 

6 

Mr. Gopal Sridharan Executive Director 6 6  
*Mr. Muthuswamy 
Ganeshkumar 

Non- Executive Independent 
Director 6  

4  
**Mr. Ujjawal Kumar 
Bothra 

Non- Executive Independent 
Director 6 

2 

 * Mr. Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar was appointed as member on 1st August 2024 
* * Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Tenure was completed as member on 7th August 2024 
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(20) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
The Committee shall identify the persons who are qualified to become Directors of the Company/ who 
may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the Criteria laid down, recommend to the 
Board their appointment and removal and also shall carry out evaluation of every director’s 
performance. Committee shall also formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, independent of the Directors and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 
remuneration, Key Managerial personnel and other employees.  
 
No. of Meeting 
 
During the year the Committee had Six Meeting i.e. on 29.04.2024, 22.05.2024, 01.07.2024, 01.08.2024, 
12.11.2024 & 04.01.2025. 
 
Name, Composition and attendance during the Year 
 

Name of Director Category 
No. of Meetings 
Held 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Ratnesh kumar 
Agarwal 

Non- Executive Independent 
Director 6 

 
6  

Mr. Somnath Sarkar Non- Executive Independent 
Director 6 

 
6  

*Mr. Muthuswamy 
Ganeshkumar 

Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

6   
6  

**Mr. Ujjawal Kumar 
Bothra 

Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

6 3 

 
 * Mr. Muthuswamy Ganeshkumar was appointed as member on 1st August 2024 
* * Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Tenure was completed as member on 7th August 2024 
 
(21) Disclosure under POSH Act, 2013 
 
Your Company has not received any complaints under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and 
there are no complaints pending as on the end of the financial year. 
 
(22) Penalties 
 
There were no penalties, strictures imposed on the company by stock exchange(s) or SEBI or any 
statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years. 
 
(23) Fees paid to Statutory Auditors 
 
The total fees paid by the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, to the Statutory 
Auditors including all entities in their network firm / entity of which they are a part is given below: 
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Particulars Amount in Rs 
Fees for audit and related services paid to statutory auditors and affiliates firms 
and to entities of the network of which the statutory auditor is a part 

1,00,000 

Other fees paid to statutory auditors & affiliates firms and to entities of the 
network of which the statutory auditor is a part 

NIL 

Total Fees 1,00,000 
 
(24) Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance 
 
The certificate on compliance of corporate governance norms from a practicing company secretary is 
enclosed to this report as Annexure-1  
 
Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice 
 
Mr. Sandeep S, a Practicing Company Secretary  has issued a certificate as required under the Listing 
Regulations, confirming that none of the directors on the board of the company has been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of companies by SEBI / Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. A certificate to this effect has been enclosed to this 
report as Annexure -2 
 
(25) CEO/CFO Certification 
 
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have submitted a compliance certificate to the board 
regarding the financial statements and internal control systems as required under regulation 17(8) of 
SEBI (LODR) 2015. . A certificate to this effect has been enclosed to this report as Annexure -3 
 
(26) SEBI Complaints Redressal Systems (SCORES) 
 
SEBI has initiated SCORES for processing the investor complaints in a centralized web based redress 
system and online redressal of all the shareholders complaints. The Company is in compliance with the 
Scores and redressed the shareholders complaints well within the stipulated time. 
 
(27) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:- 
 
As stipulated by SEBI, a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is conducted on quarterly basis to reconcile 
the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited and the total issued and paid up Capital. The audit is carried out every quarter and the 
report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchange and is placed before the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 
 
(28) Corporate Identity Number 
 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company, allotted by the Ministry of Corporate affairs, 
Government of India is L01111WB1997PLC085164. 
 
(29) Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance 
 
As part of the Green Initiative process, the Company has taken an initiative of Sending Documents like 
Notice calling of Annual General Meeting, Corporate Governance Report, Directors Report, Audited 
financial Statements, Auditor’s Report etc. Physical Copies are sent only to those shareholders whose 
email addresses are not registered with the Company. Shareholders are requested to register their email 
id with the registrar and Share Transfer Agent/Concerned Depository to enable the Company to send 
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the Documents in electronic form or inform the Company in case they wish to receive the above 
documents in paper mode.  
 
                                                                                                    By order of the Board 
                                                                                             FOR Real Touch Finance Limited 
Place: Chennai 
Date:  04/08/2025                                                                                                                      

                                             SD/-                                                 SD/- 
 

                                              Sundaresan Sampathkumar                           Gopal Sridharan 
                                              Director                                                         Whole Time Director                                                     
                                              DIN: 08832266                                                DIN: 09460423 
                                                                                     
Registered Office: Arihant Enclave,                                                                
Ground Floor, 493B/57A, G.T Road (South),  
Shibpur, Howrah, West Bengal, India, 711102 
 
Corporate Branch Office: Khivraj Complex 1 3rd Floor,  
No 480 Anna Salai, Nandanam, Chennai,   
Tamil Nadu, India, 600035 
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                                                                                                  Annexure-1 
 
Independent Company Secretary's certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as per provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 
 
The Members, 
REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED 
Arihant Enclave, Ground Floor,493B/57A, G.T Road(South), 
Shibpur, HOWRAH, West Bengal, India, 711102 
 
We have examined documents, books, papers, minutes, forms and returns filed and other relevant 
records maintained by REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED, (CIN: L01111WB1997PLC085164) having its 
Registered Office at Arihant Enclave, Ground Floor,49313/57A, G.T Road(South) Shibpur, HOWRAH, West 
Bengal, India, 711102, for the purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance under Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and pars C, D and L of 
Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with 
Regulation 34(3) of the SERI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification. 
 
The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and on the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanations and 
information furnished, we certify that the Company has complied regarding the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 as amended for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
Place: Chennai 

Date: August 03, 2025 

                                                               

For S Sandeep & Associates 

         S sandeep  

UDIN: F005853G000921231  

 PR No:-6526/2025       
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                                                                                                                            Annexure-2 
 
                          CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause (10) (i) of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
To  
The Members  
REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED 
Arihant Enclave, Ground Floor,493B/57A,  
G.T Road(South) , Shibpur, HOWRAH,  
West Bengal, India, 711102 
 
We, S Sandeep and Associates, Company Secretaries, have examined the relevant registers, records, 
forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED 
havingCIN: L01111WB1997PLC085164 and having its registered office at Arihant Enclave, Ground 
Floor,493B/57A, G.T Road(South) , Shibpur, HOWRAH, West Bengal, India, 711102 (hereinafter referred 
to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 
explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we hereby certify that for the financial year 
ended 31st march 2024 none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below, have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 
Authority. 
 

S. 
No. 

DIN Name of Director  Designation  Date of  appointment  

1 01723269 Mr. SomnathSarkar Independent 
Director 

28/09/2021 

2 00243485 Mr. Gopal Sridharan Whole Time 
Director 

06/01/2022 

3 07936844 Mr. Sundaresan Sampathkumar Director 14/11/2022 

4 02196839 Mr. Muthusamy Ganeshkumar Independent 
Director 

01/08/2024 

5 06764019 Mr. Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal Independent 
Director 

14/02/2024 

6 02604007 Mrs. PadminiCeruseri Srikanth Director 14/02/2024 
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company.  
 
                                                                                                        For S Sandeep & Associates 
 
                                                                                                                              SD/- 
                                                                                                                          S Sandeep 
Place: Chennai                                                                                     Managing Partner 
Date: 31-07-2025                     
PR No: 6526/2025 
UDIN: F005853G000906698 
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                                                                                                                                                Annexure-3 

 
CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

We, Gopal Sridharan, Wholetime Director and Angalappan Anandakumar, Chief Financial Officer of 
M/s Real Touch Finance Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that: 
 
We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the 
year ended March 31, 2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 
i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading. 
 
ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 
iii. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 
the year ended March 31, 2025 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of 
Conduct. 
 
iv. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control system and that we 
have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company and we have 
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal control system, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to 
take to rectify these deficiencies. 
 
v. We further certify that we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 
 
a. There have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting system 
during the year; 
b. There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year except for the 
changes disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, if any; and 
c. There have been no instances of significant fraud, of which we have become aware, involving 
management or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting. 
        
 
 
                                                                           SD/-                                         SD/- 
                                                                       G. Sridharan                      Anandakumar A 
                                                                    Wholetime director         Chief Financial Officer 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

TO THE MEMBERS OF M/S. REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED 

Report on Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statement of M/s. REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED, which 
comprises the Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2025, and the Statement of Profit /Loss account (Including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes of Equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on 
that date and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
“the standalone financial statements”) . 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the Act”)  in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the companies Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standard) Rules 2015, as amended , ( “Ind As”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as on 31st March 2025, the  Profit/Loss, total 
Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows  for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of standalone financial statement under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAI’s code 
of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that in our Professional Judgement were of most significance in our Audit of the 
financial statements of the Current Period. These matters were addressed in the context of Our Audit of the financial 
statements. These matters were addressed in the context of Our Audit of the financial statements as a whole, and 
informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.   

1) Classification and measurement of financial assets –  

Business model assessment  

Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, contains three principal measurement categories for financial assets i.e.: 

 • Amortised cost; 

 • Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVOCI’); and  

 • Fair Value through Profit and Loss (‘FVTPL’).  

A financial asset is classified into a measurement category at inception and is reclassified only in rare circumstances. The 
assessment as to how an asset should be classified is made on the basis of both the Group’s business model for managing 
the financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.  
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The term ‘business model’ refers to the way in which the Group manages its financial assets in order to generate cash 
flows. That is, the Group’s business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, 
selling the financial assets or both. 

Amortised cost classification and measurement category is met if the financial asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.  
 
FVOCI classification and measurement category is met if the financial asset is held in a business model in which assets are 
managed both in order to collect contractual cash flows and for sale. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at 
fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income.  
 
FVTPL classification and measurement category is met if the financial asset does not meet the criteria for classification and 
measurement at amortised cost or at FVOCI. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with changes in 
fair value recognized in profit or loss. 

Key audit procedures included: 

Design / controls  

• Assessing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal controls over management’s intent of 
purchasing a financial asset and the approval mechanism for such stated intent and classification of such financial assets 
on the basis of management’s intent (business model).  
• For financial assets classified at amortised cost, we tested controls over the classification of such assets and subsequent 
measurement of assets at amortised cost. Further, we tested key internal controls over monitoring of such financial assets 
to check whether there have been any subsequent sales of financial assets classified at amortised cost.  
• For financial assets classified at FVOCI, we tested controls over the classification of such assets and subsequent 
measurement of assets at fair value. 

2) Recognition and measurement of impairment of loans and advances involve significant management 
judgement 

With the applicability of Ind AS 109 credit loss assessment is now based on expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model. The Group’s 
impairment allowance is derived from estimates including the historical default and loss ratios. Management exercises 
judgement in determining the quantum of loss based on a range of factors.  

The most significant areas are:  

• Segmentation of loan book  
• Loan staging criteria  
• Calculation of probability of default / Loss given default  
• Consideration of probability weighted scenarios and forward looking macro-economic factors. 

Key audit procedures included:  

Design / controls  

• Assessing the design and implementation of key internal financial controls over loan impairment process used to 
calculate the impairment charge 
• We used our modelling specialist to test the model methodology and reasonableness of assumptions used.  
• Testing of management review controls over measurement of impairment allowances and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.  
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Substantive tests  

• We focused on appropriate application of accounting principles, validating completeness and accuracy of the data and 
reasonableness of assumptions used in the model. 
• Appropriateness of management’s judgments was also independently reconsidered in respect of calculation 
methodologies, segmentation, economic factors, the period of historical loss rates used, loss emergence periods and the 
valuation of recovery assets and collateral. 

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position and financial performance, total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flow of the 
company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting Principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern , disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern, basis of 
accounting unless management either tends to liquidate the company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative 
to do so.  

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statement. 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable audit assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit is conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if individually or in the aggregate, they could be reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of the user taken on the basis of these financial statements. A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our Audit Report 

As a part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, a fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control 
 Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls systems in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 
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 Conclude on the appropriateness on the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s  
 report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s Report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in the manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 
 
We communicate with those charged with Governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal Control that we identify during 
audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of the most 
significance in the Audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key Audit 
Matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a  matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report ) order 2020 (“the order”) issued by the central Government in term of 
Section 143(11) issued by the central Government in term of section 143(11),we give in Annexure we give in Annexure “A” 
a statement on matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of Order to the extent applicable. 

2A. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 ;  
 
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;  
 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;  
 
(e)On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025 and taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31stMarch 2025 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 
 
(f) there are no reservation relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in 
the paragraph 2 A (b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2 B(viii) below on reporting under Rule 
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014. 
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditor’s report in accordance with requirement of Section 197(16) 
of the Act, the Company has paid remuneration to its director in accordance with provisions of Section 197 of the 
companies Act, 2013.  
 
(h) There are no qualification, reservation or adverse remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters 
connected therewith;   
 
(i) Clause (i) of section 143(3) on the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, referred to our separate report in Annexure “B”. 
 
2 B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:  
 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. The Company does not require to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

iv. The Management has represented, that to the best of their knowledge and belief no fund (which are material either 
individually or in aggregate) have been advances or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the company , to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“intermediaries”) 
with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise that the intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“ultimate 
beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries. 

v.  The Management has represented, that to the best of their knowledge and belief no fund (which are material either 
individually or in aggregate) have been received by the company from any person or entity, including foreign entities 
(“funding parties”) with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise that the Company shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
party (“ultimate beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries. 

vi. Based on the Audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable or appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has came to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation under Sub Clause (i) and (ii) of rule 
11(e) as provided under (iv) and (v) above, contain material misstatement. 

vii. The Company has not declared any dividend during the Year.     

viii. The Company has used accounting software for maintaining books of account which has a feature of recording audit 
trail facility and the same has been operated from 01/04/2023 and the audit trail feature has not been tampered and has 
been preserved by the company as per the requirements. 

     For, P. D. Randar & Co.      

     Chartered Accountants  

                SD/- 

      Prabhu Dayal Randar 

  Partner 
     Firm Registration No. 319295E 

                   Membership No. 054778 
    UDIN:25054778BMOGGD6894 
     Place:Kolkata 
     Date:30thMay,2025



82 
 

 
 
 

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to 
the Members of M/s. REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED of even date) 
 
 
The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the financial 
statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2025, we report that: 
  
(To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 
(i)    In respect of Property Plant and Equipments 

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of Property, Plant and Equipment.  

b. The Company does not have any intangible Assets. 
c. According to the information and explanations given to us, the management at reasonable intervals has physically 

verified the Property, Plant and Equipment and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the Company the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is 
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of the Company. 

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use of 
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

f. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and 
rules made there under. 
 

(ii)    In respect of Inventories 
   a.   According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the Company does not have any inventory hence reporting under 3(ii) is not applicable.  

(iii)  The Company has not provided any guarantee or security but has made investment in, and granted loans or 
advances in nature of loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or other 
parties, during the year, in respect of which : 

a. The Company is a Non Banking Finance Company and Principal Business is to give Loans hence reporting under 
3(a) of the report is not applicable.  

b. In our opinion, the Investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans or advances in nature 
of loan during the year are prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 

c. In respect of loans and advances in nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of Principal and interest are 
stipulated and repayment of principal and interest are regular except for loans which are disclosed as NPA.  

d. In respect of loans or advances in nature of loans granted by the Company, there is no Interest Overdue amount 
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.  
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e. No loan or advances in nature of loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been 
renewed or extended or fresh loans or advances in nature of loan granted to settle the overdue of existing loans 
or advances in nature of loan given to the same parties 

f. The Company has granted loans or advances in nature of loans, Unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited liability 
Partnerships or any other parties which are repayable on demand or are without specifying any terms or period 
of repayment and the details of such loans or advances in nature of loan are being furnished hereinafter. 

Details are as follows:- 
Loan disbursed  Promoters,  Related Parties as 

defined in clause 
(76) of Section 2 
of companies 
Act, 2013 

Other than 
Promoter and 
related parties 

            
                Total (Rs.) 

Loans repayable 
on demand 

0 0 
 
 

  

Loans without 
specifying any 
terms or period 
of repayment 

0 
 

0 0 0 

Loans with 
specified terms 
and period of 
repayment 

0 
 

2,98,65,413.56 
 

2,22,60,08,098.12 2,25,58,73,511.58 

Total Balance as 
on year end i.e 
31.03.2025 
  

0 
 

2,98,65,413.56 
 

2,22,60,08,098.12 2,25,58,73,511.58 

 

(iv) The company is a Non Banking Finance Company therefore provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act 2013 is not applicable.  

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Accordingly clause 3(v) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly 
clause (vi) of the Order is not Applicable to the Company. 

(vii) a.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise,  value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have been regularly 
deposited during the year by the Company with appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st 
March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.  

 
        b.  there are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

 
(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year in tax assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
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(ix) a. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly clause 
3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

b. The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority. 

c. The Company has taken term loan during the Year and the same has been utilized in the ordinary course of 
Business.  

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of 
the Company we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the 
Company. 

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates as defined under the Act. The Company 
does not hold any investment in any joint venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 ,March 
2025. 

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us we report that the 
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate 
companies (as defined under the Act). The Company does not hold any investment in any joint venture (as 
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. 

(x)    a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year and Accordingly clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) Accordingly clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

(xi) a. Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us considering the principles of materiality as outlined in the Standards on Auditing we 
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the 
audit. 

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year 

c. The Company has not received the whistle blower complaints during the year. Accordingly clause 3(xi)© of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly 
clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the transactions with related 
parties are in Compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details of the related 
part transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements are required by the applicable accounting 
standards.  
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(xiv)    a. In our opinion the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

          b. The report of Internal Auditor for the period under audit has been considered by us.   

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or 
persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Company Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xvi)   a. The Company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.  

b. The Company has conducted Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year.  

c. The Company is classified as Loan Company.  

d. According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit the Group (as per the 
provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016) does not have any CIC. 

(xvii)  The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to be believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of audit report indicating that Company is not capable of the meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one, year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The provision of Corporate Social responsibility (CSR) is not applicable under the provision of section 135(6) of 
the Act. Accordingly clause 3(xx) (a) and 3 (xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xxi) The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statement under the provisions of the Act. 
Accordingly clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

       For, P. D. Randar & Co.      

     Chartered Accountants  

                SD/-      

      Prabhu Dayal Randar 

   Partner 
     Firm Registration No. 319295E 

                   Membership No. 054778 
    UDIN:25054778BMOGGD6894 
     Place:Kolkata    
     Date:30thMay,2025
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                                         ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED of even date)  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of  REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.  
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted  accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or  timely detection of  unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting ,including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
to be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion ,the Company has , in all material respects , an adequate internal financial control system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls system over financial reporting were operating effectively as on 31 
March,2025 based on  the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
 

        For, P. D. Randar & Co.      

     Chartered Accountants  

                SD/- 

      Prabhu Dayal Randar 

   Partner 
      Firm Registration No. 319295E 

                   Membership No. 054778 
    UDIN:25054778BMOGGD6894 
 
      Place:Kolkata 
      Date:30thMay,2025 
 
 
 
 



Real Touch Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in lakhs (INR), unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No.  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

ASSETS
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4a 145.86                                          247.10                                          
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents above 4b 110.62                                          107.84                                          
(c) Receivables 5 0.61                                               3.89                                               
(d) Loans 6 22,558.74                                    18,777.39                                    
(e) Investments 7 0.82                                               0.84                                               
(f) Other Financial Assets 8 6.47                                               6.86                                               

Total financial assets (A) 22,823.12                                    19,143.92                                    

Non - Financial Assets
(a) Income Tax Assets (Net) -                                                 -                                                 
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 78.75                                            42.04                                            
(c) Property, plant and equipment 10A 31.86                                            22.51                                            
(d) Other Intangible Assets 10B 29.01                                            42.35                                            
(e) Other Non Financial Assets 11 0.04                                               0.25                                               

Total non-financial assets (B) 139.66                                          107.15                                          

TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 22,962.77                                    19,251.07                                    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
LIABILITIES
Financial  Liabilities
(a) Payables 12

  Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -                                                 -                                                 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other then micro and small 
enterprises

45.18                                            43.29                                            

(b) Debt Securities 13 2,443.00                                       243.00                                          
(c) Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 14 14,008.00                                    13,701.52                                    
(d) Other Financial Liabilities 15 1,575.15                                       947.94                                          

Total financial liabilities (A) 18,071.34                                    14,935.75                                    

Non Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (Net) 9 58.89                                            38.21                                            
(b) Provisions 16 11.34                                            6.79                                               
(c) Other Non Financial Liabilities 17 115.87                                          87.39                                            

Total non-financial liabilities (B) 186.09                                          132.39                                          
Total liabilities (C=A+B) 18,257.43                                    15,068.14                                    

EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 18 1,269.27                                       1,269.27                                       
(b) Other Equity 19 3,436.07                                       2,913.66                                       

Total equity (D) 4,705.34                                       4,182.93                                       

Total Equity & Liabilities (C+D) 22,962.77                                    19,251.07                                    
See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements (1 to 47)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For P.D.Randar & CO Real Touch Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 319295E

G Sridharan Sundaresan Sampathkumar
Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 09460423 DIN: 08832266

Prabhu Dayal Randar
Partner
Membership No. : 054778 Angalappan Anandakumar Varsha Gupta
UDIN: 25054778BMOGGD6894 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata Place: Chennai
Date: May 30,2025 Date: May 30,202588



Real Touch Finance Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in lakhs (INR), unless otherwise stated)

Note 
No.

 For the year ended
March 31,2025 

 For the year ended
March 31,2024 

I Revenue from Operations
(i) Interest Income 20 2,579.19                                   1,775.57                                      
(ii) Fees and Other Charges 287.49                                       98.04                                            
(iii) Dividend Income 0.01                                            -                                                

Total Revenue from Operations 2,866.69                                   1,873.61                                      
II Other Income 22 20.58                                         14.66                                            

III Total Income 2,887.27                                   1,888.27                                      
IV Expenses:
(i) Finance Cost 23 1,420.08                                   936.02                                          
(ii) Commission expenses 24 86.61                                         32.83                                            
(iii) Impairment on financial instruments 25 62.54                                         47.77                                            
(iv) Employee Benefit Expense 26 438.50                                       280.27                                          
(v) Depreciation and Amortisation 27 29.48                                         26.13                                            
(vi) Other Expenses 28 283.57                                       172.51                                          

Total Expenses 2,320.79                                   1,495.53                                      

V Profit before tax (III - IV) 566.48                                       392.74                                          

VI Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 29 154.03                                       146.99                                          
(2) Prior period taxes 29 (11.47)                                        25.46                                            
(3) Deferred Tax 29 (37.10)                                        (43.01)                                           
Total Tax Expense 105.46                                       129.44                                          

VII Profit for the period (V - VI) 461.02                                       263.30                                          

VIII Other Comprehensive Income
(A) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss
(i) Fair value gain on equity investments classified as FVTOCI (0.01)                                          0.09                                              

(ii) Tax impact on the above 0.00                                            (0.02)                                             

(B) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

(i) Remeasurement benefits of the defined benefit plans
1.55                                            -                                                

(ii) Tax impact on the above (0.39)                                          -                                                

Total Other Comprehensive Income 1.15                                           0.07                                              

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII + VIII) 462.17                                       263.37                                          

X Earning per equity share: 30
(1) Basic 3.63 2.07
(2) Diluted 3.57 2.07

For P.D.Randar & CO For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Real Touch Finance Limited
Firm Reg. No.: 319295E

G Sridharan Sundaresan Sampathkumar
Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 09460423 DIN: 08832266

Prabhu Dayal Randar
Partner
Membership No. : 054778 Angalappan Anandakumar Varsha Gupta
UDIN: 25054778BMOGGD6894 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata Place: Chennai
Date: May 30,2025 Date: May 30,2025

Particulars

21

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements (1 to 47)
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Real Touch Finance Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in lakhs (INR), unless otherwise stated)

 For the year ended
March 31,2025 

 For the year ended
March 31,2024 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 566.48                                    392.74                                         
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation 29.48                                      26.13                                            
Interest on CCDs -                                          (0.01)                                            
Liabilities no longer required written back -                                          (7.15)                                            
Interest on Fixed Deposits (27.80)                                    (8.15)                                            
Impairment loss allowance 62.54                                      47.77                                            
ESOP expense 60.39                                      -                                                

Operating profit before working capital / other changes 691.10                                   451.33                                         
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables 3.28                                        (3.28)                                            
Loans (3,843.89)                               (6,177.99)                                     
Other financial assets 0.39                                        (1.76)                                            
Other non-financial assets 0.21                                        4.15                                              

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 1.89                                        39.45                                            
Provisions 4.55                                        6.79                                              
Other financial liabilities 627.21                                    769.69                                         
Other non-financial liabilities 28.48                                      31.82                                            

Cash Flow from / (used in) operations (2,486.78)                               (4,879.80)                                     
Income Tax paid (120.49)                                  (91.88)                                          
Net Cash Flow from / (used in) operating activities (2,607.28)                               (4,971.68)                                     

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of / (investment in) current investment 0.02                                        141.79                                         
Capital expenditure towards tangible and intangible assets (25.49)                                    (30.71)                                          
Interest Income received 25.02                                      3.65                                              

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (0.45)                                       114.73                                         
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term borrowings availed 5,477.06                                17,349.04                                    
Long term borrowings repaid (5,170.58)                               (12,306.00)                                   
Debt securities issued 2,200.00                                -                                                
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities 2,506.48                                5,043.04                                      
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (101.25)                                  186.09                                         
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 247.10                                    61.01                                            
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  (Refer note 4a) 145.85                                   247.10                                         
Cash & Cash Equivalents as per Note 4a
Cash in Hand -                                          -                                                
Cash at Bank 145.86                                    247.10                                         
Total 145.86                                   247.10                                         

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For P.D.Randar & CO Real Touch Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 319295E

G Sridharan Sundaresan Sampathkumar
Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 09460423 DIN: 08832266

Prabhu Dayal Randar
Partner
Membership No. : 054778 Angalappan Anandakumar Varsha Gupta
UDIN: 25054778BMOGGD6894 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata Place: Chennai
Date: May 30,2025 Date: May 30,2025

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements (1 to 47)

PARTICULARS
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Real Touch Finance Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025  
(All amounts are in lakhs (INR), unless otherwise stated)

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Refer note 18)

Number (in full figures) Amount

1,26,92,690                     1,269.27                        

-                                    -                                  

1,26,92,690                     1,269.27                        

-                                    -                                  
1,26,92,690                     1,269.27                        

B. OTHER EQUITY (Refer note 19)

Securities Premium General Reserve Statutory Reserve
Share Based Payment 

Reserve
Total

Balance as at April 01, 2023 700.00                        582.15                     278.92                              -                                    2,650.29                   

Profit for the year -                              -                           -                                    -                                    263.30                      
Other comprehensive income for
the year (net of income tax)

-                              -                           -                                    -                                    0.07                           

Transfer to / (from) retained
earnings

-                              -                           52.67                                -                                    -                             

Balance as at March 31, 2024 700.00                        582.15                     331.59                              -                                    2,913.66                   

Profit for the year -                              -                           -                                    -                                    461.02                      
Other comprehensive income for
the year (net of income tax)

-                              -                           -                                    -                                    1.15                           

Employee Stock Options Expense -                              -                           -                                    60.39                                60.39                        
Transfer to / (from) retained
earnings

-                              -                           92.43                                -                                    -                             

Balance as at March 31, 2025 700.00                        582.15                     424.02                              60.39                                3,436.07                   

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For P.D.Randar & CO Real Touch Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 319295E

G Sridharan Sundaresan Sampathkumar
Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 09460423 DIN: 08832266

Prabhu Dayal Randar
Partner
Membership No. : 054778 Angalappan Anandakumar Varsha Gupta
UDIN: 25054778BMOGGD6894 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata Place: Chennai
Date: May 30,2025 Date: May 30,2025

0.07                                    

(52.67)                                

Balance as at March 31, 2025
Add: Fresh issue of shares during the year
Changes in equity share capital during the year

263.30                                

Add: Fresh issue of shares during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Balance as at April 01, 2023
Changes in equity share capital during the year

-                                      

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements (1 to 47)

Components of Other Equity
Particulars Surplus in Statement of 

Profit and Loss

461.02                                
1.15                                    

(92.43)                                

1,669.51                            

1,089.22                            

1,299.77                            
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Real Touch Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in lakhs (INR), unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information

2 Basis of Presentation

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

Real Touch Finance Limited (‘the Company’) is a non-deposit taking non-systemically important Non-Banking Financial Company
and pursuant to change of Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) jurisdiction has been issued a new certificate of registration dated July 10,
2017 bearing registration number B-05.03146. The Company is primarily engaged in providing loans for business purposes against
property mortgage, financial institutions lending and personal loans.

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (the ‘Ind AS’)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’).

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses
during the year. Actual results may differ from the estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

Following are the areas that involved a higher degree of estimates and judgement or complexity in determining the carrying
amount of some assets and liabilities.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. For
further details about determination of fair value (Refer note 3.7 and note 36).

i) Fair value of financial instruments

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments - measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for services.

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (₹) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates (the ‘functional currency’). The values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

ii) Effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method
The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in note 3.1(A), recognises interest income/expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given/taken and recognises
the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life- cycle of the instruments,
as well as expected changes to interest rates and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.
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Real Touch Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in lakhs (INR), unless otherwise stated)

2.5

iv) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

v) Other assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most
significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
ii) Recognition of deferred taxes

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after
the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non–current) is presented in note 38(B).

Financial assets and financial liability are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net
when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent
on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

i) The normal course of business
ii) The event of default

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherent
to its operations. When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and
considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the outflow is considered to be
probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed. Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of
determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the
stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these
estimates. For further details on provisions and other contingencies (Refer note 3.16).

These estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the Financial Statements are prudent and reasonable.

Presentation of the Financial Statements

iii) Impairment of financial asset
The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels
of allowances.

The Company’s expected credit loss (‘ECL’) calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting
judgements and estimates include:

a) The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a life time expected credit loss (‘LTECL’) basis.
b) Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.
c) Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs as gross domestic products, and the
effect on probability of default (‘PD’), exposure at default (‘EAD’) and loss given default (‘LGD’).
d) Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into ECL
models.

93



Real Touch Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in lakhs (INR), unless otherwise stated)

3 Summary of material accounting policies

3.1 Revenue Recognition

A. Interest Income under EIR Method

3.2

D. Other Interest income
Interest income on security deposits and fixed deposits (FD) is recognised on a time proportionate basis.

Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method for all financial instruments measured at
amortised cost and financial instrument measured at Fair Value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’). The EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The Effective Interest Rate (EIR) (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate 
of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial instrument.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment is
booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction
in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for
managing the instruments (Refer note 3.3(A)). Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value (as defined in Note
3.7). Transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from this amount at initial recognition except in the case of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in Statement of profit and loss.

C. Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instrument - initial recognition
A. Date of recognition

Debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual
terms, measured at either:
i) Amortised cost
ii) FVOCI
iii) FVTPL

Fees income which is not considered in EIR computation, such as bounce charges, penal charges and foreclosure charges etc. are
recognised at a point in time basis.

The Company recognises income on recoveries of financial assets written off on realisation or when the right to receive the same
without any uncertainties of recovery is established.
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realisation / collection.

C. Others

B. Initial measurement of financial instruments

B. Fee Income

94



Real Touch Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in lakhs (INR), unless otherwise stated)

3.3

As a second step of its classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify whether they
meet SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over
the life of financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money
and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the period
for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than minimum exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that
are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Accordingly, financial assets are measured as follows:

i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii) Financial assets measured at FVOCI
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

iii) Financial assets measured at FVTPL
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

A. Financial assets

Business model assessment

Financial assets and liabilities

i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial liability, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its
business objective.

The Company’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios
and is based on observable factors such as:
a) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and
reported to the Company’s key management personnel.
b) The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in
particular, the way those risks are managed.
c) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios
into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company’s original expectations,
the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates
such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

B. Financial liabilities

Solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test

ii) Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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3.4

3.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

3.6

iii) Debt Securities and other borrowed funds
After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the instrument.

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months ECL. Stage 1 loans includes
those loans where there is no significant credit risk observed and also includes facilities where the credit risk has been improved
and the loan has been reclassified from stage 2 or stage 3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance for the
life time ECL. Stage 2 loans also includes facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from stage
3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit impaired are the loans which are past due for more than 90 days. The Company records an
allowance for life time ECL.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ECL model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those
measured at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

i) The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

ii) Full lifetime expected credit losses (‘LTECL’) (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of
the financial instrument)

Both LTECLs and 12 months ECLs are calculated on collective basis.
Based on the above, the Company categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

i) Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions
The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated
to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the
extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL
measurement purposes.

ii) Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of
derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

B. Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets
A. Overview of ECL principles

A. Financial assets
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Determination of fair value

The Company has calculated PD, EAD and LGD to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of loans. At every reporting date, the 
above calculated PDs, EAD and LGDs are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.
The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calculates the 12 months ECL
allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-
months default probabilities are applied to a EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance for the
LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The
method is similar to that for stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company has taken into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

ii) Level 2 financial instruments: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs
other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads; and market-corroborated
inputs.

iii) Level 3 financial instruments: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as
whole.

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents above comprises of fixed deposits with banks with an original maturity of more
than three months from the date of acquisition. 

Cash and cash equivalents

B. Calculation of ECLs
The mechanics of ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (‘PD’): PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at
a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. For
investments and balances with banks, the Company uses external ratings for determining the PD of respective instruments.

EAD Exposure at Default (‘EAD’): EAD is an estimate of the amount outstanding when the borrower defaults. It is the total amount
of an asset the entity is exposed to at the time of default. It is defined based on characteristics of the asset.

LGD Loss Given Default (‘LGD’): LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the
realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

i) Level 1 financial instruments: Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active
only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when
there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date;

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents above

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method as prescribed under Ind AS 7, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Cash flow statement
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3.11

Asset Category
Computers & Printers
Furniture & Fittings

Vehicle
Office Equipment's

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Useful life of intangible assets:
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
- Software - 6 years

A. Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is 
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a 
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of 
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of
PPE comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its
intended use and other incidental expenses. Subsequent expenditure on PPE after its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable
that the future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives as specified under schedule II of the Act.

Useful life
3 Years

10 Years
10 Years
5 Years

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such asset is ready for its intended use and residual value is
considered as Nil.

PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in other income/expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets
The Company’s intangible assets include the value of software. An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the
Company.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values (Nil) over their estimated
useful lives using the written down value method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the statement of profit and
loss.

Employee benefits

B. Defined contribution plans
The Company’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined
contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services
are rendered by the employees.

Leases
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

Impairment of non financial assets - property, plant and equipment's and intangible assets
The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at the each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any indication
of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their
recoverable amount, impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as an expense, for such excess amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash
flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised
for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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E. Share based payments

3.16

3.17

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company
determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to
the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

The Company operates a gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days basic salary last
drawn for each completed year of service as per the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods and discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to
the then- net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in profit or loss.

C. Defined benefit plans

The Company operates an equity settled share-based payment arrangement for its own employees. The Company determines the
fair value of the employee stock options on the grant date using the Black Scholes model. The total cost of the share option is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the grant. The cost attributable to the services rendered by the
employees of the Company is recognised as employee benefits expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss and that pertaining to
employees of subsidiaries is recovered from subsidiaries.

B. Contingent liability

A possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or; present obligation that arises
from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are disclosed as contingent liability and
not provided for.

C. Contingent asset
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are
neither recognised not disclosed in the financial statements.

Taxes
A. Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or
paid to, the taxation authorities. Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the period as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
equity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A. Provisions

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods
or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since, the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be
utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

D. Compensated absences
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3.18

3.19 Subsequent events
Events after the reporting period that provide evidence of conditions that existed as at end of reporting period are treated as
adjusting events and the amounts recognised in the financial statements are adjusted appropriately to reflect the impact of
adjusting events.

Amounts recognised in financial statements are not adjusted for Non-adjusting events that are indicative of conditions that arose
after the end of reporting period. Material non adjusting events which could be reasonably be expected to influence decisions of
primary users of financial statements are disclosed in notes.

C. Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except when the tax incurred on availing of services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the expense item, as applicable.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the profit after tax (i.e. profit attributable to ordinary equity holders) by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the profit after tax (i.e. profit attributable to ordinary equity holders) as adjusted for after-tax
amount of dividends and interest recognised in the period in respect of the dilutive potential ordinary shares and is adjusted for
any other changes in income or expense that would result from the conversion of the dilutive potential ordinary shares, by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share as increased by the weighted average
number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share
from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the
period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits/reverse share splits,
right issue and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Standalone
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and accumulated depreciation to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and accumulated depreciation can be
utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the
Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off.

B. Deferred tax
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3.20 Related party transactions

3.21 Recent accounting pronouncement

3.22 Recent Pronouncements - Standards issued/amended but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 -
Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As 116 – Leases , relating to sale and lease back transactions, applicable from April 1,
2024. The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its financial statements.

MCA notified the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments aim to provide
clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily
exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025. The Company is currently
assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its financial statements.

Related party transactions are accounted for based on terms and conditions of the agreement / arrangement with the respective
related parties. These related party transactions are determined on an arm’s length basis and are accounted for in the year in
which such transactions occur and adjustments if any, to the amounts accounted are recognised in the year of final determination.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. All the Ind AS issued and notified by the MCA, till these financial
information are authorised, have been considered in preparing this financial statements. There are no other Ind AS that has been
issued as of date but was not mandatorily effective.
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4a Cash and cash equivalents

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Balances with Bank
In current accounts 145.86                            247.10                            

Total 145.86                            247.10                            

4b Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents above

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Balances with Bank
In fixed deposits (with original maturity of more than 3 months) 110.62                            107.84                            

Total 110.62                            107.84                            
Note: Fixed deposits of Rs. 100 lakhs (March 31, 2025 : 100 lakhs) is under lien towards an overdraft facility with a bank.

5 Receivables 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Unsecured - Considered good
Trade receivables 0.61                                3.89                                

0.61                                3.89                                
Less: Impairment loss allowance -                                  

0.61                                3.89                                

5a Trade receivables ageing

Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2025
(a) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good                                      -                                        -                                        -   0.61                                                                     -                                        -   0.61                                

(b) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

                                     -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -   -                                  

(c) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired                                      -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -   -                                  

(d) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good                                      -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -   -                                  

(e) Disputed Trade receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

                                     -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -   -                                  

(f) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired                                      -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -   -                                  

Total                                      -                                        -                                        -                                    0.61                                      -                                        -                                    0.61 

Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2024
(a) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good                                  3.28 0.61                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  3.89                                

(b) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

-                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  

(c) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  
(d) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  
(e) Disputed Trade receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

-                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  

(f) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  

Total                                  3.28                                  0.61                                      -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                    3.89 

6 Loans

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

 Loans at amortised cost 
(a) Based on Nature

Term Loans 22,721.42                      18,877.53                      

Total (A) - Gross 22,721.42                      18,877.53                      
 Less: Impairment loss allowance 162.69                            100.14                            
Total (B) - Net 22,558.74                      18,777.39                      

(b) Based on Security
 Secured by tangible assets 19,726.77                  17,719.83                      
 Secured by intangible assets                                      -   -                                  
Unsecured 2,994.65                     1,157.70                         
Total Gross 22,721.42                      18,877.53                      

 Less: Impairment loss allowance 162.69                            100.14                            
Total Net 22,558.74                      18,777.39                      

(C) Based on Region
Loans in India

 - Public sector                                      -   

 - Others                        22,721.42                        18,877.53 
Loans within India - Gross 22,721.42                      18,877.53                      

 Less: Impairment loss allowance 162.69                            100.14                            
 Loans within India - Net 22,558.74                      18,777.39                      

 Loans outside India -                                  

 Total Gross                        22,721.42                        18,877.53 
 Less: Impairment loss allowance 162.69                            100.14                            
 Total Net 22,558.74                      18,777.39                      

 Grand total - Gross (A)                        22,721.42                        18,877.53 
 Grand total - Net (B) 22,558.74                      18,777.39                      

Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total

Particulars

Particulars

(i) There is no Impairment Loss in respect of Trade Receivables.
(ii) There are no dues due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other persons or debts due by firm including Limited Liability Partnership, Private Companies
respectively, in which any director is a Partner or Director or Member

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total

Total - Net

Particulars
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7 Investments

 At amortised cost 
 At fair value through 

OCI 
 Total  At amortised cost 

 At fair value through 
OCI 

 Total 

-                                 0.82                          0.82                               -                                 0.84                               0.84                               

-                                 0.82                               0.82                               -                                 0.84                               0.84                               
-                                 -                                 -                                 

-                                 0.82                               0.82                               -                                 0.84                               0.84                               
-                                 0.82                               0.82                               -                                 0.84                               0.84                               

-                                 -                                 -                                 
-                                 0.82                               0.82                               -                                 0.84                               0.84                               

8 Other Financial Assets (At amortised cost)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

(a) Security deposits 6.76                               6.54                               
(b) Advances to Employees (0.29)                          0.32                               

6.47                               6.86                               

9 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Less: Provision for Income Tax 58.89                             38.21                             

58.89                            38.21                            

10 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 78.75                             42.04                             

78.75                            42.04                            

i. Movement in deferred tax assets for year ended 31 March 2025:

As at 01 April 2024
Expense recognised in 
Statement of Profit or 

Loss

Expense recognised in 
OCI

As at 31 March 2025

8.80                            8.84                            -                              17.64                          
8.80                            8.84                            -                              17.64                         

(1.76)                          4.70                            -                              2.93                            
Fair value on equity instruments designated under FVOCI -                              -                              0.35                            0.35                            

22.20                          9.63                            -                              31.83                          
-                              1.29                            1.57                            2.85                            

30.41                          12.82                          -                              43.23                          
-                              15.20                          -                              15.20                          

50.84                         43.63                         1.92                            96.39                         

42.04                         34.79                         1.92                            78.75                         

ii. Movement in deferred tax assets for year ended 31 March 2024:

As at 01 April 2023
Expense recognised in 
Statement of Profit or 

Loss

Expense recognised in 
OCI

As at 31 March 2024

0.95                            0.82                            -                              1.76                               
-                              8.80                            -                              8.80                            
-                              8.80                            -                              10.56                         

-                              22.20                          -                              22.20                          
-                              30.41                          -                              30.41                          
-                              52.61                         -                              52.61                         

-                              43.81                         -                              42.04                         

Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences on:

Unamortised processing fees on borrowings
Total (A)

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences on:
Impairment loss allowance on loan assets

Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences on:

Total (A)

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences on:
 DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon on property, plant and equipmentand Intangible assets

Impairment loss allowance on loan assets

 (a) Investment In Quoted Equity shares Fully paid up
- Sacheta Metals Ltd

Total

Total (A) - Gross
 (i) Investments outside India 

Particulars

 (ii) Investments in India 
 Total (B) - Gross 
 Less: Allowance for impairment Loss  
 Total (B) - Net 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars

Particulars

Unamortised processing fees on borrowings

Deferred tax assets (Net) [B -  A]

Total 

Provision for tax (net of advance tax amounting to Rs. 114.31 lakhs as at 31 March 2025)

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Remeasurements of employee benefits
Unamortised processing fees on loans
ESOP reserve
Total (B)

Unamortised processing fees on loans
Total (B)

Deferred tax assets (Net) [B -  A]

 DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon on property, plant and equipmentand Intangible assets

Particulars
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10A Property Plant and Equipment

Computers & 
Accessories

Vehicle

8.57                               4.86                        
5.76                               -                          

14.33                             4.86                        
5.17                               14.00                     2.48           -   

19.50                             18.86                     

3.20                              0.84                       
5.33                              1.04                       
8.53                               1.88                        
5.71                                    2.19                            

14.24                             4.07                        

5.80                               2.98                        
5.26                               14.79                     

10B Other Intangible Assets

Total

44.11                   
16.74                   
60.85                   

3.84                      
64.69                   

1.47                     
17.03                   
18.50                   
17.18                       

35.68                   

42.35                   
29.01                   

35.68                                

42.35                                
29.01                                

Additions

Amortisation for the year

Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2025

64.69                                

1.47                                   

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024 18.50                                
17.18                                      

Amortisation for the year 17.03                                

Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01, 2023

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024 60.85                                
3.84                                   

Additions 16.74                                

Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2023 44.11                                

Software

As at March 31, 2025 9.64                         2.17                       31.86                               

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024 12.99                       0.74                       22.51                               
Net carrying value

As at March 31, 2025 6.61                         1.50                       26.42                               
Depreciation for the year 3.35                              1.05                           12.30                                     
As at March 31, 2024 3.26                         0.45                       14.12                               
Depreciation for the year 2.29                         0.44                       9.10                                 
As at April 01, 2023 0.97                         0.01                       5.02                                 
Accumulated depreciation

As at March 31, 2025 16.25                       3.67                       58.28                               
Additions -                           21.65                               
As at March 31, 2024 16.25                       1.19                       36.63                               
Additions 7.40                         0.81                       13.97                               
As at April 01, 2023 8.85                         0.38                       22.66                               
Gross carrying value

Particulars
Furniture & 

Fittings
Office 

Equipment's
Total
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11 Other Non Financial Assets
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

0.04                                 -                                    
-                                   0.25                                  

0.04                                 0.25                                  

12 Payables

Particulars As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -                                   -                                    
45.18                               43.29                                

45.18                              43.29                               

12a Trade payables ageing

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

(a) MSME -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                    
(b) Others 45.18                               -                                   -                                   -                                   45.18                                
(c) Disputed dues - MSME -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                    
(d) Disputed dues - Others -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                    

45.18                              -                                   -                                   -                                   45.18                               

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

(a) MSME -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                    
(b) Others 43.29                               -                                   -                                   -                                   43.29                                
(c) Disputed dues - MSME -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                    
(d) Disputed dues - Others -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                    

43.29                              -                                   -                                   -                                   43.29                               

12b Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

-                                   -                                    
-                                   -                                    

-                                   -                                    

-                                   -                                    
-                                   -                                    

-                                   -                                    

13 Debt Securities

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Secured Debentures:
Non convertible debentures (Refer note 13a and 13b) 243.00                            243.00                             
Optionally convertible debentures 2,200.00                         -                                    
Total 2,443.00                         243.00                             

Debt Securities in India 2,443.00                         243.00                             
-                                    

2,443.00                         243.00                             

13a (i) Terms of secured debentures:

Interest Rate
Outstanding 

Instalment as on date
Repayment Terms*

Amount outstanding 
as at March 31, 2025

 Amount outstanding 
as at March 31, 2024 

9% NA
Principal: 3 years
Interest: yearly

243.00                            243.00                             

(ii) Terms of Unsecured debentures:

Interest Rate
Outstanding 

Instalment as on date
Repayment Terms*

Amount outstanding 
as at March 31, 2025

 Amount outstanding 
as at March 31, 2024 

11% NA
Principal: 3 years
Interest: yearly

2,200.00                         -                                    

(a) Advance to creditors
(b) Prepaid expenses

Total 

Debt Securities outside India

Total

Trade Payables

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other then micro and small enterprises

As at 31st March, 2025

Total

Outstanding for following periods from accounting date

Total

Total

 - Interest due on the above amount
(b) Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 and amounts of payment made
to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year.

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from accounting date

Note: The said disclosure is provided based on date of accounting. The ageing based on due date is not readily available.

Particulars

Particulars

Total

(a) The amounts remaining dues to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year
 - Principal amount 

* The equity share capital shall remain unchanges except otherwise on conversion of the optionally convertible debentures into Equity shares as per terms of the decided by the Board of
Directors. 

2430, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,000 
each
* Non-convertible debentures are on terms of principal bullet repayment after 3 years from the date of loan.

Particulars

Note: The above disclosures are as per the information available with the Management and relied upon by the auditors.

Particulars

Total

Particulars

2200 number of Securities, Optionally-convertible debentures 
(OCDs). Face value per OCD is Rs . 1,00,000/-

Particulars

(C) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but without adding the interest specified under this
Act.
(d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year.
(e) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprises.
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13b Security

As at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

14 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

(a) Term loans  (Refer note 14a and 14b)
From banks (secured) 5,961.31                       3,391.68                        
From NBFCs (secured) 644.69                          -                                 

(b) Loans from other parties (unsecured) (Refer note 14a) 1,060.00                       1,086.69                        
(c) Loans from related parties (unsecured) (Refer note 14a) 6,342.00                       9,223.15                        
Total (A) 14,008.00                     13,701.52                      

Borrowings in India 14,008.00                     13,701.52                      
Borrowings outside India -                                 -                                 

Total (B) 14,008.00                     13,701.52                      

14a Terms of borrowings:

Interest 
Rate

Amount outstanding 
as at March 31, 2025

 Amount outstanding 
as at March 31, 2024 

10.30%                            315.97 858.21                            

10.45%                            362.31 721.54                            

10.25%                            612.14 836.61                            

10.75%                            414.52 

10.55%                            842.05 975.32                            

11.05%                         1,300.00 

11.25%                         2,177.38 
6,024.37                        3,391.68                         

11.25%                            644.69 -                                  

644.69                           -                                  

7.50%                                     -   36.69                              

9.00%                         1,000.00 
1,000.00                         

9.00%                              60.00 50.00                              

1,060.00                        1,086.69                         

10.00%                                     -   110.00                            

10.00%                            850.00 
850.00                            

10.50%                         4,992.00 
7,763.15                         

10.00%                            500.00 
500.00                            

6,342.00                        9,223.15                         
^ Loans from banks is at variable / floating interest rate. The interest rates prevailing as at March 31, 2025 has been disclosed above.
* Loans from other parties and related parties have a principal bullet repayment term after 3 years from the date of loan.

14b Security

As at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025
Term loan from bank

I. Term loan 1 and 2

III. Term loan 3 and 4

IV. Term loan 5 and 6

V. Term loan 7

i) The loan is secured by exclusive hypothecation charge over specific pool of receivables/book debts/loan receivables created out of bank finance of the Company.
ii) The loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on designated account with the bank and all amounts credited/ deposited / lying in such accounts of the Company.
iii) Equitable Mortgage on commercial land and building bearing Survey number 12/12 Part, situated at Perungudi, OMR Road, Chennai 600 096 measuring 18312 sq. ft. belongs to M/s Khivraj 
Motors Private Limited. 
iv) M/s Khivraj Motors Private Limited has given a Corporate Guarantee.

i) The loan is secured by hypothecation of specific standard assets (present and future) with minimum asset coverage of 1.25 times.
ii) M/s Khivraj Motors Private Limited has given a Corporate Guarantee.

i) The loan is secured by first paripassu charge by way of hypothecation of Company's existing and future book debts and standard receivable with a margin of 1.25 times, at all times of the 
outstanding credit facilities. 
ii) M/s Khivraj Motors Private Limited has given a Corporate Guarantee and M/s Ultra Plus Housing Estate Pvt Limited

i) The loan is secured by first paripassu charge by way of hypothecation of Company's existing and future book debts and standard receivable with a margin of 1.25 times, at all times of the 
outstanding credit facilities. 
ii) M/s Khivraj Motors Private Limited has given a Corporate Guarantee.

Principal repayment - Monthly
Interest repayment - Monthly

Term loan 7

March 31,2025 -  28 months
March 31,2024 -  Nil

Principal repayment - Monthly
Interest repayment - Monthly

Loan from other party 2

Particulars

March 31,2025 - 7 months
March 31,2024 - 19 months

March 31,2025 - 12 months
March 31,2024 -  24 months
March 31,2025 - 27 months
March 31,2024 - 39 months

March 31,2025 -  48 months
March 31,2024 -  60 months

Term loan 1

Loans from other parties*
Loan from other party 1

Long term borrowings from bank

Outstanding Instalment as on date

i) The Non Convertible Debentures are secured by charge over all present and future assets of the Company comprising of upto 1.1 times of the book debt and all receivables from Loans 
arising out of lending business of the Company in accordance with terms of Deed of Hypothecation.

NA Principal repayment - 3 years
Interest repayment - yearly

Khivraj Motors Private Limited NA Principal repayment - 3 years
Interest repayment - yearly

Olympia Techpark Chennai
Private Limited

NA

Term loan 6

Term loan 4 March 31,2025 - 29 months
March 31,2024 - Nil

March 31,2025 -  31 months Principal repayment - Monthly

NA Principal repayment - 3 years
Interest repayment - yearly

March 31,2025 -  60 months
March 31,2024 -  Nil

Principal repayment - Monthly
Interest repayment - Monthly

Long term borrowings from NBFC

Term loan 2

Term loan 3

Term loan 5

Long term borrowings from related parties

Khivraj Automobiles and
Infrastructure Private Limited

Principal repayment - Monthly
Interest repayment - Monthly

Principal repayment - Monthly
Interest repayment - Monthly
Principal repayment - Monthly
Interest repayment - Monthly

Particulars

Term loans from banks^

Repayment Terms

Principal repayment - 3 years
Interest repayment - yearly

Long term borrowings from other parties

Term loans from NBFC
Term loan 1

NA Principal repayment - 3 years
Interest repayment - yearly

Loans from related parties*
Castle Traders Limited NA Principal repayment - 3 years

Interest repayment - yearly

Loan from other party 3 NA Principal repayment - 3 years
Interest repayment - yearly

Principal repayment - Monthly
Interest repayment - Monthly
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Term loan from NBFC
I. Term loan 1

14c

Debt Securities
 Borrowings (other 

than Debt Securities) 
-                                 -                                  
-                                 5,043.04                         
-                                 -                                  
-                                 5,043.04                         

2,200.00                        306.48                            
-                                 -                                  

2,200.00                        5,349.52                         

15 Other Financial Liabilities (At amortised cost)

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Security deposits - liabilities 1,575.15                        947.94                            

1,575.15                        947.94                            

16 Provisions

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

6.23                               4.59                                
5.11                               2.20                                

11.34                             6.79                                

17 Other Non Financial Liabilities

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

115.87                           87.39                              

115.87                           87.39                              

18 Equity Share Capital

Number (in full 
figures)

Amount
Number (in full 

figures)
 Amount 

1,62,00,000                  1,620.00                        1,62,00,000                  1,620.00                         

1,62,00,000                  1,620.00                        1,62,00,000                  1,620.00                         

1,26,92,690                  1,269.27                        1,26,92,690                  1,269.27                         

1,26,92,690                  1,269.27                        1,26,92,690                  1,269.27                         

18a Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number (in full 
figures)

Amount
Number (in full 

figures)
 Amount 

1,62,00,000                  1,620.00                        1,62,00,000                  1,620.00                         
-                                 -                                 -                                 -                                  

1,62,00,000                  1,620.00                        1,62,00,000                  1,620.00                         

1,26,92,690                  1,269.27                        1,26,92,690                  1,269.27                         
-                                 -                                 -                                 -                                  

1,26,92,690                  1,269.27                        1,26,92,690                  1,269.27                         

i) The loan is secured by first paripassu charge by way of hypothecation of Company's existing and future book debts and standard receivable with a margin of 1.10 times, at all times of the outstanding credit 
facilities. 
ii) M/s Ultra Plus Housing Estate Pvt Limited has given a Corporate Guarantee

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Cash flows (net)

Particulars

As at March 31,2023

Others*
As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding at the end of the Year

As at March 31, 2024

Cash flows (net)
Others*
As at March 31, 2025
* Includes the effect of interest accrued but not due, amortization of processing fees etc.

Total 

Authorised Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Total Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital

As at March 31, 2025

Authorised
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the Year

Issued Subscribed and Paid Up

Statutory remittances (contributions to PF and ESI, withholding taxes, GST, etc.) 

As at March 31, 2024

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, Fully Paid up Share capital by allotment

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars

Particulars

Total 

Total Authorized Capital

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Issued during the year

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital

Provision for employee benefits

Total 

- Gratuity

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

- Leave encashment
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 18b Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company during the preceding 5 years -
i.   has not allotted shares pursuant to contracts without payment received in cash.
ii.  has not allotted shares as fully paid up by way of bonus shares.
iii. has not bought back any shares.

18 Equity Share Capital (Contd.)
18c Details of shares held by Holding Company in the Company

Number (in full 
figures)

% Number (in full 
figures)

 % 

68,69,620                       54.12% 68,69,620                       54.12%

18d Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Number (in full 
figures)

% Number (in full 
figures)

 % 

68,69,620                       54.12% 68,69,620                       54.12%

18e Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

Number (in full 
figures)

% Number (in full 
figures)

 % 

68,69,620                       54.12% 68,69,620                       54.12%

19  Other Equity

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

700.00                            700.00                             
-                                   -                                    

700.00                            700.00                             

582.15                            582.15                             
-                                   -                                    

582.15                            582.15                             

1,299.77                         1,089.22                          
461.02                            263.30                             

  Add: Other Comprehensive Income 1.15                                 0.07                                  
(92.43)                             (52.67)                              

1,669.51                         1,299.92                          

331.59                            278.92                             
92.43                               52.67                                

424.02                            331.59                             

(e) Share Based Payment Reserve
  Opening Balance -                                   -                                    
  Add: Addition during the Year 60.39                               -                                    
  Closing balance 60.39                               -                                    

3,436.07                         2,913.66                          

19a Nature and purpose of other reserves

iii) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss represents the amount of profit incurred by the Company other than amounts transferred to General reserve. These reserves are free 
reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

iv) Reserve fund (RBI) is a special reserve under Section 45 IC of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934 which is created as per the requirements of RBI at the rate of 20% of the profit after 
tax for the year.

The Company has not converted any securities into equity shares /preference shares during the above financial years.

There are no calls unpaid, including  by Directors / Officers of the Company.

The Company has not forfeited any shares during the above financial years.

Particulars

Name of the Shareholder

Name of the Promoter

Particulars

i) Securities premium represents the amount received on issue of shares in excess of the par value. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the provisions 
of section 52 of the Act. 

ii) The General Reserve represents the profits transferred from Statement of profit and loss from time to time and can be utilised for the purpose of payment of dividend.

  Closing balance

Total 

  Less: Transfer to RBI Reserve Fund
  Closing balance

(d) Statutory Reserve
  Opening Balance
  Add: Addition during the Year

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2024

  Add: Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account

  Add:- Addition During the year
  Closing Balance

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2025

Ultraplus Housing Estate Pvt Ltd

As at March 31, 2024

Ultraplus Housing Estate Pvt Ltd

   Closing Balance

(c) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
  Opening Balance

   Opening Balance
   Add:- Addition During the year

  Opening Balance

(b) General Reserve

(a) Securities Premium

The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. Equity Shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share held and dividend in
proportion to share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after payment of all preferential amounts, in
proportion to their shareholding.

The Company has not reserved any share for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment.

As at March 31, 2025

Ultraplus Housing Estate Pvt Ltd
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20 Interest Income
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
(a) Interest on loans                       2,551.39                                1,767.42 
(b) Interest on deposits with banks                            27.80                                       8.15 

Total 2,579.19                     1,775.57                              

21 Fees and other charges
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
(a) Processing fees on loans                          236.86                                     70.18 
(b) Documentation charges                            30.85                                       6.13 
(c) Application fees                               8.10                                     10.15 
(d) Bounce charges                               3.67                                       1.50 
(e) Foreclosure charges                               8.01                                     10.08 
(f) Dividend Income                               0.01 0

Total 287.49                        98.04                                   

22.1 Revenue from contracts with customers
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
(a) Disaggregation of Revenue from contract with customers

Application fees 8.10                             10.15                                   
Bounce charges 3.67                             1.50                                      
Foreclosure charges 8.01                             10.08                                   

Total revenue from contracts with customers 19.78                           21.73                                   
(b) Geographical Market

India 19.78                           21.73                                   
Outside India -                                        

Total revenue from contracts with customers 19.78                           21.73                                   
(c) Timing of Revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 19.78                           21.73                                   
Services transferred over a period in time -                                        

Total revenue from contracts with customers 19.78                           21.73                                   

22 Other Income
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
(a) Advertising Income                                   -                                         7.50 
(b) Liabilities no longer required written back                                   -                                         7.15 
(c) Interest from CCD's                                   -                                         0.01 
(d) Profit/Loss from sale of shares                                   -                                              -   
(e) Commission Income                            19.21 
(f) Other Income                               1.37 

Total 20.58                           14.66                                   

23 Finance Cost
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
(a) Interest on borrowings:

- term loans from banks                          450.37 269.09                                 
- term loans from others                          947.84 36.70                                   
- other loans from related party                                   -   608.36                                 

(b) Interest on debt securities                            21.87 21.87                                   

Total 1,420.08                     936.02                                 

24 Commission expenses
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
Commission Charges                            86.61 32.83                                   

Total 86.61                           32.83                                   

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars
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25 Impairment on financial instruments
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
Impairment loss allowance on loans                             62.54 47.77                                    

Total 62.54                           47.77                                    

26 Employee Benefit Expense
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus                           320.24 212.96                                  
(b) Director Remuneration                             28.40 45.40                                    
(c) Contribution to Provident and other funds (Refer note 34)                             16.25 13.39                                    
(d) Staff Welfare Expenses                               7.13 1.73                                      
(e) Gratuity expense (Refer note 34)                               3.18 4.59                                      
(f) Leave encashment                               2.91 2.20                                      
(g) ESOP Compensation Expenses                             60.39 -                                        

Total 438.50                         280.27                                  

27 Depreciation and Amortisation 
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment                             12.69 9.10                                      
(b) Amortisation on Intangible assets 16.79 17.03                                    

Total 29.48                           26.13                                    

28 Other Expenses
 For the year ended

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

March 31,2024 
(a) Legal & valuation charges                             53.73 49.90                                    
(b) Advertisement & Publicity                               7.04 1.96                                      
(c) Annual Membership Fees                               1.69 0.93                                      
(d) Bank Charges                               0.08 0.28                                      
(e) Electricity charges                               2.99 2.86                                      
(f) Listing Fees                               3.54 3.25                                      
(g) Printing & Stationery                               8.27 5.49                                      
(h) Professional / Consultancy Fees                             95.08 42.18                                    
(i) Rent                             20.69 18.44                                    
(j) Rates and Taxes                               0.33 5.09                                      
(k) Travelling & Conveyance                             27.90 18.58                                    
(l) Maintenance Charges                               6.92 4.00                                      

(m) Director Sitting Fees                               3.81 1.64                                      
(n) Software Expenses                             12.63 0.34                                      
(o) Payments to auditors                             12.95 1.61                                      
(p) Internet charges                               9.18 7.26                                      
(q) Loss from sale of shares                                    -   -                                        
(r) Miscellaneous expenses                             16.74 8.70                                      

Total 283.57                         172.51                                  

Breakup of Auditor's remuneration

 For the year ended
March 31,2025 

 For the year ended
March 31,2024 

(a) Statutory Audit                               1.00 1.50                                      
(b) GST on the above -                           0.11                                      

Total 1.00                             1.61                                      

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars
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29 Tax Expenses

 For the year ended
March 31,2025 

 For the year ended
March 31,2024 

(a) Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current tax 154.03                               146.99                                 
Deferred tax (37.10)                               (43.01)                                 
Tax expenses of earlier years (11.47)                               25.46                                   

(b) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income:
Tax impact on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1.57                                   -                                      
Tax impact on Fair value on equity instruments designated under FVOCI 0.35                                   (0.02)                                   

(C) Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit for the year:
Profit before tax 566.48                               392.74                                 
Enacted tax rates (%) 25.17% 25.17%

Income tax expense calculated at corporate tax rate 142.57                               98.84                                   
Tax effect on expenditure not allowed under the Income Tax Act, 1961 52.78                                 60.71                                   
Tax effect on expenditure allowed under the Income Tax Act, 1961 -22.15                                -12.57                                 
Others (net) -19.17                                -                                       
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 154.03                               146.99                                 

30 Earnings Per Share

 For the year ended
March 31,2025 

 For the year ended
March 31,2024 

461.02                               263.30                                 
1,26,92,690                     1,26,92,690                       

2,19,934                           -                                      
1,29,12,624                     1,26,92,690                       

Rs. 10/- Rs. 10/-

3.63 2.07
3.57 2.07

31 Segment Reporting

32

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

                                        -                                             -   

                                        -                                             -   

33 Disclosure under Ind AS 116 – 'Leases'

 For the year ended
March 31,2025 

 For the year ended
March 31,2024 

20.69 18.44

20.69 18.44

Diluted Earnings Per Share (in ₹)

a) Contingent Liabilities

b) Commitments

The Company has evaluated the requirements of Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments. Operating segments are identified based on the internal reports
reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to allocate resources and assess performance.

The CODM reviews the Company’s performance as a single integrated business, which is primarily engaged in providing loans for business purposes to
financial institutions, personal loans to individuals, and mortgage-related loans. The internal reporting structure is aligned with this unified approach, and
discrete financial information for separate segments is not available. Accordingly, the Company has determined that it operates in a single reportable
business segment.

Further, the Company operates entirely within India and does not have any operations outside the country. Therefore, no separate geographical
segment disclosures are required.

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

The total lease expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss pertaining to short-term leases is as follows:

Rental expenses for the year

Total

Particulars

The management has evaluated all relevant matters and confirms that there are no pending litigations, claims, or other obligations as on the reporting
date that would result in a present or possible obligation requiring disclosure under the applicable financial reporting framework.

The Company has elected to apply the recognition exemption for short-term leases as permitted under paragraph 5(a) of Ind AS 116. Accordingly, the
Company has not recognized right-of-use (ROU) assets and corresponding lease liabilities for leases that, at the commencement date, have a lease term
of 12 months or less. All lease arrangements entered into by the Company during the reporting period fall within this exemption criterion. The lease
payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Particulars

Add: Diluting effect of potential equity shares issued as employee stock options

Particulars

Profit after Tax
Weighted Average No. of Shares for Basic Earnings per Share

Weighted Average No. of Shares for Diluted Earnings per Share
Face Value Per Equity Shares (in Rs.)

Basic Earnings Per Share (in ₹)
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34 Related Party Disclosures

34.1 The list of related parties as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors are as under:

Description of Relationship
Holding company

Varsha Gupta, (Company Secretary w.e.f November 12 , 2024)

Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal (w.e.f February 14, 2024)

Relative of KMP

34 Related Party Disclosures (Contd.)

34.2 Transactions carried out with related parties referred to above in the ordinary course of business during the year

Particulars Name of the related party  For the year ended
March 31,2025 

 For the year ended
March 31,2024 

Transactions with executive directors and KMP (Refer note (d) below)
Salary Gopal Sridharan 28.40                               45.40                                 

Priyanka Singh -                                   1.80                                   
Manoj Kumar Jena 7.81                                 2.98                                   
Arindam Laha -                                   0.72                                   
Varsha Gupta 3.80                                 -                                     
Anandakumar A 10.25                               2.25                                   
Gopal Sridharan 1.08                                 2.30                                   
Manoj Kumar Jena 0.22                                 0.06                                   
Varsha Gupta 0.13                                 -                                     
Anandakumar A 0.22                                 0.05                                   

Transactions with non-executive directors
Sitting Fees Rajesh Kumar Sethia -                                   0.43                                   

Ujjawal Kumar Bothra 0.55                                 0.43                                   
Sweta Ghorawat -                                   0.08                                   
Somnath Sarkar 0.60                                 0.29                                   
Sundaresan Sampathkumar 0.45                                 0.18                                   
C.S. Padmini 0.35                                 0.05                                   
Ratnesh Kumar Agrawal 1.05                                 0.05                                   
Muthusamy Ganeshkumar 0.50                                 -                                     

Transaction with relative of director
Consulting fees B. Jeyalakshmi -                                   19.90                                 
Transaction with Enterprise over which Promoters have significant influence
Inter Corporate Loan (Received) Khivraj Motors Private Limited 12,667.08                       13,112.37                         

Khivraj Automobile and Infrastructure Private Limited -                                   625.00                              
Castle Traders Limited -                                   10.00                                 
Olympia Tech Park (Chennai) Private Limited 500.00                             500.00                              
Alwarpet Properties Private Limited -                                   -                                     

Inter Corporate Loan (Repayment) Khivraj Motors Private Limited 15,438.23                       10,149.22                         
Khivraj Automobile and Infrastructure Private Limited -                                   75.00                                 
Alwarpet Properties Private Limited -                                   1,163.28                           
Olympia Tech Park (Chennai) Private Limited 500.00                             -

Term Loan (Given) Khivrajkamal Motors Private Limited -                                   750.00                              
Term Loan (Repayment Received) Khivrajkamal Motors Private Limited 505.65                             -                                     

Optionally Convertible Debentures Issued
Khivraj Motors Private Limited 2,200.00                          -                                     

Income
Interest Received Khivrajkamal Motors Private Limited 54.30                               27.83                                 
Expenses (Refer note (b) below)
Interest Paid Khivraj Motors Private Limited 687.70                             525.78                              

Khivraj Automobile and Infrastructure Private Limited 85.00                               37.70                                 
Castle Traders Limited 7.02                                 10.43                                 
Olympia Tech Park (Chennai) Private Limited 13.56                               0.63                                   
Alwarpet Properties Private Limited -                                   33.81                                 

Rent Paid Khivraj Motors Private Limited 10.85                               12.33                                 
Maintenance Expenses Khivraj Automobiles and Infrastructure Private Limited 1.48                                 -                                     
Commission for Corporate Guarantee Paid Khivraj Motors Private Limited 10.00                               10.00                                 

Khivraj Motors Private Limited 14.00                               -                                     
Khivraj Automobiles and Infrastructure Private Limited -                                   4.86                                   

B. Jeyalakshmi (relative of Gopal Sridharan (Whole-time Director))

Contribution to Provident fund

Purchase of assets

Non Executive Director Rajesh Kumar Sethia (until March 31, 2024)
Sweta Ghorawat (until February 14, 2024)
Sundaresan Sampathkumar (w.e.f November 14, 2022)
Ujjawal Kumar Bothra (until  August 07, 2024) 
Somnath Sarkar
C.S. Padmini (w.e.f February 14, 2024)

Mutthyswamy Ganeshkumar (w.e.f August 1, 2024)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Gopal Sridharan (Whole-time Director)

Priyanka Singh, (Company Secretary until December 28, 2023)
Manoj Kumar Jena, (Company Secretary until  August 17, 2024)

Anandakumar A, (Chief Financial Officer w.e.f December 28, 2023)

Arindam Laha, (Chief Financial Officer until December 28, 2023)

Name of Related Parties
Ultraplus Housing Estate Private Limited

Enterprise over which Promoters have
significant influence

Alwarpet Properties Private Limited
Castle Traders Limited
Khivrajkamal Motors Private Limited
Olympia Techpark Chennai Private Limited
Khivraj Motors Private Limited 
Khivraj Automobiles and Infrastructure Private Limited
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34 Related Party Disclosures (Contd.)

34.3 Balances outstanding with related parties as at the end of the year

Particulars Name of the related party  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 
Assets at year end
Term Loan (Given) Khivrajkamal Motors Private Limited 298.65                             750.00                               
Liabilities at year end
Inter Corporate Loan balance Khivraj Motors Private Limited 4,992.00                          7,763.15                            

Khivraj Automobile and Infrastructure Private Limited 850.00                             850.00                               
Castle Traders Limited 110.00                             110.00                               
Olympia Tech Park (Chennai) Private Limited 500.00                             500.00                               

Director Sitting Fees Payable Rajesh Kumar Sethia -                                   -                                     
Ujjawal Kumar Bothra -                                   -                                     
Sweta Ghorawat -                                   -                                     
Somnath Sarkar -                                   -                                     
Anand Bhagat -                                   -                                     

Optionally Convertible Debentures Khivraj Motors Private Limited 2,200.00                          -                                     

Notes:

(d) As the gratuity and compensated absences are determined for all the employees in aggregate, the post-employment benefits and other long-term
benefits relating to key management personnel cannot be ascertained individually.

(a) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled through bank.

(b) The amount of transactions disclosed above is before considering Goods and Services Tax (wherever applicable, irrespective of whether input credit
has been availed or not) as charged by/to the counter party as part of the invoice/relevant document and is gross of tax deducted at source under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 .
(c) The aforesaid transactions are disclosed only from the date / upto the date, the party has become / ceases to become a related party to the Company.
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35 Share based payments

a. Real Touch Finance Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2024 (ESOP 2024)

No. of options Weighted average 
exercise price (in ₹)

No. of options Weighted average 
exercise price (in ₹)

Opening balance -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 
Granted during the year 2,52,934                       12.24                            -                                 -                                 
Forfeited during the year -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 
Exercised during the year -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 
Lapsed during the year -33,000                          -                                 -                                 -                                 
Options outstanding at the end of the year 2,19,934                       12.24                            -                                 -                                 
Options exercisable at the end of the year 2,19,934                       12.24                            -                                 -                                 

Grant date Expiry date
Exercise price

(in ₹)
Options outstanding 
as at 31 March 2025

Options outstanding 
as at 31 March 2024

01 July, 2024 30 June, 2027 10                                     1,58,926                          -                             

01 July, 2024 30 June, 2028 15                                     15,000                              -                             

01 July, 2024 30 June, 2028 19                                     46,008                              -                             

2,19,934                       -                                 

2.53                               -                                 

The Company has formulated an employee share-based payment scheme to attract and retain talent, align employees' interests with
the Company, and motivate them to contribute to its growth and profitability. The Company views employee stock options as
instruments that would enable the employees to have a share in the value they create for the Company in the years to come. 

At present, the following employee share-based payment scheme is in operation, details of which are given below:

The Company has formulated the equity settled Employee Stock Option Plan shall be called as 'Real Touch Finance Limited - Employee
Stock Option Plan 2024 (ESOP 2024)'. The ESOP 2024 was approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of
Directors at their meetings held on the 22 May, 2024. Subsequently, the ESOP 2024 was duly approved by the shareholders of the
Company on 27 June, 2024 by way of special resolution and shall continue to be in force until (i) its termination by the Board or the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Board as authorized or (ii) the date on which all of the Employee Stock Options
available for issuance under the ESOP 2024 have  been issued and exercised, whichever is earlier. 

As per ESOP 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees as
outlined in the scheme document and grant letter issued to the employees and approves the grant of options. These options vest with
eligible employees over a specified period, subject to fulfillment of the conditions. Under the said scheme, the no. of options shall not
exceed 6,34,635 exercisable into 6,34,635 equity shares. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has granted 2,52,934 equity-
settled stock options on 01 July 2024 to eligible employees of the Company. The vesting period is minimum one year from the date of
grant and maximum five years.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Share options outstanding at the end of the period have the following expiry date and exercise prices as on 31st March 2025 and 31st 
March 2024:

Total
Weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding at the 
end of the year
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Category A (Exercise price: ₹ 10)

Particulars 1-year vesting 2-year vesting 3-year vesting
Stock Price per share (in ₹) 56.05 56.05 56.05
Standard Dev (Volatility) 2.63% 2.63% 2.63%
Risk-free Rate 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Exercise Price (in ₹) 10.00 15.00 19.00
Time To Maturity (in years) 2.25                                  3.25                                  3.25                                  
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
 Fair value of option (in ₹) 46.63 47.18 47.70

Category B (Exercise price: ₹ 15)

Particulars 1-year vesting 2-year vesting 3-year vesting
Stock Price per share (in ₹) 56.05 56.05 56.05
Standard Dev (Volatility) 2.63% 2.63% 2.63%
Risk-free Rate 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Exercise Price (in ₹) 10.00 15.00 19.00
Time To Maturity (in years) 2.25                                  3.25                                  3.25                                  
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fair value of option (in ₹) 41.92 42.75 43.52

Category C (Exercise price: ₹ 19)

Particulars 1-year vesting 2-year vesting 3-year vesting
Stock Price per share (in ₹) 56.05 56.05 56.05
Standard Dev (Volatility) 2.63% 2.63% 2.63%
Risk-free Rate 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Exercise Price (in ₹) 10.00 15.00 19.00
Time To Maturity (in years) 2.25                                  3.25                                  3.25                                  
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
 Fair value of option (in ₹) 38.16 39.20 40.18

Employee benefit expenses to be recognised in the financial statements

The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Options Pricing Model and the significant assumptions made in this regard are 
as follows:

The Company has recognised employee stock-based compensation expense of ₹ 60.34 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March, 2025 (31
March, 2024: Nil) in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The corresponding impact is recognised as ‘Employee share-based payment
reserve’ in Other Equity.
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36 Employee Benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

                                   14.99                                11.74 
                                     1.07                                  1.65 
                                  16.06                               13.39 

(b) Defined benefit plan:
Gratuity

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

4.59                                    -                                  
2.85                                    4.59                                

-                                      -                                  
0.33                                    -                                  

-                                      -                                  
-                                      -                                  
-                                      -                                  

(1.55)                                   -                                  
-                                      -                                  

6.23                                    4.59                                

-                                      -                                  

6.23                                    4.59                                
-                                      -                                  
-                                      -                                  

(6.23)                                   (4.59)                               

2.85                                    4.59                                
0.33                                    -                                  

-                                      -                                  
3.18                                    4.59                                

0.22                                    -                                  
-                                  

(1.76)                                   -                                  
(1.55)                                   

-                                  

6.92% 7.22%
7.00% 7.00%

10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00%

8.33% 7.89%
5.56% 5.26%
2.78% 2.63%
1.39% 1.32%

35 to 40
40 to 45
45 to 50
50 to 55

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India’s bond as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Discount rate (per annum)
Salary growth rate
Attrition rate
20 to 25
25 to 30
30 to 35

Due to experience adjustments
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

vi. Principal actuarial assumptions

Past service cost
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

v. Other comprehensive income
Due to change in financial assumptions
Due to change in demographic assumption

Unrecognised past service cost
Net asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet as at the end of the year

iv. Expense recognised during the Year
Current service cost
Interest cost

ii. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

iii. Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Acquisition adjustment
Benefit paid
Change in demographic assumptions
Remeasurements on obligation - (Gain) / Loss
Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year

Particulars
i. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption then the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact
of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign/retire from the
Company, there can be strain on the cash flows.

Market risk: 
Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate.
The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in defined benefit obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption
depends on the yields on the government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Legislative risk:
Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the same will
have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 is as under:

Financial assets not measured at fair value
The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the ‘gratuity plan’) covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act,
employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age/
resignation date.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to risks such as actuarial risk, liquidity risk, market risk, legislative risk. These are discussed as follows:

Actuarial risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no
condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount
rate.

Disclosure in respect of employee benefits under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefit are as under:

Company's (employer's) contribution to defined contribution plans recognised as expenses in the Statement of profit and loss are:

Particulars

Employer's contribution to provident fund (Grouped under Contribution to PF and Other funds in note 26)
Employer's contributions to employee state insurance (Grouped under Contribution to PF and Other funds in note 26)
Total
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vii. Sensitivity analysis

viii. Effect of plan on the Company’s future cash flows

As at March 31, 2025

0.02                                 

0.02                                 

0.02                                 
0.02                                 
0.03                                 
3.03                                 

13.34                               
                                16.47 

Year 4
Year 5
Next 5 year pay outs (6-10 years)
Pay out above 10 years

Total

Particulars
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
Year 1
Year 2

Year 3

Increase by 100 bps (0.20)                                                                                   0.16                                                                                  
Decrease by 100 bps 0.20                                                                                     (0.17)                                                                                 

Decrease by 100 bps (0.63)                                                                                   0.46                                                                                  
(iii) Attrition rate -                                                                                       

(ii) Salary growth rate
Increase by 100 bps 0.73                                                                                     (0.53)                                                                                 

Increase by 100 bps (0.63)                                                                                   0.46                                                                                  
Decrease by 100 bps 0.75                                                                                     (0.54)                                                                                 

(Increase) / Decrease on the defined benefit obligation As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

(i) Discount rate

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and attrition rate. The sensitivity analysis below have
been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of
sensitivity analysis is given below:
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37 Capital management

I. Net debt to equity ratio:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

                      4,705.34                       4,182.93 
                      2,443.00                          243.00 
                    14,008.00                     13,701.52 

145.86                         247.10                         
16,305.14                   13,697.42                   

3.47                             3.27                             

II. Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR):

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

4,597.59                                           4,098.29 
90.04                                                      74.75 

4,687.63                     4,173.04                     

22,598.50                   19,375.65                   

20.34% 21.152%
0.40% 0.386%

20.74% 21.54%
Not Applicable Not Applicable

The Company monitors its capital structure using gearing ratio (Net Debt divided by Equity) and Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR). The Company has complied with all externally 
imposed capital requirements during the reporting period.

Net Debt to Equity Ratio ( F = E / A)

Particulars

Tier I capital

Debt Securities (B)

Tier I CRAR

CRAR (Tier I + Tier II)

Total capital for CRAR (Tier I + Tier II)

Risk weighted assets

Tier II capital

Tier II CRAR

The Company actively manages its capital to ensure it is adequately capitalised to meet regulatory requirements, support its business operations, and absorb inherent risks. The capital
management strategy is formulated in line with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), taking into account the economic, regulatory, and business environment.

The objective of capital management is to maintain a strong capital base to support current and future business growth and sustain investor and market confidence, optimise the capital
structure to maximise shareholder value while safeguarding the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and ensure compliance with the externally imposed tcapital adequacy
requirements prescribed by the RBI. To maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Company may reinvest profits, return capital to shareholders, issue new capital instruments (including Tier II
debt or equity securities), or adjust dividend distributions, depending on the financial position and growth outlook.
There have been no material changes from prior years to the Company’s capital management objectives, policies, or processes. These are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to ensure
alignment with strategic goals and regulatory developments. 

Particulars

Total Equity (A)

Liquidity coverage ratio*

*The Company is registered under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Finance Company. Hence, this ratio is not applicable.

Borrowings other than Debt Securities (C) 
Cash and Cash equivalents (D)
Net Debt ( E = B + C - D )
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38 Fair Value Measurement

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques. Financial Instruments by category is provided in note 36.

Particulars
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost
Level 1 Level 3 Level 2

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 145.86                           -                               -                               145.86                            
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
above

110.62                           -                               -                               110.62                            

Receivables 0.61                               -                               -                               0.61                                
Loans 22,558.74                     -                               -                               22,558.74                       
Investments measured at fair value 0.82                               0.82                             -                                  
Other Financial Assets 6.47                               -                               -                               6.47                                
Total financial assets 22,823.12                     -                               0.82                             22,822.29                      

Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 45.18                             -                               -                               45.18                              
Debt Securities 2,443.00                        -                               -                               2,443.00                         
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 14,008.00                     -                               -                               14,008.00                       
Other Financial Liabilities 1,575.15                        -                               -                               1,575.15                         
Total financial liabilities 18,071.34                     -                               -                               18,071.34                      

Particulars
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost
Level 1 Level 3 Level 2

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 247.10                           -                               -                               247.10                            
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
above

107.84                           -                               -                               
107.84                            

Receivables 3.89                               -                               -                               3.89                                
Loans 18,777.39                     -                               -                               18,777.39                       
Investments measured at fair value 0.84                               -                               0.84                             -                                  
Other Financial Assets 6.86                               -                               -                               6.86                                
Total financial assets 19,143.92                     -                               0.84                             19,143.08                      

Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 43.29                             -                               -                               43.29                              
Debt Securities 243.00                           -                               -                               243.00                            
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 13,701.52                     -                               -                               13,701.52                       
Other Financial Liabilities 947.94                           -                               -                               947.94                            
Total financial liabilities 14,935.75                     -                               -                               14,935.75                      

Financial instruments valued at carrying value:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

Category

Category Carrying amount

Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instrument that are:
(a) recognized and measured at fair value and 
(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting 
standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath table.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that the Company has the ability to access for the identical assets or 
liabilities. A financial instrument is classified as a Level 1 measurement if it is listed on an exchange.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data either directly 
or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. If all significant 
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based in observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3.

The respective carrying values of certain on-balance sheet financial instruments approximated their fair value. These financial instruments include cash in hand, balances with Banks, accrued
interest receivable, acceptances, accrued interest payable, and certain other assets and liabilities that are considered financial instruments. Carrying values were assumed to be approximate fair
values for these financial instruments as they are short-term in nature and their recorded amounts approximate fair values or are receivable or payable on demand.
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39 Financial risk management

Risk

Exposure arising from

Measurement

Management

A Credit risk

i) Credit risk management

ii) Provision for expected credit losses
The Company provides for expected credit loss based on following:

Category

Description of category

Probability of default (PD)

Exposure at default (EAD)

Loss given default (LGD)

This note explains the sources of risk which the Company is exposed to and how the Company manages the risk.

• Recommend changes to the risk Policy for approval by the Audit Committee.
• Monitors and supervises the ECL process, identifies and analyses the risks faced by the Company
• Authorize any overrides on the provisioning model of assets to achieve provisioning objectives in line with the approval policy
• Reviewing the adequacy of ECL training across the key departments
• Establishing that the businesses comply with the risk Policy
• Review and address concerns raised by the internal Credit Committee, Statutory Auditors or the Internal Auditors in any ECL exceptions
• Delegate such roles and responsibilities to the Company’s internal Credit Committee to ensure that this policy is in line with the board approved policy and the applicable accounting 
standards.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s 
receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.

Maturity analysis

The Company’s board of directors is the highest decision- making body within the organisation. The Board of directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk
management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management committee is established to

Loans and advances, cash and cash 
equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets 
measured at amortized cost.

Diversification of Company's investments into 
securities and fixed deposits. Monitoring of 
credit risk on loans and advances basis the 
days past dues.

Credit risk Liquidity risk

Trade liabilities

Loans
The Company is primarily engaged in providing loans for business purposes to financial institutions, personal 
purposes to individuals and other mortgage purposes.
The PD estimation is based on transition matrix approach, gross flow analysis and net flow analysis with application of 
single factor Vasicek model for incorporation of macro- economic factor (GDP). The Company has used cohort 
framework for computation of PDs on loans. As the default definition for loan portfolio is 90 days past due, the 
Company taken quarterly transition matrix for estimation of PDs across following behavioural buckets: Ranking 1: 
Current (DPD up to 0) Ranking 2: Up to 30 Days past due Ranking 3: Up to 60 days past due Ranking 4: Up to 90 days 
past due Ranking 5: Default PD estimates grouped as per the above ranking grades. For Stage 3 assets PD is taken to 
be 100%. For the First loss default guarantee (FLDG) portfolio, loans are classified in three stages - Upto 30 days, Upto 
90 days and Default). PD % is calculated for each stage and is determined using available historical observations.

Exposure at Default gives an estimate of the amount outstanding when the borrower defaults. It is the total amount 
of an asset the entity is exposed to at the time of default.  

The exposure at default for the loans is: Principal outstanding + accrued interest

LGD for loan portfolio will be calculated at a portfolio level based upon the actual recovery data. In case of 
insufficient recovery information due to low/no defaults, a proxy LGD based on industry practice would be used.

Maintaining sufficient cash and cash 
equivalents and marketable investments

The Company has operations in India which expose it to liquidity risk and credit risk. The risks are managed through a management established framework of identification and measurement of 
risk.

The audit committee oversees the recommendations of the risk management committee and how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee ensures adequate provisioning for the financial 
statements in line with the approved policies and ensures that the scope of the External Auditor covers adequate assurance in complying with the Company’s approved provisioning and risk 
policy.

Credit risk arises from loans and advances, cash and cash equivalents, investments carried at amortized cost and deposits held by the Company.

The primary organizational groups forming part of the Company risk governance are Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Risk committee and Credit committee. In regards to loans and 
advances of the Company, the credit risk is managed in accordance with the ECL policy by monitoring of credit risk basis the days past dues. For the investments, the ECL policy provides that the 
Company uses the external ratings for estimation of forward looking PDs to estimate ECL. The Company reviews the creditworthiness of these counterparties on an on-going basis.

The Company classifies its financial assets in following category:
Stage 1
As soon as a financial instrument originates or is purchased, it is categorized as Stage 1. This is applicable across all the loan facilities, investments and bank balances. Stage 1 would include all 
residual facilities, not impaired or, have not experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Stage 2 and stage 3 Loans
The following staging criteria based on Days Past Dues (DPDs) fixed for Loan portfolio as per the Ind AS 109:
Stage 1 to Stage 2: More than 30 Days Past Due as criteria for Stage 2 classification. 
Stage 2 to Stage 3: More than 90 Days Past Due as criteria for Stage 3 classification.

Aging analysis of loans and advances held at 
amortized cost Credit ratings in case of 
investments held at amortized cost
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For the year ended 31 March, 2025

Particulars Asset group
Estimated gross 

carrying amount at 
default*

Expected credit loss
(%)

Expected credit losses
Carrying amount net  

of impairment 
provision

Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected 
credit losses

Loans at amortised 
cost

22,459.70                   0.40% 89.96                               22,369.74                    

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected 
credit losses, not credit impaired

Loans at amortised 
cost

19.57                           0.40% 0.08                                 19.49                           

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected 
credit losses, credit impaired

Loans at amortised 
cost

242.16                        30.00% 72.65                               169.51                         

For the year ended 31 March, 2024

Particulars Asset group
Estimated gross 

carrying amount at 
default

Expected credit loss
(%)

Expected credit losses
Carrying amount net  

of impairment 
provision

Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected 
credit losses

Loans at amortised 
cost

18,623.58                   0.40% 74.75                               18,548.83                    

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected 
credit losses, not credit impaired

Loans at amortised 
cost

253.93                        10.00% 25.39                               228.54                         

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected 
credit losses, credit impaired

Loans at amortised 
cost

-                               -                               -                                   -                               

The Company has applied a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses (ECL) on debt instruments accounted for at amortised cost. Assets migrate through following three stages 
based on the changes in credit quality since initial recognition:

(a) Stage 1 - 12- months ECL: For exposures where there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion of the 
lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12- months is recognized.

(b) Stage 2 - Lifetime ECL, not credit-impaired: For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is 
recognized. Marginal PDs are used to compute lifetime ECL.

(c) Stage 3 - Lifetime ECL, credit-impaired: Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired upon occurrence of one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of that asset. For financial assets that have become credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised 
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk of its financial assets since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring 
over the expected life of the asset. In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company uses information that is relevant and available without 
undue cost or effort. This is based on the historical default rates or delinquency status of account across various internal rating grades, products or sectors.

The Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly on an individual and collective basis. In determining whether the credit risk on a financial asset has 
increased significantly, the Company considers the change in the risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. The default definition used for such assessment is consistent with that used 
for internal credit risk management purposes.

The Company considers defaulted assets as those which are contractually past due 90 days, other than those assets where there is empirical evidence to the contrary. Financial assets which are 
contractually past due 30 days are classified under Stage 2 - life time ECL, not credit impaired, barring those where there is empirical evidence to the contrary. An asset can move into and out of 
the lifetime expected credit losses category (Stage 2 and 3) based on a predefined pattern obtained from the historical default rates or delinquency status of account across various internal 
rating grades, products or sectors. Credit exposures transition back from stage 2 to stage 1 when the credit quality of the credit facility shows significant improvement. Primarily, when factors 
that previously triggered an exposure moving to Stage 2 no longer meet, such exposures move back to Stage 1 and a 12-month ECL measured instead of Lifetime ECL. Credit exposures may 
transition from stage 3 to stage 2/ stage 1, if the exposures are current, no longer meet the definition of default/credit impaired and if the factors that previously triggered an exposure to move 
to stage 3 are no longer met.

The Company measures the amount of ECL on a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount. The Company considers its historical loss experience 
and adjusts the same for current observable data. The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default. These parameters are 
derived from the Company’s internally developed statistical models and other historical data. In addition, the Company has used reasonable and supportable information on future economic 
conditions by using GDP as suitable macroeconomic factors. Since incorporating these forward looking information increases the judgment as to how the changes in these macroeconomic 
factor will affect ECL, the methodology and assumptions are reviewed regularly.

*The amount excludes the interest accrued on loans and unamortised portion of processing fees as per Ind AS 109.

*The amount excludes the interest accrued on loans and unamortised portion of processing fees as per Ind AS 109.
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iii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

For Loans:

52.37                           -                                  -                               

22.38                           25.39                              -                               
-                               -                                  -                               
-                               -                                  -                               

74.75                           25.39                              -                               

15.21                           (25.31)                             72.65                           
-                               -                                  -                               
-                               -                                  -                               

89.96                           0.08                                72.65                           

B Liquidity risk

a) The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed (maturity analysis) according to when they are to be recovered or settled.

Carrying amount Within 12 months After 12 months Carrying amount Within 12 months After 12 months
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 45.18                             45.18                           -                               43.29                              43.29                           -                               
Debt securities 2,443.00                       243.00                        2,200.00                     243.00                            -                               243.00                        
Borrowings 14,008.00                     8,519.28                     5,488.72                     13,701.52                      1,297.51                     12,404.01                   
Other financial liabilities 1,575.15                       1,053.97                     521.18                        947.94                            -                               947.94                        
Sub-total 18,071.34                     9,861.44                     8,209.90                     14,935.75                      1,340.80                     13,594.95                   
Non Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) 58.89                             58.89                           -                               38.21                              38.21                           -                               
Provisions 11.34                             11.34                           -                               6.79                                0.01                             6.78                             
Other non-financial liabilities 115.87                           115.87                        -                               87.39                              87.39                           -                               
Sub-total 186.09                           186.09                        -                               132.39                            125.61                        6.78                             

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 145.86                           145.86                        -                               247.10                            247.10                        -                               
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
above

110.62                           110.62                        -                               107.84                            107.84                        -                               

Receivables 0.61                               0.61                             -                               3.89                                3.89                             -                               
Loans and advances to customers 22,558.74                     16,415.20                   6,143.54                     18,777.39                      11,701.54                   7,075.85                     
Investment 0.82                               0.82                             -                               0.84                                0.84                             -                               
Other financial assets 6.47                               6.47                             -                               6.86                                6.86                             -                               
Sub-total 22,823.12                     16,679.58                   6,143.54                     19,143.92                      12,068.07                   7,075.85                     
Non-financial Assets
Income Tax Assets (Net) -                                 -                               -                               -                                  -                               -                               
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 78.75                             78.75                           -                               42.04                              42.04                           -                               
Property, plant and equipment 31.86                             -                               31.86                           22.51                              -                               22.51                           
Intangible assets 29.01                             -                               29.01                           42.35                              -                               42.35                           
Other non-financial assets 0.04                               0.04                             -                               0.25                                0.25                             -                               
Sub-total 139.66                           78.79                           60.87                           107.15                            42.29                           64.86                           
Net Assets / (Liabilities) 4,705.34                       6,710.84                     (2,005.50)                    4,182.93                        10,643.95                   (6,461.02)                    

Changes in loss allowances due to
- Assets originated or purchased
- Write – offs

Financial assets for 
which credit risk has 

increased 
significantly and 
credit-impaired

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Loss allowance on April 01, 2023

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company’s treasury maintains 
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Loss allowance on March 31, 2024
Changes in loss allowances due to
- Assets originated or purchased
- Write – offs
Addition/(Recoveries) for assets originated in Previous years
Loss allowance on March 31, 2025

Loss allowance measured at life-time 
Financial assets for 

which credit risk has 
increased significantly 

and not credit-
impaired

Addition/(Recoveries) for assets originated in Previous years

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected 

losses

Particulars
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b) Maturity Pattern

Particulars Within 12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
As at March 31, 2025
Trade payables 45.18                               -                                 -                                 45.18                                
Debt Securities 243.00                             -                                 2,200.00                       2,443.00                           
Borrowings
- Term loans from banks and NBFCs 2,617.28                         2,114.26                       1,874.46                       6,606.00                           
- Loans from other parties -                                   1,000.00                       -                                 1,000.00                           
- Loans from related parties 5,902.00                         500.00                           -                                 6,402.00                           
Other financial liabilities
- Security deposits 1,053.97                         467.27                           53.92                             1,575.15                           
Total 9,861.44                         4,081.53                       4,128.38                       18,071.33                        

As at March 31, 2024
Trade payables 43.29                               -                                 -                                 43.29                                
Debt Securities -                                   243.00                           -                                 243.00                              
Borrowings
- Term loans from banks and NBFCs 1,297.51                         1,104.85                       989.31                           3,391.67                           
- Loans from other parties -                                   1,086.69                       -                                 1,086.69                           
- Loans from related parties -                                   9,223.15                       -                                 9,223.15                           
Other financial liabilities
- Security deposits -                                   947.94                           -                                 947.94                              
Total 1,340.80                         12,605.63                     989.31                           14,935.74                        

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 6,143.54                       7,075.85                       
Financial liabilities
Debt Securities 2,200.00                       243.00                           
Borrowings
- Term loans from banks and NBFCs 3,988.72                        2,094.16                        
- Loans from other parties 1,000.00                        1,086.69                        
- Loans from related parties 500.00                           9,223.15                        
Security deposits 521.19                           947.94                           
The amount included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is on undiscounted basis determined at the end of the reporting period.

d) The following table sets out the components of the Company’s liquidity reserves.

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
145.86                           145.86                              247.10                           247.10                           
110.62                           110.62                              107.84                           107.84                           
256.48                          256.48                              354.94                          354.94                          

e) Disclosures in terms of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 have been given below:

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparties (borrowings):

Financial Year
No. of Significant 
Counterparties

Amount % of total Liabilities

2024-25 13                                     16,141                           97.74%
2023-24 8                                       13,545                           89.89%

(ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount in Rs. and % of total deposits) – Not Applicable

(iii) Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. lakhs and % of total borrowings):

Financial Year
Total outstanding 
amount of top 10 

borrwings
% of total Borrowings

2024-25 15,059.65                       91.19%
2023-24 13,730.52                       98.47%

(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product:

Amount % of total Liabilities Amount % of total Liabilities
Non-Convertible Debentures 243.00                             1.33% 243.00                           1.6%
Optionally convertible Debentures 2,200.00                         12.05% -                                 0.0%
Term loans from banks 6,606.00                         36.18% 3,391.68                       22.5%
Loans from other parties 1,060.00                         5.81% 1,086.69                       7.2%
Loans from related parties 6,342.00                         34.74% 9,223.15                       61.2%

c) The following table sets out the carrying amounts of non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities expected to be recovered or settled more than 12 months after the reporting date.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cashflow of the Company’s financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The table below represents principal and 
interest cash flows. To the extent that interest rates are floating, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based 
on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars

Name of the Instrument As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Total liquidity reserves

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
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(v) Stock Ratios:

(a) Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets:
The Company has not raised any funds through issuance of Commercial Papers (CPs) and hence this disclosure is not applicable.

(b)  Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets:
The Company does not have any Non-convertible debentures with original maturity of less than one year and hence this disclosure is not applicable

(c) Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets

Financial Year Short term liabilities % of Total Liabilities % of Total Assets % of Public Funds
2024-25                         10,047.53 55.03% 43.76% 61.08%
2023-24                           1,466.41 9.73% 7.62% 10.52%

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

C Interest rate risk 

Interest rate is the risk that an upward / downward movement in interest rates would adversely / favourably affect the borrowing costs of the Company.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for Floating-rate instruments

Impact on Profit / (Loss) and Equity:

25 bps increase 25 bps decrease 25 bps increase 25 bps decrease
Impact on profit for the year (3.95)                                3.95                               (6.35)                              6.35                                   

40

40.1 Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs Inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

Amount outstanding Amount overdue Amount outstanding Amount overdue

Liabilities side:
(a) Debentures

Secured 2,443.00                         -                                 243.00                           -                                     
Unsecured -                                   -                                 

(b) Deferred credits -                                   -                                 -                                 -                                     
(c) Term loans 6,606.00                         -                                 3,431.38                       -                                     
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 1,060.00                         -                                 1,086.69                       -                                     
(e) Commercial paper -                                   -                                 -                                 -                                     
(f) Public deposits -                                   -                                 -                                 -                                     
(other than falling within the meaning of Public 
deposits*)
(g) Other loans:
From banks -                                   -                                 -                                 -                                     
From related parties 6,342.00                         -                                 9,223.15                       -                                     
Security deposits 1,575.15                         -                                 947.94                           -                                     

40.2 Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):

Amount outstanding Amount overdue Amount outstanding Amount overdue

(a) In the form of unsecured debentures -                                   -                                 -                                 -                                     
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. 
debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of 
security

-                                   -                                 -                                 -                                     

(c) Other public deposits -                                   -                                 -                                 -                                     

The Company’s Board of Directors has the overall responsibility of management of liquidity risk. The Board decides the strategic policies and procedures of the Company to manage liquidity risk in
accordance with the risk tolerance/limits decided by it. The Company also has a Risk Management Committee, which reports to the Board and is responsible for evaluating the overall risks faced
by the Company including liquidity risk. Asset Liability Management Committee of the Company consisting of the Company’s senior management is responsible for ensuring adherence to the risk
tolerance/limits as well as implementing the liquidity risk management strategy of the Company.

Definitions:
“Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the total liabilities.
"Significant instrument/product" is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the total liabilities.
Public funds includes funds raised either directly or indirectly through inter-corporate deposits, bank finance and all funds received from outside sources such as funds raised by issue of
debentures etc.

Disclosures as required by Annex III of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) vide their Notification No. RBI/DNBR/2016-17/44 Master Direction DNBR. PD. 007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 (the 
“Notification”)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure to the interest rates for financial instruments at the end of the reporting period and the stipulated change taking place at 
the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in case of instruments that have floating rates. 

The sensitivity analysis have been carried out based on the exposure to interest rates for term loans from banks and borrowings carried at variable rate. If interest rates had been 25 basis points 
higher or lower and all other variables were constant, the Company's profit after tax would have changed by the following:

As at March 31, 2024As at March 31, 2025
Particulars

Particulars
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
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40.3 Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(a) Secured (net of impairment loss allowance) 19,564.09                      17,624.32                   
(b) Unsecured (net of impairment loss allowance) 2,994.65                         1,153.07                      

40.4 Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing activities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under 
sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease -                                  -                                
(b) Operating lease -                                  -                                
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under 
sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire -                                  -                                
(b) Repossessed assets -                                  -                                
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed -                                  -                                
(b) Loans other than (a) above -                                  -                                

40.5 Break-up of investments:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Long term investments:
a. Quoted:
(i) Shares: Equity shares 0.82                                0.84                              
(ii) Debentures and bonds -                                  -                                
(iii) Units of mutual funds -                                  -                                
(iv) Government securities -                                  -                                
(v) Others -                                  -                                
b. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: Equity shares -                                  -                                
(ii) Debentures and bonds -                                  -                                
(iii) Units of mutual funds -                                  -                                
(iv) Government securities -                                  -                                
(v) Others -                                  -                                

40.6 Category of borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) above:

Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

Borrower group-wise classification of assets 
financed as in (3) above:
1. Related parties**
(a) Subsidiaries -                                  -                                -                                -                                   -                                -                                
(b) Companies in the same group 250.00                           48.65                           298.65                         250.00                            500.00                         750.00                         
(c) Other related parties -                                  -                                -                                -                                   -                                -                                
2. Other than related parties 19,314.09                      2,946.00                      17,374.32                       653.07                         18,027.39                   
Total (1+2) 19,564.09                      2,994.65                      298.65                          17,624.32                       1,153.07                      18,777.39                    

40.7 Category

Market value/ break 
up or fair value or 

NAV

Book value
(net of provisions)

Market value/ break 
up or fair value or 

NAV

Book value
(net of provisions)

Investor group-wise classification of all investments 
1. Related parties **
(a) Subsidiaries                                      -                                      -                                      -                                         -   
(b) Companies in the same group                                      -                                      -                                      -                                         -   
(c) Other related parties                                      -                                      -                                      -                                         -   
2. Other than related parties                                  0.82                               0.82                               0.84 0.84                                 
Total (1+2)                                 0.82                               0.82                               0.84                                   0.84 

** As per Ind AS 24 issued by MCA.

40.8 Other Information

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

(i) Gross non-performing assets
(a) Related parties -                                  -                                
(b) Other than related parties 242.16                           253.93                         
(ii) Net non-performing assets
(a) Related parties -                                  -                                
(b) Other than related parties 169.51                           228.54                         
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -                                  -                                

Amount net of provisions
Particulars

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
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41 Disclosure as required by RBI circular DOR (NBFC).CC.PDNO.109/22.10.106/2019 20 Dated March 13, 2020

As at March 31, 2025

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms
Asset classification as 

per Ind AS 109
Gross Carrying Amount 

as per Ind AS 109

 Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as required 

under Ind AS 109
Net Carrying Amount

Provisions required as 
per IRACP norms

Difference between 
Ind AS 109 provisions 

and IRACP norms

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E)=(C)-(D) (F) (G) = (D)-(F)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 22,459.70                      13.89                              22,445.81                          89.96                              (76.07)                             

Stage 2 19.57                              0.75                                18.82                                  0.08                                0.67                                
Subtotal 22,479.27                      14.63                              22,464.63                          90.04                              (75.40)                             
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 242.16                            24.22                              217.94                                72.65                              (48.43)                             
1 to 3 years Stage 3 -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  
More than 3 years Stage 3 -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  
Subtotal for doubtful 242.16                            24.22                              217.94                                72.65                              (48.43)                             
Loss Stage 3 -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  
Subtotal for NPA 242.16                            24.22                              217.94                                72.65                              (48.43)                             
Other items such as guarantees, loan, commitments, Stage 1                                      -                                        -   -                                      -                                  -                                  

Stage 2                                      -                                        -   -                                      -                                  -                                  
Stage 3                                      -                                        -   -                                      -                                  -                                  

Subtotal                                      -                                        -   -                                      -                                  -                                  
Total Stage 1                        22,459.70                                13.89 22,445.81                          89.96                              (76.07)                             

Stage 2                                19.57                                  0.75 18.82                                  0.08                                0.67                                
Stage 3                              242.16                                24.22 217.94                                72.65                              (48.43)                             
Total                        22,721.42                                38.85 22,682.57                          162.69                            (123.83)                           

As at March 31, 2024

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms
Asset classification as 

per Ind AS 109
Gross Carrying Amount 

as per Ind AS 109

 Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as required 

under Ind AS 109
Net Carrying Amount

Provisions required as 
per IRACP norms

Difference between 
Ind AS 109 provisions 

and IRACP norms

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E)=(C)-(D) (F) (G) = (D)-(F)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 18,623.58                      10.11                              18,613.47                          74.75                              (64.64)                             

Stage 2 -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  
Subtotal 18,623.58                      10.11                              18,613.47                          74.75                              (64.64)                             
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 253.93                            25.39                              228.54                                25.39                              -                                  
1 to 3 years Stage 3 -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  
More than 3 years Stage 3 -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  
Subtotal for doubtful 253.93                            25.39                              228.54                                25.39                              -                                  
Loss Stage 3 -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  
Subtotal for NPA 253.93                            25.39                              228.54                                25.39                              -                                  
Total Stage 1                        18,623.58                                10.11 18,613.47                          74.75                              (64.64)                             

Stage 2                                      -                                        -   -                                      -                                  -                                  
Stage 3                              253.93                                25.39 228.54                                25.39                              -                                  
Total                        18,877.51                                35.50 18,842.01                          100.14                            (64.64)                             

42 Other Disclosures required under RBI Circulars / Directives
42.1 Exposure to real estate sector

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

3,092.31                         1,642.32                         
-                                  -                                  

-                                  -                                  
-                                  -                                  

                         3,092.31                          1,642.32 

42.2 Exposure to capital market
The Company does not have any exposure to capital markets and hence this disclosure is not applicable.

42.3 Sectoral exposure

Total Exposure Gross NPAs
Percentage of Gross 

NPAs to total exposure 
in that sector

Total Exposure Gross NPAs
Percentage of Gross 

NPAs to total exposure 
in that sector

1. Agriculture and Allied Activities -                                     -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  

2. Industry -                                     -                                  -                                  -                                      -                                  -                                  

3. Services
- Finance & Lending 11,365.25                         -                                  -                                  9,935.18                            -                                  -                                  

4. Personal Loans
- Retail Loans 3,741.52                           -                                  -                                  2,265.70                            -                                  -                                  

5. Others , if any (Please specify)
- Other Loans 7,451.97                           242.16                            3.25% 6,576.51                            228.54                            3.48%
Total 22,558.74                         242.16                             3.25% 18,777.39                           228.54                             3.48%

c) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures –
i. Residential
ii. Commercial Real Estate

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector (Gross)

Category
The Company does not have any direct or indirect exposure to the real estate sector other than properties mortgaged as collateral by its customers
i) Direct exposure
a) Residential Mortgages –
b) Commercial Real Estate –

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Sectors
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42.4 Intra-group exposure

Category As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total amount of intra-group exposures -                                     -                                   
Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures -                                     -                                   
Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure -                                     -                                   

42.5 Unhedged foreign currency exposure

42.6 Disclosure of customer complaints

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of complaints pending at beginning of the 
year

-                                     -                                   

Number of complaints received during the year -                                     -                                   

Number of complaints disposed during the year -                                     -                                   

Of which, number of complaints rejected by the 
NBFC

-                                     -                                   

Number of complaints pending at the end of the 
year

-                                     -                                   

42.7 Details of loans acquired during the year

Particulars From lenders*
From Asset

Reconstruction 
Companies

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired -                               
Aggregate consideration paid -                               

Weighted average residual tenor of loans acquired -                                 -                               

* As mentioned in clause 3 of RBI circular no. DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22

43 Other Additional Information

a. There is no proceeding which has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

b.     The Company does not have transactions with companies struck off.

c.     There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period as applicable.

d.     The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year 2024-2025.

e. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:
(i)     directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii)    provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company did not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as on the balance sheet date and did not enter into any derivative contracts at any time during the year and none were 
outstanding as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

k.     The Company has utilised the borrowing amount taken from financial institutions for the purpose as stated in the sanction letter.

l. The Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

f. The Company has not received any funds from any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i)     directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii)    provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

g. The details is not applicable to the Company, related to transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961), unless there is immunity for disclosure under any scheme
and shall also state whether the previously unrecorded income and related assets have been properly recorded in the books of account during the year.

h.     The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

i.     The Company does not have any scheme of arrangements which have been approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Act.

j.     The  Compliance with number of layers prescribed under Section 2(87) of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rule, 2017 is not applicable.
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44

(i) Details of stressed loans transferred during the year

(ii) Details of stressed loans acquired

From ARCs From permitted 
lenders

From others From ARCs From permitted 
lenders

From others

Number of accounts -                                 2.00                             -                               -                                  2.00                             -                               

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired
-                                 20,000.00                   -                               -                                  20,000.00                   -                               

Aggregate consideration paid -                                 3,550.00                     -                               -                                  3,550.00                     -                               
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans 
acquired

-                                 36.00                           -                               -                                  36.00                           -                               

Net book value of loans acquired (at the time of 
acquisition)

-                                 20,000.00                   -                               -                                  20,000.00                   -                               

Loss Allowances (Provisions) recognised during the 
year

-                                 -                               -                               -                                  -                               -                               

Recoveries made during the year -                                 813.00                        -                               -                                  -                               -                               
Net book value of loans acquired (as on reporting 
date)

-                                 2,737.00                     -                               -                                  3,550.00                     -                               

Classification of laons as on acquisition -                                 NPA -                               -                                  NPA -                               
Classification of laons as on reporting date -                                 Standard -                               -                                  Standard -                               

45 Previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year classification/presentation.
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For P.D.Randar & CO Real Touch Finance Limited
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Particulars
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

The Company has not transferred any loan during the year ended 31 March, 2025 and 31 March, 2024.

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

In connection with the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors have confirmed the propriety of the contracts / agreements entered
into by / on behalf of the Company and the resultant revenue earned / expenses incurred arising out of the same after reviewing the levels of authorisation and the available documentary
evidences and the overall control environment. Further, the Board of Directors have also reviewed the realizable value of all the current assets of the Company and have confirmed that the
value of such assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value at which these are recognised in the financial statements. In addition, the Board has also confirmed the
carrying value of the non-current assets in the financial statements. The Board, duly taking into account all the relevant disclosures made, has approved these financial statements at its meeting
held on May 30, 2025. The shareholders of the Company have the rights to amend the financial statements in the ensuing Annual general meeting post issuance of the same by the Board of
directors.

Disclosures pursuant to (Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021)
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